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Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. DONG Li (Chairman)

Ms. YIN Haiyan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 30 July 2018)

Ms. ZHAO Huan (resigned on 6 August 2018)
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
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Mr. LAU Chi Kit

Board Committees
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Mr. LIU Yangsheng

Mr. LAU Chi Kit
Remuneration Committee
Mr. LAU Chi Kit (Chairman)

Mr. DONG Li

Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan
Nomination Committee
Mr. DONG Li (Chairman)

Mr. LIU Yangsheng
Mr. LAU Chi Kit

Company Secretary
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Ernst & Young
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Cayman Islands Principal Share
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Cayman lIslands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
and Transfer Office
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Hong Kong

Principal Bankers
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Bank of China
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Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are pleased to
announce the following financial highlights:
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Financial Highlights B1#EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Period”), the
Group’s audited profit attributable to owners of the parent
amounted to approximately RMB106.4 million.

Basic earnings per share was RMBO0.08 (2017: RMB0.18),
the calculation of such basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
parent and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 1,357,431,128 (2017: 1,355,932,999) in issue during the
year.

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
recommended the payment of a final dividend of 2.0 HK
cents for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil
HK cents). The Company had not declared and paid any
interim dividend or special dividend during the year ended 31
December 2018.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 21 May 2019 to Friday, 24 May 2019 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of determining shareholders’
entitlement to attend the annual general meeting (the
“AGM”), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending
the AGM, shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar (see
below) for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
20 May 2019.
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Financial Highlights Bff&E=E ’

The register of members of the Company will be closed from A& #& & A% B UER AR B BV R - K2 RGH —
Monday, 3 June 2019 to Wednesday, 5 June 2019 (both ZTE—NFNA=B(EH)E-_ZT—AF AR
days inclusive),for the purpose of determining shareholders’ H (E2H=) (BEEEMAE) HEBERRERLF
entitlement to receive the final dividend, during which period  %& - i ¥~ & AR R RIIMD EITIBE B - AR
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for A& BERIEKEIME - IR ERERTAE 1B &
receiving the final dividend, shareholders should ensure that RBBEEBREXHTER _ZT—NLFRA=1+—8
all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share (EHH) TFUE=+0XI AR BRI B
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share &k (R TX) AP SR FE-

registrar (see below) for registration by no later than 4:30

p.m. on Friday, 31 May 2019.

Tricor Investor Services Limited BEBSERLARAR

Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre, ik BB/ ANERI18IHRA A L2212
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Leoch
International Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), | am pleased to present
the Group’s report on its annual results for the year ended 31
December 2018 (the “Period”) for shareholders’ review.

Review

2018 was a challenging and extraordinary year to the Group.
During the Period, the Group’s business performance was
affected by various factors, including the US-China trade
war and unusual surge in the PRC lead price. Despite these
challenges, the Group was still able to sustain growth in
the battery businesses and solidify its market position. In
addition, 2018 marked a significant milestone in the Group’s
growth strategy in both the PRC and overseas markets, with
its construction of the lead-acid battery production plants
in Vietnam and the lithium battery production plant in the
PRC, as well as the expansion of recycling lead production
capacity in the PRC. With these new production facilities,
the Group will be able to provide its long-term and valuable
customers with broader lines of battery products and
solutions to meet their ongoing demands.

Besides the US-China trade war that suppressed the
Group’s business growth in the US market during the second
half of the Period, the unusual surge in the PRC lead price
during the last eight months of the Period in the PRC was
the main adverse factor affecting the Group’s business
growth and profitability. Overall growth momentum was
halted resulting in turnover in the second half of the Period
being nearly the same as the first half of the Period. While
in 2017, battery business was 29% more in the second half
when comparing to the first half of the same year. Detailed
discussion and analysis is available in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of this report for your
review.
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During the Period, recycled lead business was temporarily
interrupted due to the PRC Government’s lead-related heavy
metal discharging enterprises structural reform. The Group
decided to embark on expansion of production capacity and
enhancement of environment protection facilities in the third
quarter of 2018. Although the sale and profit contribution
from the lead recycling business was unavoidably reduced,
the allowed production volume will be doubled, with potential
annual sales of recycled lead products reaching RMB4 billion
once the new plant becomes fully operational.

The construction of the two factories in Vietham and the
lithium batteries factory in the PRC was started during the
Period and has been making good progress. The completion
of the construction and commencement of products delivery
are expected to take place in the second half of 2019.

Outlook

The agreement between the U.S. and China to postpone
proposed tariff increases for 90 days has modest impact to
encourage growth, particularly for China. In the first quarter
of 2019, the global economy and Chinese economy were
still suffering from the US-China trade war and other factors
reducing confidence and decreasing demand. The market
is expecting that the trade war may end soon, coupled
with China’s reduction of value-added tax (VAT) rate for
manufacturers from 16 per cent to 13 per cent, are positive
factors to demand recovery and cost reduction.

In short to medium term, we believe the continuously rapid
development of integrated data center (IDC”), clean energy
storage and the acceleration of 5G network development in
the PRC will be the major growth drivers of reserve power
batteries business. With our strong global sales network and
comprehensive product solution with lithium batteries, we are
confident that our reserve power batteries will resume growth
momentum soon.
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Chairman’s Statement EE#HRE

The demand of SLI batteries remains robust thanks to the
growing of aging vehicles and high growth rate of vehicle fleet
in China, making China accounting for about 50% of global
SLI sales by 2020. The Group believes that it will continue
to enjoy a healthy growth rate in the PRC market. With our
SLI factory located in Vietnam commencing production in the
third quarter of 2019, we are confident that the overseas SLI
business will be recovered in short term.

The development of new energy vehicles that leads to the
growth of low-speed electric vehicles, coupled with the
rapid development of e-commerce logistics that boosts
the domestic and overseas demand of electric forklift, will
provide tremendous demand for motive power batteries
business. With its research and development investment in
both lead-acid and lithium batteries, the Group is committed
to sustaining the growth momentum in the motive power
batteries.

The rectification of the PRC recycled lead industry has
created a good opportunity for the Group in expanding the
recycling lead business. With more production quota being
granted, the joint venture lead recycling enterprise will double
the production capacity within a few months. The Group will
develop the recycling lead business in a prudent manner.

The Group anticipated that the global demand for
rechargeable batteries will continue to grow in the next few
years. With our comprehensive product lines in both lead-
acid and lithium battery applications, and dedicated sales
teams in the PRC, USA, Asia and Europe, we are well-
positioned to seize opportunities arising from rechargeable
batteries markets in 2019 and onwards.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018
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Fluctuations in raw material price in the PRC has an adverse
impact on the Group'’s profitability on export business. With
the completion of our Vietnam factories, the Group will be
able to cope with the problem by substantially hedging
the risk of raw material price. The Group is committed to
expanding its footprint in overseas markets and matching the
demand with overseas supply in highest possibility and effort.
In view of the fierce price competition amongst major players
in the PRC and overseas market, the Group will keep strict
control over its production costs and enhance its production
efficiency to overcome these challenges.

In order to maintain its leading position in technological
knowhow and product reliability, the Group will continue
to invest in research and development. The Group will
constantly review its strategy and development, and perform
timely adjustment when required.

The objective of the Group is to provide sustainable growth
in shareholder value over the long term. Backed by 20
years of experience in providing reliable and innovation
battery solutions for a broad range of industries around the
world and with our growth strategy in both the PRC and
overseas markets in place, we are confident of our business
performance in the long run.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our
shareholders, customers and business partners for their
long-term support and trust. | also wish to express my
deep appreciation to our management team and our staff
members for their diligent work, and members of the Board
of Directors for their significant contributions. | believe
that, with the continuous support from our shareholders,
commitment of our management team and staff members,
we are well-positioned to achieve a higher level of success.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DN

Business Review

The Group is a vertically integrated enterprise principally
engaged in the development, sale and manufacture of lead
acid batteries and the lead recycling and remanufacturing
business. It is one of the leading manufacturers and the
top exporter of lead-acid batteries in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). The Group sells over 2,000 models
of lead-acid battery products which are widely used in
different business applications such as telecommunication,
UPS, energy storage, vehicle, motorcycle, golf cart, forklift
truck, electric vehicle etc. Among the lead-acid battery
manufacturers in the PRC, the Group offers the broadest
lines of lead-acid battery product.

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Period”),
the Group’s revenue amounted to RMB9,544.4 million,
representing an increase of 0.8% from RMB9,465.4 million
for the corresponding period in 2017.

During the Period, revenue from batteries and related items
amounted to RMB8,069.1 million, representing an increase
of 5.3% from RMB7,661.3 million for the corresponding
period in 2017. In normal circumstance, the price linkage
mechanism will pass raw material price fluctuation to
customers, the growth in revenue was driven mainly by
the increase in average lead price as compared to the
corresponding period in 2017. The growth rate in terms
of volume delivered in terms of ton was around 1.0% as
compared to the corresponding period last year. Revenue
from recycled lead products amounted to RMB1,419.1
million representing a decrease of 19.1% from RMB1,754.8
million for the corresponding period in 2017.
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Various adverse factors affected the performance of global
and the PRC economy, as well as the lead-acid battery
industry and the Group in 2018. The US-China trade war
suppressed the Group’s business growth in the US market
while the abnormal hike of the PRC lead price further
increased the suppression pressure to all categories of
product at overseas markets. The Group’s gross profit
margin was affected since the abnormal lead price hike
occurred in the last 8 months in the PRC was not fully
transferrable to the customers and losses occurred from
those overseas orders temporarily required to be produced in
the PRC with higher material costs during the re-construction
period of the JV factory. Nevertheless, the Group continued
to drive business growth in the PRC and overseas. Among
the RMB407.7 million (2017: RMB1,398.5 million) increment
in sales revenue of battery, 26.9% (2017: 58.1%) was
contributed from the PRC while 73.1% (2017: 41.9%) was
from overseas in 2018. There was a decrement in sales
of recycled lead amounted to RMB335.8 million (2017:
RMB1,754.8 million, first year of record), together with other
income, the PRC share of the Group’s turnover for the Period
accounted for 64.7% (2017: 67.5%).

Lead-acid batteries are generally classified into three major
market categories, namely reserve power batteries, SLI
batteries and motive power batteries. Details of business
operations of the Group in these three categories are as
follows:

Reserve power batteries

The Group’s sales of reserve power batteries during the
Period amounted to RMB4,436.9 million (2017: RMB4,674.2
million), representing a decrease of 5.1% as compared to
the same period of last year. The decrement in sales revenue
of reserve power batteries amounted to RMB237.3 million
(2017: RMB354.6 million increment) during the Period.
Reserve power batteries accounted for approximately
55.0% of batteries revenue as compared to 61.0% in the
corresponding period of 2017.
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The increase in volume delivered for Uninterruptible Power
Supplies (“UPS”) and renewable energy application
batteries both in China and overseas partially overcome the
reduction in other application batteries in the PRC. This was
contributed by our sales and marketing efforts to expand
our market share in UPS and renewable energy application
areas. However, the trade war between the US and the PRC
and the abnormal high lead price in China during the last 8
months in 2018 suppressed overseas demand and hindered
the Group’s overseas growth in 2018. Accordingly, this
business category resulted in negative growth rate in terms of
sales and products delivery as compared to last year.

SLI batteries

SLI batteries category are used mainly in starting up
automobiles and motorcycles. The Group’s sales of SLI
batteries during the Period amounted to RMB2,542.1
million (2017: RMB2,164.7 million), representing an increase
of 17.4% as compared to the same period of last year.
The increment in sales revenue of SLI batteries amounted
to RMB377.4 million (2017: RMB721.8 million) during
the Period. SLI batteries accounted for approximately
31.5% of batteries revenue as compared to 28.3% in the
corresponding period of 2017.

Vehicle production in China suffered the first drop since
1990. Vehicle production in December 2018 was estimated
down by 14.9% year-on-year, the sixth consecutive month of
negative growth. On the other hand, estimated car ownership
in China has reached 240 million units by the end of 2018,
more than 10% increase as compared to the 2017 figure,
indicating that demand for automotive batteries replacement
remained high. During the Period, our PRC SLI business
continued to grow at average of above 30% in sales to the
vehicle manufacturers and the after-market. However, due
to abnormal high lead price in China in the last 8 months in
2018, the Group‘s growth in export sales on this category
was hindered, resulting in a negative growth rate in terms
of product delivery and lower profit margin. Nevertheless,
the Group managed to keep overall growth rate of our SLI
busines within a healthy range.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018
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Motive power batteries

Motive power batteries revenue mainly generated from
batteries used to provide power for electric vehicles, electric
forklifts and other applications. During the Period, the
Group’s motive power batteries business recorded sales
revenue of RMB871.6 million (2017: RMB497.0 million),
representing an increase of 75.4% as compared to the same
period of last year. The increment in sales revenue of motive
power batteries amounted to RMB374.6 million (2017:
RMB215.2 million) during the Period. Motive power batteries
accounted for approximately 10.8% of batteries revenue as
compared to 6.5% in the corresponding period of 2017.

This remarkable result was contributed by the substantial
increase in sales of batteries on various applications including
batteries used by electric vehicles and forklifts. The Group will
continue to invest in this category to sustain the rapid growth
momentum.

Recycled lead

Revenue from the sale of recycled lead products amounted
to RMB1,419.1 million (2017: RMB1,754.8 million) during
the Period, representing a decrease of 19.1% as compared
to the same period of last year. To coordinate with the PRC
Government lead-related heavy metal discharging enterprises
structural reform, the Group decided to commence
production capacity expansion plan of the Group’s recycled
lead production facilities and enhance the factory’s
environment protection facilities in the third quarter of 2018.
Accordingly, production was temporary interrupted and the
revenue in the second half year of 2018 decreased by 53.8%
to RMB448.2 million as compared to RMB970.9 million in
the first half of 2018, resulting in reduction of sales and profit
contribution from the lead recycling business.
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Sales network

The Group distributes its products to more than 100
countries and regions across the world. The Group
established regional sales offices in Beijing, Shenzhen,
Zhaoqging, Nanjing, Hong Kong, Singapore, Malaysia,
Australia and other ASEAN countries, India, Sri Lanka, the
United States and the European Union including the United
Kingdom. Together with domestic sales centres across the
PRC, the Group has more than 50 sales offices and centres
around the world. As at 31 December 2018, the Group
has over 850 dedicated sales and marketing and related
supporting employees. The Group will continue expanding
its sales and marketing teams and business network in the
PRC and overseas to support the sales and marketing,
distribution, and after sales services for all categories of
battery products of the Group.

The acquisition of 60% stake in DBS Energy Limited, a
UK battery distributor, was completed on 16 January
2018. In 2018, two wholly owned trading company, Leoch
Nordeuropa GmbH in Germany and Leoch ltalia S.R.L. in
Italy, were established on 22 February 2018 and 24 October
2018, respectively. The Group believed that the above setups
will further strengthen our position in Europe and pave a
solid path for our business to accelerate growth in European
countries in 2019 and onward.

Research and development ("R&D’) of new products

The Group is a leader in R&D and application of lead-acid
battery technologies in China. To support its R&D efforts,
the Group works closely with international and domestic
battery experts and research institutions to develop new
technologies. The Group’s battery research and development
team consists of more than 400 researchers and technicians.
Currently, the Group holds 372 patents and there are 133
proprietary technologies in the process of patent applications
as at the date of this report.
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The Group has grasped and applied most of lead-acid
battery technologies in the world. The Group’s strong R&D
capabilities enable it to produce a broad range of battery
products deploying most of the key lead-acid battery
technologies. Currently, the Group has developed more
than 2,000 models of battery products of different types
employing various application technologies, making the
Group one of the battery enterprises with the broadest range
of lead-acid batteries. Close to 100 production lines and
related testing equipments together with three dedicated
battery research and development centers located in
Guangdong, Anhui and Jiangsu constituted a strong and
advance manufacturing and research and development
capabilities of the enterprise. Leoch mainly produces reserve
power batteries, SLI batteries and motive power batteries
and they include series of product such as AGM VRLA
batteries, VRLA-GEL battery, pure lead batteries, UPS high
rate batteries, marine batteries, railway batteries, start-
stop batteries, automotive batteries, motorcycle batteries,
OPzV, OPzS, PzS, PzV and PzB tubular plate batteries,
golf cart batteries, scrubber sweeper batteries and electric
vehicle batteries etc.. Our forward-looking research and
development team and high production quality make Leoch
possess influential international competitive power.

Being hardworking and enterprising, through practice, Leoch
keeps on developing and blazing new trails constantly. For
quality control, professional quality management centres
have been set up and successfully acquired the recognition
of various standards such as ISO9001, TS16949, 1ISO14001
and OHSAS18001. In the area of technological innovation,
we have carried out technical cooperation with renowned
overseas battery manufacturers, introduced advance
equipment and instruments from domestic and overseas
suppliers and obtained a number of patent technologies. Our
production capability has reached international advanced
level. To enhance Leoch independent innovation ability, we
continuously perform technical exchanges and cooperation
with famous universities in the PRC and established research
bases with them. For Leoch to become a globalized
competitive leading battery manufacturer soon, we have laid
a solid foundation.
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Lead-acid battery is under another stage of revolution since
its invention in 1860. Innovative companies like Gridtential
Energy, Inc. has been working on solution that bring lead-
acid batteries, which already are the most cost-effective,
safest form of energy storage and more recyclable, by
using its new technology to perform up to 5 times greater
power density, lighter weight and more than double the
current lifespan. The Group will continue working closely
with Gridtential Energy, Inc. to explore this advanced battery
technologies.

To cope with product diversification and satisfy customers’
need, the Group had put in large amount of resources in
the last few years on the development of lithium batteies to
cover all application areas in reserve and motive power with
priority on telecommunication area. With the construction of
the first phase of lithium batteries factory starting in 2018,
more lithium products will be designed and ready for mass
production.

Production bases

During the Period, the Group operated eight well-built battery
production bases, including four wholly-owned production
bases in the PRC, two wholly-owned production bases
(one in Sri Lanka and the other one in India), two joint
venture production bases in Malaysia and one joint venture
recycling lead factory in the PRC with a total site area of
approximately 970,000 square meters (“sq.m.”). As at 31
December 2018, the Group had battery capacity of 21.7
million KVAh (2017: 21.6 million KVAh). To cope with potential
business expansion and needs, the Group will expand its
manufacturing capacities in the PRC and overseas in a
prudent manner.
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The construction of the two factories in Vietnam is in full gear
after we signed the construction agreement in November
2018. It is expected that the factory for reserve power
batteries will start to deliver products before the end of
second quarter in 2019. The factory for automotive batteries
(SLI batteries) is expected to deliver products by the end of
third quarter in 2019. The designed production capacity of
these two factories will be more than double of current total
overseas production capacity with opportunity for future
expansion. The Group is committed to expand our overseas
production capacity to satisfy at least 50% overseas demand
by the end of 2020.

The plan to expand the manufacturing capability and
capacity of India factory in the second half year of 2018 had
been delayed due to longer than expected time to conclude
the leasing contract and various production and environment
license applications are still under process. The Group
estimates that implementation of the expansion plan can be
started within 2019.

The construction of a lithium batteries factory has been
started in December 2018 at Huaibei Development Zone
of Anhui. Site area of nearly 150,000 square meters will
eventually provide at least 4GWh design production capacity
to produce various Li-ion batteries products used for
business application in reserve power and motive power
market categories. More than one-third of the designed
production capacity is expected to commence operation by
the last quarter of 2019.
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To coordinate with the Taihe County People’s Government
lead-related heavy metal discharging enterprises structural
reform and to realize annual production capacity of 200,000
tons of recycling lead, the Group decided to commence
the production capacity expansion plan of the Group’s
recycled lead production facilities and enhance the factory’s
environment protection facilities in the third quarter of 2018.
It is expected that the factory will resume full production after
these construction being completed and checked by County
People’s Government in the second quarter of 2019. Based
on the allowed production volume which has been increased
from 100,000 tons annually in 2017 to 200,000 tons in 2018;
potential annual sales of recycled lead products can reach
RMB4 billion under full production.

Trend of lead price

Lead is the main raw material of lead-acid batteries and
accounts for a major product cost for the Group’s battery
production. According to Shanghai Metals Market (‘SMM”),
an information service provider of the non-ferrous metal
market, the monthly average lead price per ton fluctuated
within the range of RMB18,192 to RMB20,514 during the
Period, representing a change within the range of -4.1%
to 8.1% as compared with December 2017 SMM monthly
average of RMB18,973 per ton.

The monthly average of SMM lead price in each of the
first six months of 2018 was RMB19,339, RMB19,310,
RMB18,659, RMB18,520, RMB19,534 and RMB20,514
respectively. SMM lead price start surging after April 2018
when the supply of recycling lead was significantly reduced
at the PRC market. Lead import started to surge in May
2018 and reached the highest point in December of 2018.
In 2018, the PRC lead import reached 128 kt, a 64% growth
compared to 2017. These arbitrage actions partially adjusted
the abnormal hike of the PRC lead price during the second
half of the Period.
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The monthly average of SMM lead price in each of the last six
months of 2018 was RMB19,818, RMB18,192, RMB18,966,
RMB18,559, RMB18,651 and RMB18,649 respectively.
SMM lead price continue to adjust downward for two
consecutive months before it rebounded back to similar
average price in December 2017 mainly due to a decrease
in the demand in the PRC with the slowing down of the
economy. Thereafter, the average lead price remained quite
stable for the rest of 2018 when more lead were imported to
cover for the shortage of local supply.

To cope with potential risks of fluctuation in lead price, the
Group adopts a price linkage mechanism, passing raw
materials price fluctuation to customers to hedge relevant
risks. The Group’s centralized procurement of raw materials
enables it to trim down costs of raw materials through
favorable negotiations on bulk purchase contracts.

Future Prospects

The Group anticipates that our business will sustain the
growth momentum in the PRC and overseas markets in
light of the US-China trade war might soon be ended and
the abnormal price hike of the PRC lead price will not be as
severe as that in 2018. Concentration will be twisted towards
margin improvement than market growth. However, there are
always challenges ahead and below are our view and action
plans:

Reserve power batteries

During the Period, reserve power batteries suffered a
negative growth rate of 5.1% in revenue with RMB237.3
million sales decrement. This was mainly contributed by
the reduction in demand of lead-acid batteries from the
telecommunication market in the PRC. The PRC government
imposed policy to utilize retired lithium batteries from electric
vehicle and the trend will continue at the telecommunication
market.
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On the other hand, besides solidifying the position in the PRC
UPS market, the Group achieved preliminary breakthrough
in the sales of renewable energy application where sales
increment was close to RMB100 million. Renewable energy
storage and grid energy storage are now the hottest topics
on future development besides 5G.

Part of the Group’s core business ability is varietal diversity
in product with reasonable price, reliable quality and timely
delivery. We are a customer centric company working
restlessly to become a world class, competitive and
technology leading manufacturer of rechargeable battery.
Being as a major supplier of reserve power batteries in the
market, we are well prepared and determined to expand our
market shares by satisfying the need of customers. With our
first lithium factory mass production on the way in the second
half year of 2019, Leoch is ready to open another new page.
We are confident that our reserve power batteries will resume
growth momentum in the near future.

The threat to levy 10-25% tariff was crystallized in September
2018 by the US government, a 10% tariff was implemented
to the Group’s products shipped to the US market. Besides,
the abnormal lead price hike also affected overseas demand
of the Group’s products in the second half year of 2018.
With the schedule for the Vietnam reserve power factory
to complete its construction and commenced to deliver
products within a few months, the Group’s overseas
competitive strength will rapidly increase and can tackle
overseas trade barrier better. Furthermore, the PRC lead
price has been back to normal since January of 2019, which
attracts more demand from overseas customers. Although
the Group encountered a very tough business condition in
2018, we managed to grow our reserve power business in all
overseas regions. The reduction of sales in Asian countries
was due to underperformance of SLI batteries because of
abnormal lead price hike in the PRC where these products
were produced.
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SL/ batteries

In 2018, SLI batteries continue to be one of the major growth
contributors in revenue of batteries with around RMB377.4
million sales increment. Despite China’s vehicle production
suffered the first fall since 1990, products delivered to auto
makers and aftermarket distributors continued to enjoy
around 30% growth in each area.

In January 2019, automobile sales in the PRC market
estimated to drop another 15.8%, making the seventh
straight month of decline in the world’s largest automobile
market. However, with car ownership reached 240 million
units by the end of 2018 and it is widely anticipated that this
will continue to rise, the PRC is set to become the largest
market for SLI batteries by 2020. The majority of the growth
will come from the aftermarket segment mainly due to
ageing of the vehicle fleet in the country which accelerates
car owners’ need to replace the existing batteries. By
2020, about 77% of the vehicles in the PRC will be over 3
years old, the average age at which its battery needs to be
replaced as compared to 66% in 2015. The demand for SLI
batteries will remain robust at the PRC market.

The Group believes that this category will continue to
enjoy healthy growth in the PRC market mainly due to the
prevailing favorable business environment for SLI batteries
in the PRC. Sufficient resources will be put in to continue
enlarging our customer bases and to penetrate the market.
Areas like R&D, production, product quality, sales and
marketing including distribution network will be enhanced.
The Group is determined and working towards becoming
one of the top suppliers of SLI batteries in the PRC.
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The abnormal lead price in the PRC during the Period
reduced the export demand in SLI batteries since the gap
between SMM and LME lead price was widened significantly
due to supply chain disruption caused by the structural
reform in the PRC recycling lead industry. Unfortunately this
sudden increase in the price of lead in the PRC was not
able to pass to overseas customers where LME lead price
is always the guiding reference for overseas selling price
formation. Since January of 2019, the gap is back to normal
and more or less reflect the import tax and value added tax
imposed by the PRC government after taking into account
conversion cost and transportation cost. However, the supply
disruption of recycling lead may not be over and the price
drop in the first quarter of 2019 in the PRC may only be
the result of weak demand. To cope with this uncertainty,
the Group’s SLI factory located in Vietnam is planned to
start production in the third quarter of 2019. The designed
production capacity with potential expansion opportunity
allows the Group to support overseas SLI business and
enhance our cost efficiency and competitive power. It also
benefits to release production capacity in our PRC plants for
expected growth in the local market. We are confident that
the overseas SLI business will be back on growing track in
short term.

Motive power batteries

During the Period, the sales of motive power batteries
recorded around RMB374.6 million increment and continued
to be one of the major growth contributors of the Group.
Batteries for electric transportation and equipment such as
low-speed electric vehicles and electric forklifts continued to
have the highest growth rate among the battery categories.
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The demand for motive power batteries has been propelled
by the extensive promotion and application of the batteries
in electric transportation and equipment such as low-speed
electric vehicles and electric forklifts in the PRC. Low-
speed electric vehicles as commuter tools to solve the
transportation demand between county and township is the
most favorable solution nowadays. The current low-speed
electric vehicle market has 5 million vehicles and is expected
to reach 10 million by 2020 with battery market size reaching
RMB8.4 billion.

The proportion of forklifts sold in the PRC which is powered
by electricity increased year-on-year from 38.4% in 2016
to 40.3% in 2017. The market share of electric forklift in
the European Union, the United States and Japan is more
than 70% and continues to grow. Given the trend towards
shifting to electrical powered forklifts in the rest of the World,
the proportion of electrical forklifts in the PRC is bound to
further increase in the PRC at a faster pace. Furthermore,
driven by the combination factors of tighter environmental
requirements, the rapid development of e-commence
logistics and the competitive advantage of construction
machinery export, electric forklift market is expected to enter
a new period of rapid growth.

Lithium batteries continue enlarging its proportion in e-bike
application and might increase more rapidly than expected
over the next few years. Other motive power application
markets the Group concentrating on is following the trend but
in a slower pace due to cost sensitive nature. However, the
result depends on the lead-acid batteries revolution whether
more cost effective with greater power density, lighter weight
and longer lifespan can successfully be commercialized.
Nevertheless, the Group is well prepared in both directions.
On one side, the first lithium factory is on the way for motive
power applications. On the other side, we have invested and
continued working with one of the revolutionary technology
company to make the commercialization of this advance
lead-acid production technology.
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Overseas Market

The Group is the top exporter in the PRC for lead acid
pbattery. During the Period, overseas sales reached
RMB3,373.7 million (2017: RMB3,075.5 million), a growth
rate of 9.7% as compared to the corresponding period of
last year. Leoch is a reputable brand at overseas markets
especially at the reserve power segment. Despite the fact
that the US-China trade war affected the demand in the
US market, the Group managed to achieve around 7.2%
growth in the region of America. Among the RMB298.2
million increment sales, around 67.1% was contributed in the
first half year of 2018 while only 22.9% was incurred in the
second half year of the Period. The abnormal high lead price
in the PRC hindered the growth momentum at the overseas
markets since most of the batteries were produced in the
PRC.

With a hope that the trade war could come to end in the
second quarter of 2019 and the gap between SMM and LME
lead price is back to normal, overseas demand will gradually
rise. Production volume in all overseas factories has been
back to normal since the start of 2019 and all overseas
factories are working towards its maximum designed
capacity. Within second and third quarter of 2019, the
Group’s two largest Vietnam factories might start to deliver
reserve power and SLI products. Above factors will positively
increase the Group’s oversea competitive power and sustain
our future growth at the overseas market.

The Group has concluded that more resources should be
put in to accelerate the business development and growth
in Europe for the next few years. The Group will continue
looking for opportunities for any business acquisition(s) in the
near future.
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Recycled Lead

Due to the PRC environment protection policy, the Chinese
recycling lead industry became an important component
of its lead industry. The newly implemented “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China” eliminated
those unqualified capacities because of higher environmental
protection standards in place. New policies and regulations
promote the regulatory development of the recycling lead
industry. The rectification of the industry has created a good
opportunity for lead-acid battery manufacturing enterprises to
enter upstream resource processing.

In 2018, the “structural reform” with stricter regulation and
more frequent environmental and safety inspections has
started to squeeze out smaller operators in favour of more
modern, larger plants using new technology to comply
with increasingly tough emissions standards. According to
January 2019 edition commodity market report published
by Wood Mackenzie, larger-scale smelters with annual
capacities of 100k tones of recycling lead or more are now
being built instead of smaller scale smelters. In Taihe county
of Anhui province, smelter with 200k tones per annum
capacity was under construction in December of 2018 while
smaller scale smelters with a total of around 400K tones
annum capacity were demolished in March of 2018 due to
environmental problems and other province like Henan and
Yunnan were also affected. The short-term disruption of
recycling supply caused the abnormal price hike starting in
May of 2018 and peaked in June of 2018 before it gradually
narrowed and backed to normal in January of 2019.
The reform process will provide structure to a previously
fragmented industry.
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In fact, our Group’s recycling joint venture factory benefited
from the “structural reform” and successfully increased the
allowed production capacity from 100k tones per annum
to 200k tones. The Group decided to commence with
the expansion of the factory’s production capacity and
enhance the factory’s environment protection facilities in
the third quarter of 2018. Base on the new production
capacity, potential annual sales can reach RMB4 billion
under full production and the plant is scheduled to resume
full production after the expansion being completed and
checked by Taihe County People’s Government in the
second quarter of 2019. The Group believes recycling
lead business will continue to be one of the major revenue
contributors with satisfactory results.

Financial Review

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s revenue
amounted to RMB9,544.4 million, representing a slight
increase of 0.8% compared to the year ended 31 December
2017. The profit for the year amounted to RMB127.1 million
for the year ended 2018 as compared to RMB271.5 million
for the year ended 2017, of which the profit attributable to
the owners of the parent amounted to RMB106.4 million
as compared to RMB242.9 million for the corresponding
period in 2017. Basic profit per share for the year ended 31
December 2018 was RMBO0.08.

Revenue

The Group’s revenue from battery business increased
by 5.3% from RMB7,661.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to RMB8,069.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2018.

The Group’s revenue from recycled lead products decreased
by 19.1% from RMB1,754.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 to RMB1,419.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 due to planned expansion
and enhancement of production facilities, resulting in the
reduction of output.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018

FE L AEENERAE THEA [HEEE] mE
& - BRSPS RFHEER EE1$100? B 3% 22200
TR REBERENR T~ \FE=FERE TH
HEE TE%‘E A8 N BeE TR E’ﬁ&ﬁ B o BERHNE
AR FHEBEZHAENS RTT@%E)\E
BaolET BEBEEAN S NEFE _FERT
D% TRk ﬁﬁfﬂ&?AEEﬁ(fﬁEZfélf BE2m|
A - AEEREE W RS R EENK AT B
BRE 2 — WEHS NREBHEE

BF %5 O R

HE-_ZT—)\F+A=1T—HLFE T&5EH
WA AR 4448 HEEBEZZ—tF
+ZA=1+—BILFER FF08% - HE-ZT—/\
FIUHFE AFEaMBARKI27T 188 ME
ECT+FIFEAARKEMSBET EEP!
NREB AERENBARBI064BE T =
—tFRBPAIABARE24295E L -BHE-T J\
FHZA=T—HALEFENEREREFNAAR
#0.087T

iz

AEESHEBREHEE_T—+tF+=A
=+—HUIFEMNAREET?661.38ETT & H15.3%
EHE_T-N\FE+_A=+—HILFEHAR
#8,069.1H & T °

REBRYHE RREHEEZE-T—+F+=A
:—I——EIJJ:EEE’U/\E@ﬁ,754.85%7@)&32/19.1%
EHE"ZT-N\F+A=1+—HLEFEMNAR
141018870 LR RFTEIER RSCE A ER
i B Y un s A



Management Discussion and Analysis EIEEsImm&R D

The revenue of reserve power batteries slightly decreased
by 5.1% from RMB4,674.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to RMB4,436.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. The revenue of SLI batteries increased
by 17.4% from RMB2,164.7 milion for the year ended 31
December 2017 to RMB2,542.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. The revenue of motive power batteries
increased by 75.4% from RMB497.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to RMB871.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. Details of the Group’s revenue for
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the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 by category HN —ZT—+F+ - A=+—HILFEREME
of batteries are set out below: RUE| 5 MU SRR A -
2018 2017
“E-0\f g 3
Percentage
Percentage increase/ Percentage
Revenue share (decrease) Revenue share
BRE/
Product category ERER Wi FEEA (R =) W#E Bl
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBEFT
Reserve power batteries HREMD 4,436,853 46.5% (5.1%) 4,674,185 49.4%
SLI batteries REE 2,542,113 26.6% 17.4% 2,164,669 22.9%
Motive power batteries gNED 871,582 9.1% 75.4% 497,012 5.3%
Others Hity 218,540 2.3% (32.9%) 325,477 3.4%
Sub-total NGt 8,069,088 84.5% 5.3% 7,661,343 81.0%
Recycling lead products B SHEE 1,419,052 14.9% (19.1%) 1,754,834 18.5%
Others Hity 56,278 0.6% 14.2% 49,267 0.5%
Total CEH 9,544,418 100% 0.8% 9,465,444 100%
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Geographically, the Group’s customers are principally located
in the PRC, the European Union, the United States and other
Asian countries/areas. The Group recorded different degrees
of growth in its sales in the United States, the European
Union, and other secondary market while sales in the PRC
and other Asian countries/areas decreased.

The Group’s sales revenue in the PRC decreased by 3.4%
from RMB6,389.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 to RMB6,170.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2018, representing 64.6% of the Group’s total
revenue (2017: 67.5%). This is combined result of 2.4%
increase in sales of battery from RMB4,585.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB4,695.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 and 19.1% decrease in
sales of recycling lead.

The Group’s sales revenue in the European Union and United
States increased by 20.4% and 7.2% from RMB902.9 million
and RMB895.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
to RMB1,087.1 million and RMB960.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018, respectively. The Group’s sales
revenue in other Asian countries/areas decreased by 10.3%
from RMB887.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 to RMB796.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2018. The Group’s sales revenue in other countries increased
by 36.0% from RMB389.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to RMB530.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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The following revenue information is based on the location of MU TFAHZ—FT—\FER-_ZT—+F+_A=1+—
the customers for the years ended 31 December 2018 and ~ H I FEIRE P FrEMI 2 DB kzEE R
2017
2018 2017
—E-N\f —E-tf
Percentage
Percentage increase/ Percentage
Revenue share (decrease) Revenue share
BRER/

Product category ERER Wi FEEAH (RD=E) k#E el

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETI AREFTT

PRC LEN 6,170,748 64.6% (3.4%) 6,389,915 67.5%
European Union B 1,087,103 11.4% 20.4% 902,930 9.5%
United States of America R ERE 960,332 10.1% 7.2% 895,555 9.5%
Other Asian countries/areas HiNER /1 796,309 8.3% (10.3%) 887,497 9.4%
Other countries HAbBIR 529,926 5.6% 36.0% 389,547 41%
Total Ch 9,544,418 100% 0.8% 9,465,444 100%
Cost of Sales HE KA
The Group’s cost of sales increased by 2.2% from ZAEBRHEEXRAREE—"T—+F+-_A=1+—

RMB8,302.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
to RMB8,489.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2018, mainly because of the increased lead price.

Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit decreased by 9.2% from
RMB1,162.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
to RMB1,055.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2018. The overall gross profit margin decreased from 12.3%
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to 11.1% for the
year ended 31 December 2018. Both gross profit margins
for battery business and lead recycling and manufacturing
business decreased during the Period. The decrease in
battery business was because the abnormal lead price hike
in the PRC cannot be fully transferred to customers while the
decrease in lead recycling and manufacturing business was
mainly due to less production during the second half year of
2018.
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Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains increased by 25.8% from RMB94.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB118.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 as a result of
increased government grants and insurance claims received
compensating the lack of exchange gains during the Period.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution costs increased by
11.3% from RMB367.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to RMB408.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2018, primarily due to the increase in staff costs,
freight charges and rental expenses as a result of the sale
network expansion and an acquisition of subsidiary in the
United Kingdom as well as increase in insurance expenses in
order to reduce the overseas credit risks during the Period.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased slightly
by 3.4% from RMB260.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to RMB269.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2018, mainly due to better control over the
administrative spending during the Period.

R&D Expenses

The development expenditure of the Group decreased
by 22.4% from RMB143.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to RMB111.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. The decrease in expenditure was
mainly due to the fact that most of expenditure relating to
development of new products carried out in 2017 were
capitalized in 2018.
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Other Expenses

The Group’s other expenses increased from RMB34.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB35.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, which mainly
comprised the foreign exchange loss of RMB28.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018, as compared to losses
caused by a fire accident on inventories and property, plant
and equipment of RMB28.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by 33.3% from
RMB151.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
RMB202.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2018,
mainly due to the increased interest hike during the Period.

Profit before Tax

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded
profit before tax of RMB143.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 as compared to RMB306.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased by 55.2% from RMB35.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to RMB15.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, mainly
because assessable profits from the lead-acid battery
business decreased while profit from the lead recycling and
remanufacturing business was not subject to tax during the
Period.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded
consolidated net profit of RMB127.1 million (2017:
RMB271.5 million) for the year ended 31 December 2018, of
which the Group recorded profit attributable to the owners of
the parent of RMB106.4 million (2017: RMB242.9 million) for
the same period.
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Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net current
assets of RMB718.3 million (2017: RMB209.9 million).
The Group’s current assets mainly consist of inventories,
trade receivables, debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, cash and bank balances,
prepayments, other receivables and other assets. The
Group’s current liabilities mainly consist of trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, and interest-bearing
bank borrowings.

Inventories

Inventories constituted one of the principal components
of the Group’s current assets. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group had inventories of RMB1,963.0 million (2017:
RMB1,872.3 million). Inventories increased slightly as a result
of strong shipments required in January of 2019.

Trade receivables

The Group’s trade receivables primarily related to receivables
for goods sold to its customers and mainly comprised
customers from the battery business. As at 31 December
2018, the Group had trade receivables of RMB2,424.7 million
(2017: RMB2,313.4 million). The slight increase in trade
receivables was in line with the increase in sales from the
battery business during the Period.

Prepayments, other receivables and other
assets

The Group’s prepayments mostly relate to the purchase
of raw materials. As at 31 December 2018, the Group
had prepayments, other receivables and other assets of
RMB186.7 million (2017: RMB174.4 million). The slight
increase in prepayments, other receivables and other assets
as compared to 2017 was primarily because the Group
increased its prepayments for raw materials in order to meet
the expected strong production and shipment requirements
in January of 2019.
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Trade and Bills Payables

The Group’s trade and bills payables primarily relate to its
purchase of raw materials for production. As at 31 December
2018, the Group had trade and bills payables of RMB2,001.7
million (2017: RMB1,665.2 million). The increase in trade and
bills payables was mainly due to longer credit period granted
by suppliers and more bills payables used for oversea
procurement of raw material during the Period.

Other Payables and Accruals

The Group’s other payables and accruals primarily consisted
of provision for social insurance and retirement benefits,
payments for its expenditures related to construction and
renovation of its production facilities, payments in connection
with transportation charges, contract liabilities, tax payables
other than current income tax liabilities and accruals for
payroll and benefits for its employees. As at 31 December
2018, the Group had other payables and accruals of
RMB777.4 million (2017: RMB706.5 million), the increase
was mainly due to increase in contract liabilities as a result of
better credit control over oversea customers.

Capital Expenditures
During the Period, the Group invested RMB296.2 million

(2017: RMB314.2 million) in property, plant and equipment
for its new production facilities.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s net current assets
amounted to RMB718.3 million (2017: RMB209.9 million),
among which cash and bank deposits amounted to
RMB987.4 million (2017: RMB941.2 million). As at 31
December 2018, the Group had bank borrowings of
RMB2,884.1 million (2017: RMB3,013.9 million), all of which
are interest-bearing. Except for borrowings of RMB712.8
million (2017: RMB109.3 million) which has a maturity over
one year, all of the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable
within one year. The Group’s borrowings were denominated
in RMB, US dollars, HK dollars, Singapore dollars, Malaysian
ringgits and Great Britain Pound, and the effective interest
rates of which as of 31 December 2018 were 1.50% to
8.32% (2017: 1.50% to 7.53%).

A portion of the Group’s bank borrowings was secured
by pledges over certain assets of the Group including
property, plant and equipment, leasehold lands, deposits and
trade and bills receivables. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group’s gearing ratio was 31.9% (2017: 34.9%), which was
calculated by dividing total borrowings by total assets as at
the end of each respective period, multiplied by 100%.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operated primarily in the PRC. For the Group’s
companies in the PRC, their principal activities were
transacted in RMB. For other companies outside of
the PRC, their principal activities were transacted in US
dollars. However, as a result of the Group’s revenue being
denominated in RMB, the conversion into foreign currencies
in connection with payments is subject to regulatory
restrictions on currency conversion in the PRC. The value
of the RMB against the US dollars and other currencies
may fluctuate and is affected by, among other things,
change in the political and economic conditions in the PRC.
The Group’s product sales adopted a price mechanism
by which the currency fluctuation is basically transferred
to the customers, but the Group’s foreign currency trade
receivables may still be exposed to risk in the credit period.

Material Acquisition and Disposal

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiary,
associated company or joint venture by the Group during the
Period.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had around 13,288
employees. Employee benefit expenses (including directors’
remuneration), which comprised wages and salaries,
performance-related bonuses, equity-settled share option
expenses and retirement benefit scheme contributions,
totaled RMB838.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: RMB799.0 million).

The Group has a share option scheme for selected
participants as incentive and reward for their contribution to
the Group. A mandatory provident fund scheme and local
retirement benefit schemes are also in effect. The Group
encourages employees to receive continuing education
and training to strengthen their work skills and for personal
development. The Group also provides workshops for
staff at different levels to enhance their knowledge of work
safety and to build up team spirit. Staff are rewarded based
on performance of the Group as well as on individual
performance and contribution.
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Executive Directors

DONG Li (%), aged 52, is an executive director,
chairman of the Board and nomination committee, a member
of the remuneration committee and founder of the Company.
Mr. Dong has been appointed as executive director since 27
April 2010, the date of the incorporation of our Company.
Mr. Dong is a controlling shareholder of the Company. He is
also one of the authorised representatives of the Company
and serving as director for various subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Dong also serves as director for various private wholly
owned companies which include investment holding and
manufacturing enterprise.

Mr. Dong obtained an EMBA degree from National University
of Singapore in 2015. Mr. Dong graduated from Xi’an
International Studies College, the predecessor of Xi’an
International Studies University, in 1990 with a Bachelor of
Arts degree and Northwest Textile University of Science and
Technology, the predecessor of Xi'an Polytechnic University,
in 1988 with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering.

Mr. Dong also holds the positions of part-time professor
of Shanghai University and visiting professor of the Xi'an

Polytechnic University.

Mr. Dong personally did not hold any share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2018.
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YIN Haiyan, aged 43, is an executive director and chief
executive officer of the Company. Ms. Yin has been
appointed as executive director since 30 July 2018.

Ms. Yin graduated from JiangSu University of Science and
Technology with a degree in Accounting.

Ms. Yin joined the Group in 2004 as manager of the finance
department. She was subsequently promoted to deputy
general manager of administration department, general
manager, vice president of finance department, president,
and finally to her current position, in which her responsibilities
focus on strategic planning and policy development and
make recommendations for the Board’s consideration, and
leading the management in the day-to-day running of the
Group’s business in accordance with the business plans and
within the budgets approved by the Board.

Ms. Yin is currently the representative of the 14th National
People’s Congress of Jinhu County, Jiangsu Province, China
and the 8th National People’s Congress of Huai’an City.

Ms. Yin personally held 450,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2018.
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Independent Non-executive
Directors

CAO Yixiong Alan (B 78 ) , aged 50, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director, chairman of the
audit committee and a member of remuneration committee
of the Company since 14 October 2010.

Mr. Cao holds a Bachelor's degree in Accounting from
Sonoma State University and an MBA degree from the
Anderson School of the University of California, Los Angeles.
He worked at the auditing department of Coopers &
Lybrand between 1993 and 1996, and obtained his CPA
license (California, United States) in 1996. From 1997 to
2002, he worked at J.P. Morgan and Merrill Lynch in their
respective private banking divisions. Since 2002, he has
been the Executive Director of Etech Capital, a subsidiary
of Etech Securities, Inc., responsible for its Greater China
private equity advisory business. He is also currently the
Chief Executive Officer, Director and Founding Partner of
Shanghai Great Wall Etech Capital Management Company,
a joint venture between China Great Wall Asset Management
Company, one of the largest Chinese asset management
companies, and Etech Group. Mr. Cao is also currently the
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of Chongging Tongli
Heavy Machinery Manufacturing Co., LTD.

Mr. Cao personally held 300,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2018.
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LAU Chi Kit (8|5 #t) , aged 74, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director, the chairman of
the remuneration committee, a member of the nomination
committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company since 17 September 2014.

He retired from The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (‘HSBC”) in December 2000 after more
than 35 years’ of service. Among the senior positions in
HSBC, he was the Assistant General Manager and Head
of Personal Banking Hong Kong and Assistant General
Manager and Head of Strategic Implementation, Asia-
Pacific Region. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers (“Institute”). He was the chairman of the Institute’s
Executive Committee (from January 1999 to December
2000) and is currently an Honorary Advisor of the Institute’s
Executive Committee. He served as a member on a number
of committees appointed by the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administration Region, including the Advisory Council
on the Environment (from October 1998 to December 2001),
the Advisory Committee on Human Resources Development
in the Financial Services Sector (from June 2000 to May
2001), the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (from January
2000 to December 2003), the Environment and Conservation
Fund Committee (from August 2000 to October 2006), the
Innovation and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects
Vetting Committee (from January 2000 to December 2004)
and the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee
(from February 1990 to March 2006). He also served as
Chairman of the Business Environment Council Ltd. (from
September 1998 to December 2001).
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Currently, he is also an executive director of Chinlink
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 997) and is an
independent non executive director of Royale Furniture
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1198), Century Sunshine
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 509), Janco Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8035), Hin Sang Group (International)
Holding Co Ltd (stock code: 6893). The shares of Chinlink
International Holdings Limited, Royale Furniture Holdings
Limited, Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited, Hin Sang
Group (International) Holding Co Ltd, are listed on the Main
Board and Janco Holdings Limited on the GEM Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. He retired from Hua Long Jin
Kong Company Limited (formerly known as Highlight China
IOT International Limited) (stock code: 1682) as an executive
director in 2017.

Mr. Lau personally held 300,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2018.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018

BRI AL ER S BERIZERER DA (AR :
Q7)) ZHITEEREHARMIZERBR AR (BRH
5% :1198) ~ BB REIERER AT (RHK
5% :509) - EEm TR AR AR (ARMDA5E :8035)
EOTHESEE (BB ERER A A (RO :
6893) Z IEITE S - LIEF S HFIERER AR
SHRMMEBRBR AT LG R EBIER AR A
AIMRSTAERE (BRR) iﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬁzw"#iﬁ;‘%
BERSIARARER LT BeERARA
FAGEM 7 ?&Bﬁ_g—t¢L1¢ﬂ??%$%Tﬁ?ﬁ§
AR AR (AR EYBHAEREREERA
7)) (BRI R5% - 1682) RIK -

BHEe—_ZT—)\F+-A=1+—8 8%LLE@AES
300,000 2K~ &) B B I A o



Directors and Senior Management EEK SR EEE

Mr. LIU Yangsheng (2[5 %) , aged 72, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director and a member of the
audit committee as well as the nomination committee on 14
October 2010.

Mr. Liu studied wireless communications at Beijing College of
Posts and Telecommunications, the predecessor of Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications, from 1965 to
1970.

After that, he worked at Beijing College of Posts and
Telecommunications for more than 10 years until 1984. Mr.
Liu joined the Ministry of Posts and Telecommunications,
the predecessor of Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology, in 1984, and served as the director of the cadre
members department. He served as deputy director of
human resources department of Department of the Ministry
of Posts and Telecommunications in 1990 and then he
served as director of the human resources department of
the Information Business Department, the predecessor of
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, in 1995. Mr.
Liu retired from the Ministry of Information Industry in 2007.
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology is responsible
for the overall management such as promulgation of
industry policies and strategies, implementation of laws and
regulations, and assessment for approvals and permits of the
telecommunication industry in the PRC which covers aspects
of telecommunication equipment such as telecommunication
batteries. Therefore, during his time with Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology and its predecessor, Mr. Liu
had the experience in working in the telecommunication
battery area. Mr. Liu is now the chairman of Cosmos Posts
& Telecommunications International Leasing Co., Ltd. (325
MEBHEHEEGR A A)) and a supervisor of Viton Wireless
Technology AG, a company listed on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange (stock code: CHEN99).

Mr. Liu personally held 300,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2018.
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Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary

Mr. CHOW Kam Keung Albert, aged 54, joined the Company
as chief financial officer and company secretary in 1
November 2015.

Mr. Chow has over 31 years of experience in accounting,
auditing, tax, information system, corporate finance and
management. Prior to joining the Company, he had held
various senior positions with public companies listed in Hong
Kong which mostly are manufacturing enterprises. Mr. Chow
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration with
double majors in Accounting and Management Information
Systems in 1986 and a Master’s degree in Accounting in
1987 from the University of Hawaii in the United States. He
is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a CFA charter holder and a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together
with the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 which have been audited by the
Company’s auditor Ernst & Young and reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company.

Principal Activities and
Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2018 are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

Key Risks and Uncertainties

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business operations
of the Group may affect the Group’s financial conditions
or growth prospects. The Group has been focusing on
the control of risks and uncertainties with the aim of
understanding and addressing the concerns of stakeholders.
Key risk factors and uncertainties affecting the Group are
outlined below:

1) Our revenue is substantially derived from batteries using
lead-acid technology. If the lead-acid battery market
does not grow at the rate we expect or at all, or if lead-
acid technology is replaced by another technology,
our business, profitability and future prospects may be
materially and adversely affected;
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The recent array of tariffs against numerous countries
by the US government, any global economic downturn,
or changes in the economic, political and social
conditions in the PRC may have an adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects;

If we are unable to successfully develop new
technology or new products, our business, results of
operations and prospects may be adversely affected;

We derive a significant portion of our income
from our major customers, particularly UPS and
telecommunications customers, and we have no long-
term sales contracts with our customers. Our results of
operations could be adversely affected if we lose these
customers;

We face intense competition in our major markets and
continuing pressure to reduce our production costs to
remain price competitive;

Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials, such as
lead, could materially and adversely affect our results of
operations; in addition, we rely on our major suppliers
for our primary raw materials. Our operations could be
affected if our major suppliers are not able to supply
raw materials as scheduled. More information on
our major suppliers is set out on page 69 under the
heading “Major Suppliers and Customers” of the Report
of Directors.

These factors are not exhaustive or comprehensive, and
there may be other risks in addition to those shown above
which are not known to the Group or which may not be
material now but could become material in the future.
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Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 103 and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 104 to 105.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of 2.0 HK cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: Nil) to the shareholders of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company
as at 5 June 2019. Subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, the said final dividend will be paid to the
Company’s shareholders on or about 5 July 2019.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the year and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development,
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing
and an analysis of the performance of the Group during the
year using key financial performance indicators are set out in
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 12 to 37 of the annual report.

Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are set out below:
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Environmental Policies and
Performance (Environmental
Protection)

The Group is committed to safety and environmental
protection and has implemented stringent environment
protection policies to uphold high standards of operating
practices.

Pursuant to the applicable environmental laws and
regulations in PRC, the Group installed environmental
protection equipment in all of our production facilities for
the removal of lead dust and particles generated during
our production process in order to minimize the amount
of pollutants in the air. The equipment includes ventilation
systems, dust absorbing and removing systems, acidic mist
and lead fumes purifying machines and fresh air pipelines.

The Group installed waste water treatment facilities at our
production facilities. The water treatment facility neutralizes
the waste water and removes its lead content in accordance
with the applicable environmental standards in PRC. At our
Zhaoqging and Anhui production facilities, the purified water
is collected and reused in our production process, thus
achieving “zero discharge”.

Our PRC factories management constantly control and
monitor the waste level. Monitoring systems that provide
ontime reading are connected to local government authorities
in charge of environment protection for real-time monitoring
purpose.

During the reporting period, the Group provided sufficient
resources to upgrade and enhance the level of environmental
protection. Four factories of the Group in the PRC have
passed the environment protection inspection in 2018 and
entered the list of approval of industry access inspection
released by the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

Compliance procedure are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those
with a significant impact on the Group. The Group holds
high standards of operating practices and complies with the
relevant standards. The Group has stringent requirements
to maintain high levels of quality control and responsible
business practices. Any changes in the applicable laws,
rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant
employees and relevant operation units on a timely basis to
ensure that adjustments are made in our procedures and
operations to reflect such changes.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

Relationship with Employees, Suppliers and
Customers

The Group believes that employees are important assets
and provides competitive remuneration packages to
attract and retain employees. The management regularly
reviews the Group’s remuneration to its employees to be
up to prevailing market standards. Furthermore, the Group
provides employee training programs to polish their skills
and knowledge and a number of staff activities to enhance
employees’ sense of belonging and to help create a friendly
and harmonious working environment.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulffil
its long-term goals and development. To maintain its brand
competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims at
delivering services of consistently high standards of quality
to its customers. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.
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Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 108 to 109 of the
annual report and in note 46 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 33 to the financial
statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2018, the reserves of the Company
available for distribution to shareholders amounted to
approximately RMB1,221.1 million (2017: approximately
RMB1,351.5 million).

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results of the Group and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 303 to 304 of this
annual report.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Directors

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. DONG Li (Chairman)

Ms. YIN Haiyan (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 30 July 2018)

Ms. ZHAO Huan (resigned on 6 August 2018)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY
(passed away on 22 September 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. LIU Yangsheng

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan
Mr. LAU Chi Kit
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In accordance with the Articles of Association, Ms. YIN
Haiyan, Mr. LIU Yangsheng and Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election, at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Permitted Indemnity

Subject to the applicable laws, every director and other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur in the execution and discharge of his or her duties
or in relation thereto pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2018 and remained
in force as of the date of this report.

The Group has also taken out and maintained directors’
liability insurance throughout the year.
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Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management members of the Group are set out on pages 38
to 44 in the annual report of the Company.

Changes in Information of Directors

The Company is not notified of any changes in the Directors’
information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management members of the Group was based on
qualifications, years of experiences and the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed regularly.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and five highest
paid employees are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements
about the Company’s share option schemes, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

Directors Interest in Transaction,
Arrangement or Contract of
Significance

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance, to which the Company, any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or an entity connected with a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of or at any time during the year, nor
had there been any contract of significance entered into
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Directors’ Interests and Short EERROHEZRAE

Positions in Shares

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positons R-Z—N\F+_A=+—H ARAEELTE
of each Director and chief executives of the Company in the  1THA B&BNAR s LA AR (FER
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or &% K EAE1&HI EXVER) B0 ~ IHREI D M &5+
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part A 8 A ARA RIR 1B 5 5 M HA S 1501 5536215 1F
XV of the SFO) which as recorded in the register required to & 2 B0 MEIEZS AR  siiRE E R BIFE
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO; oras  FMEITAZERETESR HHIZESTH ([{E%
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange =PRI )ZBER1TAE AR QB MBI ATHIRE RS MK B
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by — #A T :

Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in the

Listing Rules were as follows:

Number and Number and
class of securities class of securities
subject to options subject to options

granted under the granted under Approximate
Number and Pre-IPO Share the Share Option percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest class of securities” Option Scheme Scheme Total shareholding”
ZREER
RERENBRE ZREBRETE
SHERENERE RUNBRE
FRNESHE ki ESHE
ESHE ERME REUERER REH RER &it BABREILD
Mr. DONG Li Interested of controlled corporation 1,007,059,0001" (L) - - 1,007,059,000 74.18%
R REEENEE
Ms. YIN Haiyan (appointed on 30 July 2018)  Beneficial Owner - 150,000 (L) 300,000 (L) 450,000 0.03%
Miggat ERBEAA
(RZB-NFLA=TREZE)
Mr. LIU Yangsheng Beneficial Owner - - 300,000 (L) 300,000 0.02%
AGE R ERBAA
Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan Beneficial Owner - - 300,000 (L) 300,000 0.02%
BERE ERBAA
Mr. LAU Chi Kit Beneficial Owner - - 300,000 (L) 300,000 0.02%
B Grs ERBAA
* The letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the — * [LIREBRREABRDFHOITE -
Shares.
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Mr. DONG Li is deemed to be interested in 1,007,059,000
shares held by Master Alliance Investment Limited, a company
wholly owned by Mr. DONG Li.

Ms. YIN Haiyan has been granted options for 150,000 shares
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Please see below
section headed “Share Option” for further details of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme.

Ms. YIN Haiyan has been granted options for 300,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see below section
headed “Share Option” below for further details of the Share
Option Scheme.

Mr. LIU Yangsheng has been granted options for 300,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see below section
headed “Share Option” for further details of the Share Option
Scheme.

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan has been granted options for 300,000
shares under the Share Option Scheme. Please see below
section headed “Share Option” for further details of the Share
Option Scheme.

Mr. LAU Chi Kit has been granted options for 300,000 shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see below section
headed “Share Option” for further details of the Share Option
Scheme.

This is based on the 1,357,521,666 Shares in issue as at 31
December 2018.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none
of the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, nor had there been any grant or exercise of
rights of such interests during the year ended 31 December
2018.

Share Option
A. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 25 May 2010, the
Company approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentive or reward to selected
participants for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and
enabling the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e.
options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
as at 31 December 2018 was 14,253,000 shares
(representing approximately 1.0% of the Company’s
total issued share capital as at that date). No further
options will be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements.
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B. Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 14 October 2010
(as amended at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 18 May 2018), the Company
approved and adopted another share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentive or reward to selected participants
for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of, the Company and for such
other purposes as the Board may approve from time
to time. The number of shares which may be issued
pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e. options
which have been granted but not yet lapsed or
exercised) under the Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2018 was 23,364,000 shares (representing
approximately 1.7% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at that date).

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in note 34
to the financial statements.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares

B. BREE

BRIBEARARZERENR-_Z—ZTF+ A+
HBBEN—EHEEARR (RARBIEZT
—N\FRATNBRITHBRRAFRE L&
1B3T) » AR A& KRN S — TEIERR HERT 2
((BRETE)  AEEN2EERESE
S E®R ABEMPIAARRARMNFSERE
BRI BN AR AR EE S TEHLED
HiAg - R \F+_A=+—H R
BRI EIE T 2 W ARITEEARE (BIE
BB ARIBEI T 2 B /] FE1T2
i 15 €1 B £23,364,0000% (FE R ARG RE
HE B EBEITRRAL1.7%)

FERHE T BBV S B0 B F5 SRR BT REAMER -

~

TERRNROEZR AR

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the Directors, R-Z—/\F+_-_A=+—H BEEEHMH T
the following persons (other than the Directors and chief AL (TEEARAEZEREBITRAE)BHH
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have, 1RIERAR B MARREI B # A RIEES M
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying — HAEEHIZEXVEREFE2 K37 BREX AR AN A KBRS
shares of the Company which were required to be disclosed — FT# 52 sk sl 8 AN A RIR 15 35 5 K HA & 1551 55336
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the (§FERZERRMAEEIOAR

provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or

which were recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding?

BAZRBE DL

Number and class
of securities”

&EEHERER"

Nature of Interest

BEEME

Name of Shareholder

BREH

Beneficial Owner 1,007,059,000 (L) 74.18%

BEamEAA

Master Alliance Investment Limited

* The Letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the — * [L]IREBEABRDFP TR -

shares of the Company.
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Notes:

(1) Master Alliance Investment Limited is a company wholly owned
by Mr. DONG Li, an executive Director.

(2)  This is based on the 1,357,521,666 Shares in issue as at 31
December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2018, the
Directors were not aware of any other person (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had, or
was deemed to have, interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which were required to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Connected Transactions

Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements, some of which also
constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above-mentioned transactions. The
continuing connected transactions entered into by the Group
in 2018, which were required to be disclosed under the
Listing Rules, are set out as follows:
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Continuing connected transaction which A.

is exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement, but
subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements

Leases with Mr. Dong Li and his associates

The Company and Mr. DONG Li (our controlling
shareholder and executive Director holding
approximately 74.18% of the issued share capital of the
Company and thus a connected person) entered into a
new master leasing agreement dated 21 March 2016
(the “2016 Master Leasing Agreement”’). Pursuant
to the 2016 Master Leasing Agreement, members
of the Group will lease from Mr. DONG Li and/or his
associates properties for the use by members of the
Group. Individual tenancy agreement has been entered
into between members of the Group and Mr. DONG
Li and/or his associates with respect to the leasing
arrangement of individual leased property. The 2016
Master Leasing Agreement is for a term of three years
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018. Upon
expiry of the term, the 2016 Master Leasing Agreement
will, subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules,
be renewed for further period of three years by mutual
agreement. The annual caps for the transactions under
the 2016 Master Leasing Agreement for each of the
three years ended 31 December 2018 have been set
at RMB3.5 million, RMB3.5 million and RMB3.5 million,
respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2018
the aggregate rent paid by the Group under the 2016
Master Leasing Agreement was approximately RMB3.0
million.
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Report of the Directors EEEiRE

The Company and Mr. DONG Li renewed the 2016
master leasing agreement and entered into a new
master leasing agreement dated 15 February 2019 and
supplemented on 6 March 2019 (the “2019 Master
Leasing Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2019 Master
Leasing Agreement, members of the Group will lease
from Mr. DONG Li and/or his associates properties for
the use by members of the Group. Individual tenancy
agreement has been entered into between members
of the Group and Mr. DONG Li and/or his associates
with respect to the leasing arrangement of individual
leased property. The 2019 Master Leasing Agreement
is for a term of three years from 1 January 2019 to
31 December 2021. Upon expiry of the term, the
2019 Master Leasing Agreement will, subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, be renewed for
further period of three years by mutual agreement. The
annual caps for the transactions under the 2019 Master
Leasing Agreement for each of the three years ending
31 December 2021 have been set at RMB14.4 million,
nil and nil, respectively.
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Continuing connected transaction

subject to the reporting, announcement,
annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements

()

Sales of Products to Connected Persons

The Company and Mr. DONG Li entered into a
new master agreement dated 13 October 2015
(the “2015 Master Sales Agreement”’), which
sets out the terms and conditions upon which
members of the Group will sell to Mr. DONG Li's
associates, and Mr. DONG Li's associates will
purchase from members of the Group, products
including lead acid batteries, mainly start lighting
and ignition batteries, reserve power batteries
and motive power batteries, and related parts.
The products to be sold and purchased under
the 2015 Master Sales Agreement shall be at
the prevailing market price, namely, the price at
which the same type of products is sold by us to
independent third parties on normal commercial
terms in the ordinary course of business in the
PRC. The 2015 Master Sales Agreement is
for a term of three years commencing from 1
January 2016 and ended on 31 December 2018.
Upon expiry of the term, the 2015 Master Sales
Agreement will, subject to the requirements
of the Listing Rules, be renewed for further
period of three years by mutual agreement. The
annual caps for the transactions under the 2015
Master Sales Agreement for each of the three
years ended 31 December 2018 have been set
at RMB100.0 million, RMB150.0 million and
RMB200.0 million respectively. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount
received by the Group under the 2015 Master
Sales Agreement was approximately RMB101.7
million.
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Report of the Directors EEEiRE

The Company and Mr. DONG Li renewed the
2015 Master Sales Agreement and entered into a
new master agreement dated 16 October 2018
(the “2018 Master Sales Agreement’), which
sets out the terms and conditions upon which
members of the Group will sell to Mr. DONG Li’s
associates, and Mr. DONG Li's associates will
purchase from members of the Group, products
including lead acid batteries, mainly start lighting
and ignition batteries, reserve power batteries
and motive power batteries, and related parts.
The products to be sold and purchased under
the 2018 Master Sales Agreement shall be at
the prevailing market price, namely, the price at
which the same type of products is sold by us to
independent third parties on normal commercial
terms in the ordinary course of business in
the PRC. The 2018 Master Sales Agreement
is for a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2019 and ending on 31 December
2021. Upon expiry of the term, the 2018 Master
Sales Agreement will, subject to the requirements
of the Listing Rules, be renewed for further
period of three years by mutual agreement. The
annual caps for the transactions under the 2018
Master Sales Agreement for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2021 have been
set at RMB138.0 million, RMB172.0 million and
RMB215.0 million respectively.
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(i)

Purchase of Products from Connected Persons

The Company and Mr. DONG Li entered into a
new master agreement dated 13 October 2015
(the “2015 Master Purchase Agreement’),
which sets out the terms and conditions upon
which members of the Group will purchase from
Mr. DONG Li's associates, and Mr. DONG Li’s
associates will sell to members of the Group,
products including battery cases, parts, models,
chargers and electronic products (for the
manufacturing of the Group’s battery products
or sale as accessories of the Group’s battery
products) and electric scooters (for use by
members of the Group). The products to be sold
and purchased under the 2015 Master Purchase
Agreement shall be at the prevailing market
price, namely, the price at which the same type
of products is sold to the Group by independent
third parties on normal commercial terms in the
ordinary course of business in the PRC. The 2015
Master Purchase Agreement is for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2016 and
ended on 31 December 2018. Upon expiry of
the term, the 2015 Master Purchase Agreement
will, subject to the requirements of the Listing
Rules, be renewed for further period of three years
by mutual agreement. The annual caps for the
transactions under the 2015 Master Purchase
Agreement for each of the three years ended
31 December 2018 have been set at RMB40.0
million, BRMB50.0 million and BMB60.0 million,
respectively. For the year ended 31 December
2018, the aggregate amount paid by the Group
under the 2015 Master Purchase Agreement was
approximately RMB8.4 million.
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Report of the Directors EEEiRE

The Company and Mr. DONG Li renewed the
2015 master agreement and entered into a
new master agreement dated 16 October 2018
(the “2018 Master Purchase Agreement”),
which sets out the terms and conditions upon
which members of the Group will purchase
from Mr. DONG Li's associates, and Mr. DONG
Li's associates will sell to members of the
Group, products including battery cases, parts,
models, chargers and electronic products for the
manufacturing of the Group’s battery products
or sale as accessories of the Group’s battery
products. The products to be sold and purchased
under the 2018 Master Purchase Agreement
shall be at the prevailing market price, namely,
the price at which the same type of products is
sold to the Group by independent third parties
on normal commercial terms in the ordinary
course of business in the PRC. The 2018 Master
Purchase Agreement is for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2019 and ending on
31 December 2021. Upon expiry of the term, the
2018 Master Purchase Agreement will, subject to
the requirements of the Listing Rules, be renewed
for further period of three years by mutual
agreement. The annual caps for the transactions
under the 2018 Master Purchase Agreement for
each of the three year ending 31 December 2021
have been set at RMB41.0 million, RMB55.0
million and RMB72.0 million respectively.
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The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions
under paragraphs (A) and (B) above and
confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group;

(2)  normal commercial terms or better; and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transaction on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued its unqualified letter
containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group above in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Board confirms that the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in relation to the aforementioned continuing
connected transactions.
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Disclosure under Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules

Pursuant to the terms of a loan facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement”) dated 8 May 2017 and entered into,
among other parties, the Company as borrower, five of its
subsidiaries as guarantors, China Citic Bank International
Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited and The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited as mandated lead
arrangers and bookrunners, and various financial institutions
as lenders, a term loan facility of US$200,000,000 (the
“Loan”) was made available to the Group for general
corporate purposes including, but not limited to financing
working capital and refinancing or full repayment of existing
indebtedness due under the term and revolving facility made
available to the Group in 2015.

The Loan is repayable in five instalments as to 10%, 10%,
10%, 20% and 50% on the dates falling 12, 18, 24, 30 and
36 months respectively after the utilisation date of the Loan.

If, among other matters: (i) Mr. Dong Li (“Mr. Dong”) does not
or ceases to own, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of the
beneficial interest in the Company carrying at least 51% of
the voting right, free from any security; (i) Mr. Dong does not
or ceases to have management control over the Company;
and (i) Mr. Dong is not or ceases to be the chairman of
the Board of Directors of the Company, it will be an event
of default under the Facility Agreement, in which event all
or any part of the commitments under the Loan may be
cancelled and all amounts outstanding under the Loan may
immediately become due and payable.

B EmRAE13.21K 2R E
EB 2 &

RiER (AP eE) ARG (FEAERA) ERM
M AE (TERERA) -HERT (BB ARA
A BARITERARIRES LSELIRITARA
A (EAREEETHARESEEAN)URET
SREE (EABRBAR-_E—EF A AN\BE]
VHESRRE R ([MERRE]) 2G50 A5 EE
$200,000,000 TR E BIEHK @ E (BRI ) 1E—
BARIAR  BIEETRABNEEES RERE
YERBEEAEEAR T —AFESHNTEHRER
BVETE T RN A ERS -

ZEFHRHEE  SRIREABEERI2EA -
181& A ~24(& A - 301 A X36E A E BEEEFRZ
10% ~ 10%  10% * 20% K250% °

fid (AR ERE) (1 EF AL ([EEE]) WEXTH
A (BESER) AAREDS1 % EaiiEn (B
MZ=EDB1%IRZRE) (MHHEMER) @ (FEXLE
W EK A BREERNR AN EIREHE: RHELLE
WESTBHEARRNEETSLF AR HEAR
BEE T IRENFE EIERT  BERE
EEPSMEAB D AFES AT BEHUR - MERATA R
B8 & RA ] BERC A BN 2 HAFE AT -

BLEBRRMERAIA | —F\FFH

67



68

Report of the Directors EEEIRE

Directors’ Interest in Competing
Business

On 21 December 2010, each of Mr. DONG Li (also being an
executive Director) and Master Alliance Investment Limited
(collectively the “Controlling Shareholders”), entered into a
deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”)
with the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company and
each member of the Group that, among other things, he/
it procures that his/its associates will not engage, directly or
indirectly, in businesses which will or may compete with the
business carried on or to be carried on by the Group.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided an annual
declaration on his/its compliance with the undertakings
contained in the Deed of Non-Competition undertaken by
them.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
were satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders has
complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31
December 2018, none of the Directors or any of their
respective associates is considered to have interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is
stipulated by the Directors on the basis of the employees’
relevant experience, responsibility and qualifications.

The emolument policy for the Directors of the Group is
determined by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major largest suppliers are as follows:

9.8%
32.7%

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers in aggregate

The percentages of sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

10.8%
22.6%

— the largest customer
— five largest customers in aggregate

None of the Directors, their respective close associates
(within meaning of the Listing Rules) or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these
major suppliers and customers.
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Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed:

U)

from Tuesday 21 May 2019, to Friday 24 May 2019,
(both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining
Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, during which period no transfer of Shares will
be registered. In order to be eligible to attending and
vote at the AGM, Shareholders should ensure that all
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 20 May 2019; and

from Monday, 3 June 2019 to Wednesday, 5 June
2019 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of
determining shareholders’ entitlement to receive the
final dividend, during which period no transfer of Shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for receiving the
final dividend, Shareholders should ensure that all
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited. at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 31 May 2019.
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Events after the Reporting Period

As from 31 December 2018 to the date of this annual report,
save as disclosed herein, the Board is not aware of any
significant events that have occurred which require disclosure
herein.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
there was sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as at the date of this report.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

There has been no change in the auditor of the Company in
the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

DONG Li
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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Corporate Governance Report

CEEARE

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

Compliance Statements

The Company has complied with the required standards set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

The details of the compliance of the Company with the code
provisions and mandatory disclosure requirements set out in
the CG Code are shown below.

Mandatory Disclosure
Requirements

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board will continue to review its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that the regulatory
requirements and principles, such as “comply or explain”
regarding the code provisions of the CG Code and
mandatory disclosure requirements set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules, are met and the corporate governance
practices of the Company are in line with expectations of the
shareholders and investors.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company had complied with
all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code and
Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2018.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Company (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the
code for dealing in securities of the Company by its directors
(the “Directors”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and
all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and its
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

The Board comprises two executive Directors, namely Mr.
DONG Li (chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)) and Ms.
YIN Haiyan (chief executive officer) and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan, Mr.
LIU Yangsheng and Mr. LAU Chi Kit.

Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY, who was a non-executive
Director of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2018, has passed away on 22 September 2018.

The name of each Director, as at the date of this report is
set out under the section headed “Corporate Information”
in this annual report and is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules from time to time. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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There is no relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship(s)) among the Directors.

Number of Board, Committee and General Meetings Held

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
Additional meetings are held when significant events or
important issues are required to be discussed and resolved.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, 15
Board meetings, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 2 Nomination
Committee meetings, 2 Remuneration Committee meetings
and 2 general meeting were held.
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Attendance at the Board Meetings, Board Committee EFEEE ZEE28ZRREASHILEIGR
Meetings and General Meeting

The attendance of each Director, by name, at the Board ®JEZEHFEEZeeH =228 HMK
meetings, Board committee meetings and general meeting A& HIIEN (IREZ ) &0
are set out below:

7

Attendance/ Attendance/ Attendance/
Attendance/ Number of Number of Number of  Attendance/

Number of Audit  Nomination Remuneration Number of
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Director Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting"

HERE,/ HERY/ HERE/ HEREBS  HERE/
Exe EBHZEE REZEE FHzES YN

B g1 1 228 E 4 ga
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. DONG Li Eey it 13/15 - 2/2 2/2 1/2
Ms. YIN Haiyan @ El)sE 3 g 9/15 - - - 1/2
Ms. ZHAO Huan @ BT 5/15 - - - 0/2
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Philip Armstrong Phiip Armstrong

NOZNESKY @ NOZNESKY % A4 4/15 - - - 1/2

Independent Non-executive ~ BIEHITES

Directors
Mr. LIU Yangsheng GExE 7/15 2/2 2/2 - 1/2
Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan EIMERE 7/15 2/2 - 2/2 2/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit ARGEE 7/15 2/2 2/2 2/2 2/2
Notes: B &E -

(1) Being the annual general meeting of the Company held on (1) BIAQARR-Z—N\FHA+/\HETHEREESF
18 May 2018 and the extraordinary general meeting of the RERARFNRZZF-NF+_A=ARTHRRE
Company held on 3 December 2018. HRIKE -

(2)  Ms. YIN Haiyan was appointed as an executive director of the  (2) ElNEMZtTR T \F+tA=-Z+HEZETALR
Company on 30 July 2018. RIEITE S

(3)  Ms. ZHAO Huan resigned as an executive director of the (3) HELZETWN -_Z—NENANBHEHIEARFRITE
Company on 6 August 2018. Fo

(4)  Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY ceased to act as a non-  (4)  Philip Armstrong NOZNESKYZ AR —Z — )\ F 1L
executive director of the Company on 22 September 2018. A+t ZHEEERRBIFEHITES-
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for leadership
and control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The Board
has delegated to the senior management the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation
of the Group. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees
various authority and duties set out in their respective
terms of reference. All Directors have carried out their
duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and coordinating day-to-day operation and management
of the Company in accordance with the management
strategies and plans approved by the Board, formulating and
monitoring the operating and production plans and budgets,
and supervising and monitoring the control system.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors possess
different business experience, knowledge and professional
background. The Company has at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of its Board members with
at least one of them possessing appropriate professional
quallifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation
regarding the independence from each independent non-
executive Director pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

The independent non-executive Directors have been invited
to serve on the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
‘“Nomination Committee”). Through participation in
Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving on
Board committees, all independent non-executive Directors
make various contributions to the effective direction of the

Company.
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Directors’ Training

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Directors have been given relevant guideline
materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest
changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements
in relation to the Company’s businesses, and to refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties as a
director of a listed company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, all Directors
provided their records of training to the Company. All
Directors, namely Mr. DONG Li, Ms. YIN Haiyan (appointed
on 30 July 2018), Ms. ZHAO Huan (resigned on 6 August
2018), Mr. Philip Armstrong NOZNESKY (passed away on
22 September 2018), Mr. LIU Yangsheng, Mr. CAO Yixiong
Alan and Mr. LAU Chi Kit participated in this continuous
professional development mainly by reading various materials
regarding directors’ responsibilities, prevention of breaching
Listing Rules and disclosure of inside information, etc.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
segregated and not performed by the same person. The
Chairman is primarily responsible for the leadership of the
Board and formulation of overall strategic development
of the Group, while the Chief Executive Officer is primarily
responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018
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Mr. DONG Li is the Chairman of the Board. With effect from
30 July 2018, Ms. YIN Haiyan has been appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Ms. ZHAO Huan
resigned as the Chief Executive Officer on 6 August 2018.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is engaged
for a term of three years commencing from their respective
dates of appointment and is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election pursuant to the Articles of Association.

Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees, namely,
the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference, which are
available to shareholders on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. All Board committees report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Remuneration Committee

The principal role and function of the Remuneration
Committee are to (a) make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure of the remuneration
of the Directors and the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy; (b) assess the performance
of the executive Directors and approve the terms of their
service contracts; (c) review and approve the management’
s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives; (d) make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive director and senior management of the Company
which include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments such as any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment; (e)
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors of the Company; (f) review
and approve the remuneration payable to the executive
directors and senior management of the Company for
any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with relevant contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive; (g) review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and (h) ensure that no director of the Company
or any of his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is
involved in deciding his own remuneration. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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As at 31 December 2018, the Remuneration Committee
comprised three members, namely, Mr. DONG Li, an
executive Director, and Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan and Mr. LAU
Chi Kit, both being independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
LAU Chi Kit is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Remuneration Committee held two meetings to discuss,
review, analyse and consider any change of the remuneration
policy of the Company and performed all functions as
disclosed above. The records of attendance of committee
members, by name, at the meetings held are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2
Mr. DONG Li 2/2
Mr. CAOQ Yixiong Alan 2/2

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model of
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.
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Nomination Committee

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
are to (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and Board Diversity Policy which aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s Board;
(b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
(c) assess the independence of the independent non-
executive directors; and (d) make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or reappointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors is delegated to the Nomination
Committee but the ultimate responsibility for selection and
appointment of Directors of the Company rests with the
entire Board. In evaluating and selecting any candidate for
directorship, the Nomination Committee will consider, among
others, the character and integrity of the candidates, their
qualifications including professional qualifications, skKills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy and such other perspectives
that are appropriate to the Company’s business and
succession plan.
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Regular reviews will be conducted by the Nomination
Committee on the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the policy on nomination of Directors of the
Company and where appropriate, by the Nomination
Committee will make recommendations on changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy
and business needs. The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board will evaluate the candidates based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidates are
qualified for directorship. The Nomination Committee will
also consider recommendations for candidates made by
shareholders of the Company.

As at 31 December 2018, the Nomination Committee
comprised three members, namely, Mr. DONG Li, an
executive Director, and Mr. LIU Yangsheng and Mr. LAU Chi
Kit, both being independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
DONG Li is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings and performed all functions as
disclosed above. The attendance records of each member at
the meetings are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. DONG Li 2/2
Mr. LIU Yangsheng 2/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2

REZEgRERENESTNRE RENA
AN BBIRAARRIESNER  BEEERR
T REZEGRHABES AR RINBRRENE
BHEIMEUESSFELNERDREER -1RREE
SR/ AERSHEN X TRIEETEREA -
NEFZFREATONTEERETES REZ
BE KL BARRIBRRMAELREAZZ-

RIE-N\F+ZA=+—H REZE®H=F
REARK AIEFRE (TES) BBERER
EGRE (PO RBUIENTESR) EF K
ERREEREEER-

BHE_ZT-\F+_A=1+—HIFE R#EEE8
GEITTMARGHLINIT T LRREN 2 BRI -
BB Z@H L ECHENT

HERE,
EEHAE SEHE
- ited 2/2
&l e 2/2
FEGEE 2/2

BLEBRRMERAIA | —F\FFH

83



84

o]

Corporate Governance Report 1EEERIRE

All Board members’ appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity
of the Board members. According to the Board Diversity
Policy adopted by the Nomination Committee in 2013,
selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will
be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

Audit Committee

The principal role and function of the Audit Committee are
amongst others to (a) review the financial statements and
reports and consider any significant or unusual items raised
by the staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function or external auditor before submission to
the Board; (b) review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor; and (c) review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system and
associated procedures. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

As at 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee comprised
three members, namely, Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan, Mr. LIU
Yangsheng and Mr. LAU Chi Kit, all of whom are independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan is the
chairman of the Audit Committee and he possesses relevant
accounting and financial management expertise.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2018 together with the Company’s
external auditor and the senior management and performed
the following major tasks:

- Reviewed the scope of 2017 annual audit and 2018
interim review work, auditor’'s fees and terms of
engagement; and

- Reviewed and discussed the 2017 annual and 2018
interim financial statements, results announcement and
report, the related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the relevant audit findings.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the
Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors.

The attendance records of each member at the meeting are
set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. CAQO Yixiong Alan 2/2
Mr. LIU Yangsheng 2/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2

In addition, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 and has discussed with the management and the
external auditor of the Company on the accounting policies
and practices adopted by the Group and the internal controls
and financial reporting matters of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties as required under the CG
Code:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board performed the following corporate
governance matters:

° review of the corporate governance duties under the
CG Code; and

o review of the compliance with the CG Code.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements of the Company with a view to
ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements are met and applicable
accounting standards are complied with. The Board has
received from the senior management the management
accounts and such accompanying explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment for approving the financial statements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
effective internal control and risk management systems to
safeguard shareholder investments and the Group’s assets
on an ongoing basis and for reviewing the effectiveness
of such system on an annual basis. Internal audits were
carried out on all significant operation units of the Group
on an ongoing basis. The senior management reviews and
evaluates the control process, monitors any risk factors
on a regular basis and reports to the Audit Committee on
any findings and measures to address the variances and
identified risks.
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During the year under review, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget. The Board was not
aware of any significant internal control or risk management
issues that would have an adverse impact on the financial
position or operations of the Group and is of the opinion
that the internal control and risk management systems of
the Group are effective and adequate. The Board is also
reasonably satisfied that there are sufficient resources of
staff with appropriate qualifications and experience in its
accounting and financial reporting team and that sufficient
training and budget have been provided.

External Auditor and Auditor’'s Remuneration

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 93 to 102 of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration
paid/payable to Ernst & Young, the Company’s external
auditor, for annual audit services provided to the Group
and for non-audit services which comprise professional tax
services, amounted to RMB2.7 million and RMB0.4 million,
respectively.

Dividend Policy

Pursuant to the dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
of the Company, dividends may be distributed to the
Shareholders by way of () cash or (i) shares. The profit
distribution policy of the Company shall achieve continuity,
stability and sustainability.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018
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The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy from
time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.
When considering the declaration and payment of dividends,
the Board will take into account the Group’s financial results,
business conditions and strategies and future operations and
earnings.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions
under the Laws of Hong Kong, the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company

Shareholders’ Rights
Convening an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM’)

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association,
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out
in the preceding paragraph.
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Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders are welcome to send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board addressing to the Company Secretary
of the Company through the following channels with contact
details as set out below:

i) by mail to the Company’s place of business at Unit C,
33/F, TML Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong; or

ii) by email to ir@leoch.com.
Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholders’ meetings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be
voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Changes to Constitutional Documents

There were no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31
December 2018, and the Company’s constitutional
documents are published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018

RS
AR ARLRIEBAR AN R AR EA TR

MEMEFRREIERRREER  BFBH
FIanR

) BEEAQREEMMBBHAZ L GERK
SRIBRAEIECE : 5k

i)  EEZir@eoch.com °

RIREA & L1255

BARBEIR A0 FI28 BAEF AR
FERNREA RSB IRBR-

i3

BB

BRI ETHRA FIARBRRAR LIR2MRFRE
AAMRERTARR, REERBNEBRRAGET
BREARRTE R B praguh ETIE o

ERNHNEE
E-F\E+-AST-BLEE AARE

EXHHEEIAEAZS BEARREEXHET
FNARE R PTHAEA -



Corporate Governance Report ¥ ERIRE

Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders

The Company has received, from each of the Controlling
Shareholders, an annual declaration on his/its compliance
with the undertakings contained in the Deed of Non-
Competition entered into by each of them in favour of
the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company and
each member of the Group that, among other things, he/it
and his/its associates will not engage, directly or indirectly,
in businesses which will or may compete with the business
carried on or to be carried on by the Group. Details of the
Deed of Non-Competition were disclosed in the Prospectus
under the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders”.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
have been satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders
had complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

The Board believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decisions.
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The Company maintains a website at www.leoch.com as
a communication platform for shareholders and investors,
where information and updates on the Group’s business
developments and operations, financial information and other
information are available for public access. Shareholders and
investors may write directly to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong for any inquiries.

The Board considers that general meetings of the Company
provide an important channel for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the chairmen and/or other members of the Board
committees have endeavored to be available to answer
questions raised by the shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication
and relationship with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them informed of the Group’s
developments.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. CHOW Kam
Keung Albert, is the chief financial officer and one of the
employees of the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the company
secretary must take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in each financial year. Mr. Chow has
provided his training records to the Company indicating that
he has not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
by means of attending in-house briefings, attending seminars
and reading relevant guideline materials.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018
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B M AR

Ernst & Young BB RSB Tel E&E: +852 2846 9888
EY 22/F, CITIC Tower BEPIRFNEEIR Fax {8 H: +852 2868 4432
577( 1 Tim Mei Avenue hiERE2218 ey.com
Central, Hong Kong
To the shareholders of HETEBEMERAT
Leoch International Technology Limited 2RRBRR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 103 to
302, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which also
include International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Audiitor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

HRELSEHE

BRESREIRE ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZERNEEERERSR

Inventory provision

FEREE

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture,
development and sale of lead-acid batteries and other
related items. Since technology develops rapidly in the
lead-acid battery industry, the Group’s inventories were
subject to significant risk of obsolescence and significant
management’s judgements and estimates were involved
in determining the amount of provision against slow-
moving and obsolete inventories. We focused on
this area because inventory balances amounting to
RMB1,963 million were significant to the Group, which
represented 22% of the total assets of the Group, and
the provision against inventories was made based on
subjective estimates and was influenced by assumptions
concerning future consumption or sales of inventories.

SRAREZENERE FEMEENERESED RHEAME
AEm BRERES L2 RMERAR B£EEHZ
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The disclosures about inventories are included in notes 3
and 20 to the financial statements.

BRAGFEZRBEHN P HRAM 320 °

We obtained an understanding of management’s
process about how to identify the slow-moving
and obsolete inventories and calculate the amount
of provision. We evaluated the sales forecasts
prepared by management for the purpose of
identifying the slow-moving and obsolete inventories
by checking, on a sampling basis, the sales orders
and agreements, and assessing the estimated sales
taking into account the previous estimations, the
historical evidence supporting underlying assumptions
and current market conditions. We also checked on
a sampling basis the ageing reports of inventories
and the production records and sales of inventories
made after the year end. For the net realisable value
of slow-moving and obsolete inventories identified,
we checked samples of recent sales invoices for the
value.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

HRELSHE

BREREE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZBERNEERRERSR

Impairment of trade receivables

EZ BRI AR E

Trade receivable balances were significant to the Group,
which amounted to RMB2,451 milion and represented
approximately 27% of the total assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018.
Assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables
involves a high level of management judgement. During
the year, management used a provision matrix to
calculate expected credit losses for receivables. The
matrix was initially based on the Group’s historical
default rates, and specific factors that management
considered in the estimation of the rates including the
type of customers, ageing of the balances and recent
historical payment patterns. Management then calibrated
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information, such as forecasted
economic conditions.
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We evaluated the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls which
govern credit control, debt collection and estimate of
expected credit losses (“ECL”).
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We assessed, on a sample basis, whether items in
the trade receivables ageing report were classified
with the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing
individual items in the report with the relevant sales
invoices.
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Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

HRELSEHE

BRESREIRE ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZBERNEERRERSR

Impairment of trade receivables (continued)

ESENRSERE (&

The relevant disclosures are contained in notes 3 and 22
to the financial statements.

BRARBEH NI HRKRMEIN22 -

We assessed the adequacy of the ECL provision
by:(i) evaluating the reasonableness of management’s
assumptions used in establishing the ECL provision
matrix; (i) examining the information used by
management to form such estimations, including
testing the accuracy of historical default data,
evaluating whether the historical loss rates were
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information and (i)
examining the actual losses recorded during the
current financial year.
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We checked the relevant disclosures in financial
statements.
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Other information included in the
Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the directors
for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs which
comprise standards and Interpretations approved by the
IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018
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Responsibilities of the directors
for the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 #Z {Ef¥R &

Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial
statements (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

REMBERGEMBRR2ZE
£ (&)

o MR EMBmEAIEEIWmAR HEEK
AE (BIERE) ARGATBBRREE AT
[RERABRAZ: 5 ) BB I8

e Bt BEEERNZERIEBIHIVBER
BT REE 2 BIZRE  URGE VR
REKRBER -TEBEERS. ﬁt*xliiﬂ?? &
EECEZIE-BEEAATECENER
EERHEE

BERZEEH (AP eR)ExstalgsE
M&Eﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ,a?igﬁgi$%ﬂ
BRESHE 2 ERIE RN R 2 BB i@

ENRBEZEEGRIER KPETZEEFEE
ﬁﬁiﬁzm%é?ﬁi:iﬁﬁ%%LT%éﬁ
Wwﬁ??é%%?iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@&ﬁ@%ﬁ
LA K ABRARH #E ie (2@ ) o

HHEESZZBQEBIFAT BEERELFTLHA
SRRV BHRERZERRAERNEIR FAME
PR EZEIE - BEEERBARE T EEZS

B BRIBPERIOER A ARARBELSFEE L
EEmRFERNERT SERBEMHNES 2 HE+R
BERXEEMERKNBERRESBBELNR
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 #ZEETh &
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the BREEMERGEMBERR 2
audit of the consolidated financial £ (#&)
statements (continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HAXRBIZEEMREZEXEESRARER

independent auditor’s report is Law Kwok Kee. Ho

Ernst & Young LK EETENE AT
Certified Public Accountants HEZFED

Hong Kong %C /%

22 March 2019 —E-NF=A=+=H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEBmRK
Year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T-\Ft-A=t+-BLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR¥T T ARBFT
REVENUE g 5 9,544,418 9,465,444
Cost of sales k=D W (8,489,396) (8,302,904)
Gross profit EF 1,055,022 1,162,540
Other income and gains A PN € 5 118,326 94,031
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAE (408,667) (367,199)
Administrative expenses FTE A (269,719) (260,742)
Research and development costs ot B AN 6 (111,025) (143,084)
(Impairment losses)/reversal of CREE CREESRE)/
impairment on financial assets BERE 6 (3,266) 7,713
Other expenses HEMRFAXZ (35,329) (34,639)
Finance costs B RS AR 7 (202,356) (151,788)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX A0 6 142,986 306,832
Income tax expense R > 10 (15,846) (35,352)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REFRF 127,140 271,480
Attributable to: AT AT :
Owners of the parent NalEA A 106,418 242,885
Non-controlling interests FEPERT i = 20,722 28,595
127,140 271,480
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRAAEEEERBA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EEESRAEF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 12
Basic HAK RMBA & #0.087 RMBAR#0.187C
Diluted s RMBA K #0.087t RMBAR#0.187C
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \+_A=+—HItFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AR® T AREETF T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERF 127,140 271,480
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hib2EWK = (FE)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REEEBEEHH»ESE
that may be reclassified to BEmEmEmEkES
profit or loss in subsequent periods: (BE)
Available-for-sale investments: A HERE:
Changes in fair value N BEE 19 - 3,703
Income tax effect FrisStis & 32 - (926)
- 2,777
Debt investments at fair value through NAEEESAEM
other comprehensive income: FHKEMERIRE
Changes in fair value NAEBEES 23 (2,768) =
Income tax effect Fristi s & 32 692 =
(2,076) -
Exchange differences on translation of & 35 SN ¥ K5 H)FE 3, =58
foreign operations 9,727 (14,193)
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) REEZHBEF D EE
that may be reclassified to BEmEMEERE
profit or loss in subsequent periods (B8) %8 7,651 (11,416)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #aZEUNEER

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_ZT—)\F+=-A=+—HIEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

P AR®BT T ARETT

Other comprehensive loss that will not ~ REEE BB T2 EHHEE

be reclassified to profit or loss in BmmEm2mmEaE:
subsequent periods:
Equity investments designated at EEEANEEE
fair value through other FFAHMEE R
comprehensive income: BEEMRE
Changes in fair value NREEE 19 (19,659) -
Income tax effect Fristisg 2 32 4,915 -
(14,744) -
Net other comprehensive loss that REERBETEEHHEE
will not be reclassified to profit or loss BEamHEMmerEEEFRE
in subsequent periods (14,744) -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS AEEHMEHEES
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX MERBLE (7,093) (11,416)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEEE2HMKEHEEE
FOR THE YEAR 120,047 260,064
Attributable to: AT AT REMG
Owners of the parent NalEA A 98,973 235,650
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR R 2 21,074 24,414
120,047 260,064
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R
31 December 2018
—E-NF+ZA=+—H

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BT AR¥T T AR®EF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I E RS 13 2,061,137 2,046,177
Investment properties WEYE 14 14,239 48,392
Properties under development BRERPYE 15 57,863 40,869
Prepaid land lease payments A T EFIE 16 181,989 154,819
Goodwil Bk 17 10,636 8,699
Other intangible assets EmEEEE 18 615,443 484,215
Equity investments designated at BERAAEBEEZZTA
fair value through other Hh 2 s e a1t
comprehensive income & 19 137,148 -
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 19 - 132,576
Deposits paid for purchase of items of ~ FLUWEEWE - BE &
property, plant and equipment and RBEE XA R
land lease payments T ERIE 145,841 85,016
Deferred tax assets EXRBEE 32 53,001 48,888
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 3,277,297 3,049,651
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories FE 20 1,962,966 1,872,285
Completed properties held for sale FIEREE B 21 15,856 44,205
Trade receivables B 5 REWIE 22 2,424,654 2,313,438
Bills receivables JE W AR 23 - 213,159
Debt investments at fair value through NABEEHFT A LM
other comprehensive income 2HNGENERRE 23 164,625 =
Prepayments, other receivables and TR - HAth fE YR IE
other assets K H At & B 24 186,676 174,423
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIA 25 - 4,418
Equity investments at fair value NABEEHFT ABEEN
through profit or loss ERERE 26 12,588 12,545
Structured bank deposits ERERITER 27 109,866 =
Pledged deposits EEBER 28 452,216 540,116
Cash and cash equivalents BENREEEY 28 425,311 401,042
Total current assets mEEESAE 5,754,758 5,575,631
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables B 2N FIBRENER 29 2,001,708 1,665,247
Other payables and accruals HEMEMNRIBERETEA 30 777,368 706,537
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTRRITEE 31 2,171,301 2,904,553
Income tax payable FERT RIS HL 86,099 89,406
Total current liabilities nEBERE 5,036,476 5,365,743
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFRE 718,282 209,888
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEHABERRBAER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,995,579 3,259,539
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #&#&

BIEAR 2R «

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\E T+
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7 AREFT T AREEFTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEE & 32 47,681 54,554
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFRIRITIEE 31 712,807 109,338
Deferred government grants 3R RE TR 47 B 61,187 48,959
Total non-current liabilities R AGERTE 821,675 212,851
Net assets BEFE 3,173,904 3,046,688
EQUITY E=
Equity attributable to owners of BARBEEAE( LR
the parent
Share capital IR 33 116,213 116,192
Reserves 1 35 2,860,714 2,760,418
2,976,927 2,876,610
Non-controlling interests FEVE R 196,977 170,078
Total equity e 3,173,004 3,046,688
Dong Li Yin Haiyan
= EN g 3%
Director Director
2 EFH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2018

HEz-_Z—)\F+-_A=+—HLEFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRAREAERE
Avallable-
for-sale
Share Share investment  Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share premium Merger option  revaluation reserve  fluctuation Retained controling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profts Total interests equity
e
BEEf EE ERED
fx RhHEER  AKEE BRERE fiE ElFA BE  REEN At FERESR  EoER
RVB000  RMB000  RVMBOOO  RMB000  RMB'0OO0  RMB000  RMBO000  RMB000  RMB0O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARBTT ARETT ARETR AR%TT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Note (note 33) (note 46) (note 35) (note 35) (note 35) (note 35) (note 35)
i (Wsies)  (Wiztae)  (Wiaise)  (Makss)  (Miass)  (Misss)  (Msss)
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—+5-f-H 115846 1,207,864 275,106 27901 48,819 119,485 23,766 879,102 2,697,888 60,041 2,757,929
Proft for the year REERT - - - - - - - 2885 242885 28505 271480
Other comprehensive income TEREMRENRE:
for the year:
Changes in fair value of avalable- AHLERENEE
for-sale investments, net of tax 28 NBHE - - - - 2111 - - - 2111 - 2717
Exchange differences on ranlation ~~ REENERNEHZE
of foreign operations - - - - - - (10,012) - (10,012 (4,181) (14,193
Total comprehensive income FERRENRES
for the year - - - - 2717 - (10,012) 242,885 235,650 24414 260,064
Exercise of share options fifeERE 34 346 5,338 - (2,652 - - - - 3,032 - 3032
Finel 2016 dividend paid BNZE-RERBRE - (64603 - - - - - - (64609 - (64603
Equity-settled share option IEREENERER S
arangements - - - 4,643 - - - - 4,643 - 4,643
Capital contribution from FERERTE
non-controling shareholders - - - - - - - - - 5477 5477
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEREAR - - - - - - - - - 80,146 80,146
Appropriations to reserves BiERE - - - _ . 14,320 = (14,320) = = =
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+ZA=1-8 116,192 1,148,599 275,106 29,892 51,59 133,805 13,754 1,107,667 2,876,610 170,078 3,046,688
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #HR&EmEExK

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_ZT—)\F+=-A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATREAELE
Share Share Fair  Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share  premium Merger option value reserve  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
AREE ERRD
KA ROGEEE AKEE BREGE Bk iERES G REEA @ FEREE  ERAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARETR ARMTR AR%TR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn
Notes (note 33)  (note46)  (mote35)  (note35)  (note35)  (note35)  (note 35)
i3 (Hz33)  (Wizie6)  (Mvixss)  (W&ss)  (MaRss)  (Mraxss)  (MY3s)
At 31 December 2017 RZE-+tE+-f=+-8 116,192 1,148,599 275,105 29,892 51,596 133,805 13,754 1,107,667 2,876,610 170,078 3,046,688
Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 mm@wmmi;%aw
ES a7 - - - - - = = (1,264) (1,264) = (1,264)
At 1 January 2018 (restated) WZ2-\§-HA-H
(=3 116,192 1,148,599 275,105 29,892 51,596 133,805 13,754 1,106,403 2,875,346 170,078 3,045,424
Profit for the year TERER = = = - - - - 106,418 106,418 20,722 127,140
Other comprehensive income AEREM2ERS:
for the year:
Changes in fair value of equity BERDAES
investments designated at ﬁm%@qﬁl
fair value through other RENDAEEES:
comprehensive income, net of tax il b - - - - (14,744) - - - (14,744) - (14,744)
Changes in fair value of debt BRAMEBEEDHALR
investments at fai value through 2ERENEBRED
other comprehensive income, DREBERE NBHA
et of tax - - - - om) - - - o - o
Exchange differences on ranlation ~~ REENEBNEHEE
of foreign operations - - - - - - 9,375 - 9,375 352 9,721
Total comprehensive income RERRENREE
forthe year - - - - (i68) - 9315 10648 98973 A0 120047
Exercise of share options fifEmkE 34 2 310 - (163) = = = = 168 o 168
Lapse of share options BREXR - - - (1,917) - - - 1,017 - - -
Acquisttion of non-controling interests Wt E& 2 B iES - - (257) - - - - (25M) (5,058) (7,629)
Appropriations to reserves BieRE - - - - - 5,389 - (5,389) - - -
Equity-settled share option IEREENBRER R
arrangements - - - 5,011 - - - - 5011 - 5011
Acquisition of a subsidlary WEREAR 36 - - - - - - - - - 10,883 10,883
At 31 December 2018 R=E-\F+-A=t-H 116,213 1,148,909 2712,534" 32,823 34,776 139,194 23,129°  1,209,349° 2,976,927 196,977 3,173,904

*

consolidated statement of financial position.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves — * HWEFHBRLRBRGEAV BRI ERANAZEEHE
of RMB2,860,714,000 (2017: RMB2,760,418,000) in the

AR#2,860,714,000 (ZZE—LEF: ARK
2,760,418,0007C ) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEHESRER

Year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z— ) \+_A=+—HItFE

2018 2017
—E-)N\#F —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AR¥T T ARBFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ¥ %(¥MWEELRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax TNl 142,986 306,832
Adjustments for: BT IEET A
Finance costs LRI N 7 202,356 151,788
Interest income B A 5 (12,034) (13,374)
Fair value loss/(gain) from derivative ~ T4 @R LA R AREE
financial instruments, net B, (=) FE 6 145 (1,166)
Fair value (gain)/loss from equity NABEEHFT ABRZN
investments at fair value through =R ENAAEBE
profit or loss, net (Wz=) K51E FE 6 (43) 1,050
Fair value gain from structured EBMRITFRE
bank deposits DA EERE 6 (866) -
Loss on remeasurement of the BHFTESLAN ML
previously held interest in INGIE=F=F  ag:al-opi=]
an associate 6 - 2,064
Gain on bargain purchase AEEREE 5 - (880)
Loss on disposal of items of BEWME BWEK
property, plant and equipment HBIEE WEE 6 831 611
Depreciation of property, plant and M BEREETE
equipment 13 285,062 218,888
Depreciation of investment properties & &M EFTE 14 219 1,321
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEA L b A E OB S
payments 16 3,862 3,656
Amortisation of intangible assets T & E 18 103,330 88,849
Amortisation of deferred government 3 #iE B f5 i B 6 £
grants (4,662) (8,200)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) & 5 EUGKIERE,
of trade receivables ORE#REE) 22 3,266 (7,713)
Impairment of inventories FERE 6 2,460 3,957
Dividend income from available-for- ~ RE AJ B EKE K
sale investments A& B U A 5 - (1,301)
Loss on a fire accident Y O%-ES - 28,153
Equity-settled share option expenses AR 45 & HYBE AR HERT 2 6 5,011 4,643
731,923 784,178
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2018

HE-F-N\F+-A=+—BLFE

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR T AR®EF T
Increase in inventories FEEM (88,592) (758,830)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 U FRIE G N (102,988) (109,329)
Decrease/(increase) in debt ERAnBEEHTAELMERA
investments at fair value through WHHERIEE TEREE
other comprehensive income/ S (3Ean)
bills receivables 45,766 (137,680)
Increase in prepayments, other TEfTRIE - b FEYGRIE R E A
receivables and other assets & EIE N (14,980) (16,310)
Decrease/(increase) in derivative tTHEeRmIARD (HEM)
financial instruments 4,273 (12,263)
Increase in trade and bills payables & 5 &~ 3 E M &~ S & 318 41 313,050 29,164
Increase in other payables and H b B < 7B K B 5T B A A A0
accruals 62,684 123,862
Cash generated from/(used in) ESEBIFRE (AR 4
operations 951,136 (97,208)
Income tax paid =ENIZIR L (27,205) (34,176)
Net cash flows from/(used in) e RS, (FTA)
operating activities ReREFEE 923,931 (131,384)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REBBFFAETRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 YF B 12,148 13,294
Purchases of items of property, BEYE WMEMREER
plant and equipment (301,286) (832,143)
Proceeds from disposal of items of B EWYX - MFERFHEEE®
property, plant and equipment Fr{S3k18 21,451 13,026
Dividend income from available-for- 3 & A] {ft i &£ & E R A% B Uk A
sale investments 5 - 1,301
Additions of equity investments EINEERARBEEE T A
designated at fair value through HiemkzmsmEREEE
other comprehensive income (23,431) -
Additions of available-for-sale A HEEERE
investments - (5,800)
Additions of intangible assets EINEREE 18 (217,578) (179,908)
Additions of prepaid land lease 8 HNFE (T L & A
payments (7,782) (32,993)
Additions of deposits paid for land B+ A S HIED MiRe
lease payments - (11,426)
Deposits paid for construction of EE-IEVEENIERS
a property 40 (49,130) (49,130)
Purchases of non-controlling interests B & JE % A% # 25 (7,629) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B B8 A A 36 171 (78,760)
Net cash flows used in investing B LSRR S R E %58
activities (573,066) (662,539)
BrEBREMERAE | —Z— \FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows %4

Year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_Z— ) \E+-_A=+—HILtFE

Eﬁ:ﬁ/)lb%%‘:ﬁ

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ir=g AR® T AR®FTT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ~ ®mEEBFRERLRE
ACTIVITIES
Issue of shares, net of issuance IR EE1T MR EITHZ
expenses 33 168 3,032
New bank borrowings FEiRTT Fi =3 3,007,792 5,887,649
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (3,218,891) (4,601,065)
Interest paid ERFE (201,093) (151,788)
Capital contribution from IR TE
non-controlling shareholders - 5,477
Final dividend paid BRI E - (64,603)
Increase in structured bank deposits #5114 $8 1717 238 hn (109,000) -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged EEBEZRLD 7 ($Em)
deposits 87,900 (49,231)
Receipt of deferred government grants U BXIE ST g FF 48 B 16,890 8,910
Net cash flows (used in)/from mMEES (A F5Ee
financing activities MEEEE (416,234) 1,038,381
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE ReRBLEEW (RD)
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS & fin$ 48 (65,369) 244,458
Cash and cash equivalents REFTNRE MRS EEY
at beginning of year 401,042 214,344
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EREEFHTE F58
changes, net 89,638 (57,760)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERNRERREEEY
AT END OF YEAR 425,311 401,042
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERBEEBYUERIN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RRTTEER 28 425,311 401,042
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Corporate and Group
Information

Leoch International Technology Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 16 November 2010. The
registered office of the Company is located at the office
of Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacture, development and sale of
lead-acid batteries and other related items.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the immediate holding company and the
ultimate holding company is Master Alliance Investment
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and wholly owned by Mr. Dong Li.

B 755 R AR B

31 December 2018
—T-N\F+ZA=+—H

REAREEER

BTEBEEMBRAR ([RAT) TR
Z-EFOA_T+ERBRASHSRAE
($228) (—NWAR—FFIRER Kirca K&
B ERSHETMKIAEREERA
Al MARBIRGE —E—FF+—A+<
HRETEMEXZMAR AR ([BRA])
T o AR TR FE M B S R A Conyers Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited&I3% = 5% » ik &
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° 4~
SETIENFRE AENHEHSIHKESS
NEAM AR Em

RARER ([EB)RA BEEERAFIR
BB AR AR REE B SRR
Master Aliance Investment Limited » H &% 254
E2EER-
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

1. Corporate and Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

Notes to the Financial Statements &R EKIEE

1. RAIREBER (&)

FRANBEARZER

ARBEZMBEARFIFNT

as follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity interest
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
EMAL/ R
HWEAR ERRYL/EMEH REENHY BRTRARER ANAEGERAAL TEER
Direct Indirect
E# B
% %

THELERERAF 11 March 2003 PRC* RMB562,649,382 - 100 Investment holding and
(Leoch Battery (Jiangsu) Corp.) manufacture and sale of
(‘Jiangsu Leoch’) lead-acid batteries

THBTEGARLT (IHEL]) ZZTZE-A+-H R AR H562,649,3827T REZR SENHERRETH

EEBLTERRERAR 9 May 2005 PRC* 1JS$103,780,000 - 100 Investment holding and
(Zhaoging Leoch Battery manufacture and sale of
Technology Co., Ltd.) (‘Zhaoqing Leoch’) lead-acid batteries

EERTERRMARAA ((EEBL]) —ZTZRERANA PR 103,780,000% T REAR HENHENRESH

RENERFERREERAR) 26 July 2006 PRC* US$10,001,455 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Anhui Uplus Energy Technology lead-acid batteries
Co., Ltd.) (“Anhui Uplus’)

RENERHERRITERAA ZZTAEEAZTAR R 10,001 4555 7T NENHERRET
([ZEHERLK])

AITELHERERERAR 26 April 1999 PRC* RMB582,649,382 = 100 Investment holding and sale of
(Leoch Shenzhen Renewable lead-acid batteries
Energy Co., Ltd))

(‘Shenzhen Leoch Battery’)

TR RERERAT) —“MAAEBEAZTRA E* AR 582,649,382 REBRAHERRZETD
([FYIELRER])

RETMELHERERRMERLT 27 November 2002 PRC* RMB3,500,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Dongguan Leoch Battery
Technology Co., Ltd.)

REMELHERERRIERAT ZEEZF+-A+ER REC AR%3,500,0007C HERRESY

ENETRERRMERAA 23 July 2013 PRC* RMB100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Guangzhou Leoch Battery
Technology Co., Ltd))

BNBTEERRNERAR “2-=#tA-T=H Ll AR #100,0007 HEHRETY
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1. Corporate and Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries
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31 December 2018

FRANBARZESN (&)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity interest
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
HMAL/ ER
KWEAR HERAL/ERAH REELY BRTRAZER RAREERRAI Y TEEY
Direct Indirect
EE GE:3
% %
Leoch International Sales Ltd 31 December 2010 Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(‘Leoch International Sales’) lead-acid batteries
BrERHEERAR ((BLEARHE]) _—T-TET-A=+-H &A BT REARMEERKEED
Leoch Battery Corporation 17 June 2003 USA™ US$3,256,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch Battery Corp.”)
Leoch Battery Corporation —“EE=ERATLR E3e 3,256,005 HENRESY
([Leoch Battery Corp. | )
Leoch Power Supply (H.K.) Limited 18 August 2004 Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 = 100 Investment holding and sale of
(‘Leoch Power Supply’) lead-acid batteries
ETER(5%)ERAF (BLER)) “ZTRENATAR & 12,000,000 7 REBBRAHERREED
Honour Label Investments Limited 28 February 2005 BV US$1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Honour Label’)
Honour Label Investments Limited “EFRF-A=1+NA RERBE™ E REAER
([Honour Label |)
Peak Year Investments Limited 25 January 2007 BV US$1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Peak Year')
Peak Year Investments Limited —“22+f-A-1HA ABRTEE™ iE RERR
([Peak Year )
Shieldon International Limited 19 January 2007 BV US§1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Shieldon’)
Shieldon International Limited —EZ+E-A+AAE HRERLHE™ 1% RERK
([Shieldon | )
Leoch Battery Company Limited 25 April 2007 Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(‘Leoch Battery Company’) lead-acid batteries
Leoch Battery Company Limited “STtFMA=tAA B 1,000,00077C REZRMEERRES
([Leoch Battery Company |)
HRETREFRNERARA 15 March 2006 PRC* RMB300,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Nanjing Leach Battery
Technology Co., Ltd.)
HRETRERRNERAA ZZ2ERE-ATEA PR AR #300,0007C HERBEED
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1. Corporate and Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Notes to the Financial Statements &R EKIEE

1. RAIREBER (&)

FRANBARZESR (&)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity interest
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
SRR/ M
KWEAR HRAYL/ERAH REELE BRTRAZER AAAREERAAL TEER
Direct Indirect
EE Gk:3
% %

ARBTEERRINERAR 14 December 2004 PRC* RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Beiing Leoch Engineering
Technology Co., Ltd)

FRETRERRITERAR “EENF+=A1+MA PE AR %41,000,0007C HERBESY

FIBLERRTERAR 27 September 2007 PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Leoch Battery Shenzhen Corp.)

RMETERRITERAR “ITEFAAZTER PE AR %1,000,0007C HERBESY

Catherine Holdings International Company 3 May 2010 BV Uss$e 100 - Investment holding
Limited (‘Catherine Holdings’)

Catherine Holdings International Company “Z-ZERAZH HERLHE™ 6%TT ey
Limited ([ Catherine Holdings | )

Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. 5 April 2010 Singapore $G$2,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch Battery Pte.’)

Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. —“5-ZEMATRA s 2,000,000%7 13 7T HERRESY
(ILeoch Battery Pte. |)

Leoch International Holding Pte. Ltd. 21 April 2011 Singapore SG$1 = 100 Investment holding
(‘Leoch International Holding’)

Leoch International Holding Pte. Ltd. “F——FMA=1+-A g T RERR
(ILeoch International Holding |)

ZHRTERRMBRAT 26 October 2010 PRC* HK$321,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Anhui Leoch Power Supply Corp.) lead-acid batteries
(‘Anhui Leoch Power’)

ZHRTERRINBRAT ZE-TFTAZ1+RA E 321,000,000 7T SENHERRESD
([Z@ELER])

Leoch Lanka (Private) Ltd. 26 January 2012 Sri Lanka LKR337,712,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of

lead-acid batteries

Leoch Lanka (Private) Ltd. —F-—F-A=tXAH EV RS 337,712,000 HENEERRETN

HERFEL
Leoch Batteries Indlia Private Limited 31 October 2012 India INR305,988,330 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Batteries India Private Limited “2-—%tA=t-H N 305,983,330 HERKEED
HEEN
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Corporate and Group
Information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

- A\Ft+-_A=+—H

31 December 2018

1. RAREEER (&

FRANBARZESN (&)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity interest
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
HMAL/ ER
KWEAR HERAL/ERAH REELY BRTRAZER AAAREERAAL TEEY
Direct Indirect
EE GE:3
% %
Big Help Group Limited (‘Big Help) 19 May 2011 Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Big Help Group Limited ( [Big Help |) “Z—%EATNA B BT REER
IHEEEZERATA 29 October 2014 PRC* RMB20,000,000 - 100 Development and sale of
(Jiangsu Stting Real Estate Co., Ltd.) properties
(‘Jiangsu Siting’)
IREEEZERAA (NIHKBE]) “2-METAZTAR Er AR #20,000,0007 REREENE
ATRERRNBRAE 19 November 2012 PRC* HK$10,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Shenzhen Lihang Battery
Technology Co., Ltd)
LR ERRITERAR “I-Z§+—-AtNA PE* 10,000,000 7T REER
BHREZRE (R BRAR 17 June 2014 PRC* RMB827,456,523 - 100 Investment holding
(Leoch Investment Development
(Shenzhen) Limited)
BERERR (RYNERAA “2-MERATER R AR ¥827,456,5237C REER
Leoch Super Power India Pvt 7 August 2015 India INR259,110,200 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
lead-acid batteries
Leoch Super Power India Pt —Z-REN\AtA g 259,110,200 HEMBERRETN
HEEL
EERLERAEHEERAA 12 August 2016 PRC RMB160,690,000 - 7534 Leasing of properties
(Zhaoqing Leoch Marshell
Electric Vehicle Co., Ltd.)
EERTREAEYEERAR “Z-¥)\AfZA R AR 160,690,000 NERE
Leoch Accupower (M) Sdn. Bhd 10 July 2016 Malaysia RM40,000,000 - 51 Manufacture and sale of
(“Accupower’) lead-acid batteries
Leoch Accupower (M) Scn. Bnd —E-RELAtA SRAEE 40,000,005 70 HEMBERRETN
([ Accupower |)
RENERFERMBERRERARA 9 September 2016 PRC' RMB5,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Anhui Uplus New Energy Material
Technology Co., Ltd.)
(‘Anhui Uplus New Energy’)
ZENERI R AR ERAT “I-~FNANA iy AR %5,000,0007C REER

([ZBAE LR
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

1. Corporate and Group 1. RRIREEER (&)

Information (continued)

FRANBARZESR (&)

Information about subsidiaries

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity interest
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
SRR/ M
KWEAR HRAYL/ERAH REELE BRTRAZER ARREERERAL TEER
Direct Indirect
EE Gk:3
% %
ARGAELFERHARAF 9 January 2017 PRC* RMB110,000,000 - 60 Recycle and remanufacture of
(Taihe Dahua Energy Technology Co., Ltd.) lead from batteries
(‘Taihe Dahua”) disposed of
AAGAZERRRERAF “T—+5-ANA e AR 110,000,000 BEEEEEHONRALER
([KAMBAZ])
Tele Power Sdn. Bhd. (‘Tele Power’) 23 January 2017 Malaysia RM1,000,000 - 51 Manufacture and sale of
lead-acid batteries
Tele Power Sdn. Bnd. ([ Tele Power | ) “E-t5-A=+=H SXAEE 1,000,005 70 HEMBERRETN
Leoch Battery (Vietnam) Limited 29 September 2017 Vietnam US$3,750,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
lead-acid batteries
Leoch Battery (Vietnam) Limited ZZ—tFNAZTIE il 3,750,000% 7 HEMHERRER
Leoch Super Power (Vietnam) Limited 29 September 2017 Vietnam US$2,100,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
lead-acid batteries
Leoch Super Power (Vietnam) Limited —E—tENAZtNR #E 2,100,000% 7 HEMEERRESN
Leoch France SAS 23 November 2017 France EUR100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch France SAS “F—+E+-f2+ZR EE 100,000807 HENREE D
Leoch DBS Limited (‘LDBS’) 28 June 2017 United Kingdom GBP3,516,723 - 60  Investment holding
Leoch DBS Limited ([LDBS | ) ZZ—tFXAZTN\R &E 3,516,7235 % REER
DBS Leoch Limited (‘DBSL") 20 October 2015 United Kingdom GBP 1 - 60 Sale of lead-acid batteries
DBS Leoch Limited ([DBSL ) “Z-RETA-TH S 15 HENMETY

*

- TEEPEARANE TREHEEER
RITHE - FEDRPIFRITTRR R A& -

PRC represents the People’s Republic of China excluding
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC,
the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and
Taiwan.

ok

o XBEEENBRSRE-

USA represents the United States of America.

BVI represents the British Virgin Islands. o RBEUHBERABERIES -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company ERINHEEZGRAEREELRFEEESR
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally BEAFEBIEASEEEFECERT D2
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial RRalzMB AT - ZEF2R AWM EEM
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of MEBARZER KEREANITR.
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs, which comprise standards
and interpretations approved by the IASB, and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income, structured bank
deposits and equity investments at fair value through
profit or loss which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

1B E %

A EH IR TIRIR PR B RS LR DA K2
PN Tﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁ’ﬁ)&‘i&%%ﬁmmiﬁé BB B %5
SR BRBER e ERRE SO AR E
AIMZEE - ZF M I MR THIRRE SL A B
Plme ERRERARBEESF AR ME
B EHEEEIRE AR BEZED AR
ﬁﬂ%@ﬂ&ﬁﬁ’]ﬂ%%&i s EBIERITIER K
ARABEZHAABRRNEREREDEA
REEFEN  ZFHBHRERAARE (TA
R¥ 27 BRAERAN FAEEEDRAR
EHEENTTe

BOEE

ZEGRAVBRREEAEENRBE_F
—N\Ft+ZA=+—RIFENMBERK-
LRI TE$QTE&&F‘?&?@%HZ€‘-T%E(
% *T%IEEEE‘E) EAKERSEPIRER

EFT1S Z‘J"“Eﬂ@#&ﬁﬂ[W?@*ﬂZ%ﬁ%
%‘J WRESHARINE AR ERERNUTE
El¥R 8 (BNR1F 2 A AR SR B 85045
MR ERAZ D) IRER A EE
BIEHIHE-
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31 December 2018
—N\F+ZA=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 2.1 #RBE%E (&)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangement;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued) 2.1 #RBE%E (&)

BOEE (F)

8 =E MRS LA B AR BR
AT = TRIR R R R E R — IR Z AN
REg AEEGEMTEEECHRRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EKIEE

31 December 2018

—T-N\F+=ZAR=+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

22 EHINER W EEEN S

AREBGERFEPBRRE KA T T
7 RAERT VBB B 75 S s Rl

statements.
Amendments to Classification and Measurement of PR BT I RS AR KRG BEBETHHE
IFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions F2ROBEIR BT BRI E
Amendments to Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments PR B RS 2 BB i B A 43
IFRS 4 with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts FAFHBT A RIE & H — G EFT BT
HBHERREIR 2 A
IA
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments PR BT I RS AR EHTA
EO%
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts PR I RS A EP&
with Customers E15%
Amendments to Clarifications to IFRS 15 PRET RS A BB B L ER
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts F15RMIERTA FI5REF AWz
with Customers Vi
Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property IRt BERENF
IAS 40 FA0FHET A
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and REBRERE NEZZRBIRE
Advance Consideration ZEEE25
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 —E-MER R BRELENE1HR
2014-2016 Cycle ZE-/F GillsS-Epadil]
B FE# F28H BT A

FREIR SR E L FARNET AR —F
—P9FE —F N F R R F R R RS
AR TSR RSN - #R] M AERTBIRR
RIS R 2 EE B BRI T

Except for the amendments to IFRS 4 and Annual
Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle, which are not relevant
to the preparation of the Group’s financial statements,
the nature and the impact of the new and revised IFRSs
are described below:
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

The nature and the impact of the amendments are
described below:

(@) Amendments to IFRS 2 address three main
areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order
to meet an employee’s tax obligation associated
with the share-based payment; and accounting
where a modification to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment transaction changes its
classification from cash-settled to equity-settled.
The amendments clarify that the approach used
to account for vesting conditions when measuring
equity-settled share-based payments also
applies to cash-settled share-based payments.
The amendments introduce an exception so
that a share-based payment transaction with
net share settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction
when certain conditions are met. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that if the terms and
conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it
becomes an equity-settled share-based payment
transaction, the transaction is accounted for as
an equity-settled transaction from the date of
the modification. The amendments have had no
impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group as the Group does not have any cash-
settled share-based payment transactions and
has no share-based payment transactions with
net settlement features for withholding tax.

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

20 B HE R MBS EE
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BRI 5 S ERIE2RAET AT R
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PR R TEE DB R S
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e L BERTAS| A—IABISMNRE - T
BE TR B EEENATRER
MIBMNE T 2R AR FRER SN
PARBAD R AR SRR 5 TR D AR
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- S ERRIRIEREE AR () RERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EKIEE

31 December 2018
—N\F+ZA=+—H

DI BRI EZENEH

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued) ( F=

(b) IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS (b) EBRMBHRELANFSELHTANR=

39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all
three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement,

T N\F—A— AR &R FEDR
RIECBIFR & 5T R B30 2 a T A -

AR E EESRT ASEEN
FE = (A0S - DB NG E  RERY
/‘:F' = E+

impairment and hedge accounting.

The Group has recognised the transition rEEER—_ZT—/\F—HA—HBZER

adjustments against the applicable opening FURRERERBEFHE lltl: T
balances in equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore, FHILRER  BEERBEREES
the comparative information was not restated and ZERI|ZE305% 2 3

continues to be reported under IAS 39.

Classification and measurement SR EE

AT ERET IR AR B 15 iR & 4RI
BREFATSANKR 2 FE - BIRIABIERA
BEERIESR < HREEEE ([E
HEEEER]) KBRS qu/iﬁ'J%’SQ%
MEELEEBRABEEZTE

The following information sets out the impacts
of adopting IFRS 9 on the statement of financial
position, including the effect of replacing IAS 39’s
incurred credit loss calculations with IFRS 9’s
expected credit losses (‘ECLS”).
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(b) (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts
under IAS 39 and the balances reported under

IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 is as follows:

31 December 2018
—ET-N\F+=ZAR=+—H

B
!

},\
4(\ »
D /YN

v_.'.&\,!

22T HRRMESHNE

(45

(b)

— —d

(%)
PHERE (%)

RIZEFR &3

AR F 305 2 AR (B —

- N\F— - BREBEEEMEREE
RIS 28 Mgk BIRRINT -

1AS 39 measurement IFRS 9 measurement
R E T EL S0 & B3R 5 R B0 o B
Re-
Category Amount  classification ECL Amount  Category
<)) 28 ENSE RHGEESE &8 Eh
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wiz ARBTT AREFT AREFT AREFT

Financial assets tREE

Equity investments designated EERAMEESPTAL N/A T - 132,576 - 132,576 FVOO!
at fair value through other tEERENEREE (equity) (#&%)
comprehensive income

From: Avallable-for-sale mea gL ERE 0 132,576 -

investments

Avalable-for-sale investments AEHERE AFS? 132,576 (182,576) - - NATER
To: Equity investments designated 2 : EE K ALEBEE S 0 (132,576) -

at fair value through other FAEMEEREN

comprehensive income EmltiRE
Bills receivables EhZ L8R° 213,159 (213,159) - - AC*
To: Debt investments at fair Z:RARBEEHIA (i) (213,159) -

value through other Hth2ERROER

comprehensive income #E&

Debt investments at fair value RABEZHHTALLRE NA R - 213,159 - 213,159 FVOCI
through other comprenensive Wi EBEE (debt) (&%)
income

From: Bllls receivables B EREE (i) 213,159 -

Trade receivables B ENFE L8R 2,313,438 - (1,686) 231,752 AC

Financial assets included in STARRAFE - EtEK L8R 40,170 - - 40,170 AC
prepayments, other receivables  FEREEES
and other assets PREE

Derivative financial instruments PTESRMIA FVPLS 4418 - - 4418 FVPL

(mandatory)
(G&#t)
Equity investments at farvalie AR EEEE;ABES FVPL 12,545 - - 12,545 FVPL
through proft or loss EritRE (mandatory)
(M)
Pledged deposts BEAFER L8R 540,116 - - 540,116 AC
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREZEN L8R 401,042 - - 401,042 AC
3,657,464 - (1,686) 3,605,778
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31 December 2018
- N\F+ZA=+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies 2.2 @5 BIRRIFESENWE

and Disclosures (continued) (&
(b) (continued) (b) (#&)
Classification and measurement (continueq) SHEREE ()
1AS 39 measurement IFRS 9 measurement
BB & RS0 E EREBREEE HoRHE
Re-
Category Amount  classification ECL Amount Category
5l Ex] BHE RHGEEE £E ER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETTL ARETT ARETT

Other assets HEE

Deferted tax assets EEHEAE 48,838 - 422 49,310

Total assets BESE 8,625,282 - (1,264) 8,624,018

Financial liabifies SHAR

Trade and bills payables BHRAFERERRE AC 1,665,247 - - 1,665,247 AC

Financial liabiities included in other & A\ E At 78 {4 318 R fE 5t AC 13,771 - - 13771 AC

payables and accruals ERMSRARE
Interest-bearing bank borowings i 8 EITEE AC 3,013,891 - - 3013891 AC
4,792,909 < 5 4792909

Totalliabilties aELE 5578324 = = 5,678,324

1 FVOCI: Financial assets at fair value through other 1 FVOCI : R ABEZ BT AR EEK
comprehensive income mZEMEE

2 AFS: Available-for-sale investments 2 AFS : AJft H ERE

3 L&R: Loans and receivables 8 L&R : B & FE W FRIB

4 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at 4 AC R AFIEC S MEBEERS
amortised cost e &

5 FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through profit or 5 FVPL : AR BEZE G ABRZ &/
loss HE
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

(b) (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

Notes:

(i) The Group has elected the option to irrevocably
designate certain of its previous available-for-
sale equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

(ii) The Group has classified its bills receivables
as debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income since initial adoption
of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, since the bills
receivables were held within the business model
whose objective was achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and the contractual cash flows were solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Impairment

The following table reconciles the aggregate
opening impairment allowances under IAS 39
to the ECL allowances under IFRS 9. Further
details are disclosed in note 22 to the financial
statements.

31 December 2018
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PHERIHE ()
B 5 -

() AREEEATTHEEETETE
E GRS ER IR A ARERAR
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RS R EOWRME - AREEE K E
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements &R EKIEE

22 BHBARBESABLT

yZ!

(b) (continued) (b) (#&)
Impairment (continued) JR1E (4)
Impairment ECL
allowances allowances
under IAS 39 under IFRS 9
at 31 at1
December Re- January
2017 measurement 2018
R-B-N\%F
R=ZF—tF —HA—H
+=A R B B A
=t+-—H WEER
REERE oM
% B 53957 1 BHEER
HERE BHIE BEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®TT
Trade receivables B 5 WA 30,353 1,686 32,039

Impact on reserves and retained profits

The impact of transition to IFRS 9 on retained

profits is as follows:

Bt KR a7 2

18 A BB R B 5 o o ZE R SR 05 (R R
MR BT -

Retained
profits
R & 5% F
RMB’000
ARETT
Retained profits REB = A
Balance as at 31 December 2017 BIEEBR ST &R FEIENR T —+F
under IAS 39 TZA=T—AMEH 1,107,667
Recognition of expected credit losses BEERBREENFIRERE S
for trade receivables under IFRS 9 FEUGRIER TEH = BB 1R (1,686)
Deferred tax in relation to the above BE L REERE 422
Balance as at 1 January 2018 1R 15 [ B B 75 o 2 28 RI S5 95 A
under IFRS 9 —E-N\F-A B 1,106,403
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31 December 2018
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20 B HE R MBS EE

(45

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

(c) IFRS 15 and its amendments replace IAS 11 (c) EUBRBITSHRELERFE155% REIEFT A

Construction Contracts, |IAS 18 Revenue and
related interpretations and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts
with customers. IFRS 15 establishes a new
five-step model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in
IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The
disclosures are included in note 5 to the financial
statements. As a result of the application of IFRS
15, the Group has changed the accounting policy
with respect to revenue recognition in note 2.4 to
the financial statements.

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 using the
modified retrospective method of adoption. Under
this method, the standard can be applied either
to all contracts at the date of initial application
or only to contracts that are not completed at
this date. The Group has elected to apply the
standard to contracts that are not completed as
at 1 January 2018.

REBESHERNENREES A BIR
SRR S8 MR E HiR
BROISMERSN RERRABAEFA
HIEE R s - BIRR BA 15 S 2R I 5815
SRS —EX AR IS REEP
B AU IBR - R IBBIR M R E
AIIEE155% - e 1R AL R IR B RE TR RARL X2
BAE P EEE YIRS M A EESH
RESEER BT HHRELERF15
SRR A A B R R I ER TR (5 A
BACETT R « Z AN S| ARZRTEE
REERBEMRTE BEAFRGEEER
AREITEE TRYFEZHEENEE
K BB B SRR E B AR E B HIE N
fAETEVE R - BRAREE R SRR 5
FRPEED © AR FE R BRI 75 i 5 R
1557  ANEE D SRR RE2.48
FER MR SR TR °

AEEEEBRABENENEPREEE
BRAN B B 75 ¥ 5 ZE RI SR 1555 < ARt
T3 AR SR B R S B IR B HIR AT
BANSEHNZARRTHHEH
JERRZER - AEEREREHN_-F
—N\F—A—BRARTROELERZ

o
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies 22 &5t BERIFESHENE
and Disclosures (continued) (&

(c) (#&)

(c) (continued)

130

Before the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group
recognised consideration received from
customers in advance as receipt in advance
included in other payables and accruals. Under
IFRS 15, the amount is classified as contract
liabilities included in other payables and accruals.

Therefore, upon adoption of IFRS 15, the Group
reclassified RMB133,257,000 from receipt in
advance included in other payables and accruals
to contract liabilities included in other payables
and accruals as at 1 January 2018 in relation
to the consideration received from customers in
advance as at 1 January 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, under IFRS 15,
RMB178,188,000 was reclassified from receipt in
advance included in other payables and accruals
to contract liabilities included in other payables
and accruals in relation to the consideration
received from customers in advance for the sale
of industrial products and sale of properties.
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31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

20 B HE R MBS EE

(45

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

(d) Amendments to IAS 40 clarify when an entity (d) EFREsHERIB0MET AL EE

should transfer property, including property under
construction or development, into or out of
investment property. The amendments state that
a change in use occurs when the property meets,
or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in
use. A mere change in management’s intentions
for the use of a property does not provide
evidence of a change in use. The amendments
have had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

IFRIC 22 provides guidance on how to determine
the date of the transaction when applying IAS
21 to the situation where an entity receives or
pays advance consideration in a foreign currency
and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability.
The interpretation clarifies that the date of the
transaction for the purpose of determining the
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it)
is the date on which an entity initially recognises
the non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment)
or non-monetary liability (such as deferred
income) arising from the payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising
the related item, the entity must determine the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. The interpretation
has had no impact on the Group’s financial
statements as the Group’s accounting policy for
the determination of the exchange rate applied for
initial recognition of non-monetary assets or non-
monetary liabilities is consistent with the guidance
provided in the interpretation.

BREAYE (HHEREERERTY
B)BEASBHREMENRE -ZF
BRI EMEF A TBHERE
MENEERR ARERBIBERTARE
B AeEEEY -HEEEERE
WEMERE  AITERAREFHNE
IR FETHAKENM AR RE
BB E -

EBERES R FE2AEAR - ERY
BHREREZEER2RNERSETE
IASNEE AN =k 32 (M B BRI R 5.2 B
H ARERIFER EESIFERAE
REIES %R BN BE & RER
MERAEE - P Skiias (ERERD ) P
ERZERZ X5 BHAERERER
SNSRI R EEENFEREE
(FIanFafIR) Sr e a & (HlanE
FEWA) 2 B - fHifER B IR R R 7S
RSB ATIER - B /AREE &R
SN SRBRBNRENRZ AR BR
AEEETBEAERIFEREENIFE
BRBERERZEXNETBE %R
BRREOES -2 SRR AR
H I SRR W AT AR
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31 December 2018
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective 2.3 & 78 oK A AV B R B 7%
International Financial Reporting & ZE A
Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and REERZEVEmEANLBERULTE 8
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet MER AT AT MAIERT MBI BT 1 el s
effective, in these financial statements. AERf o
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business® B AR B s e o 2 A EBHTE
FIRABE AR
Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative B IR B s e o 2 A ERENFHERAGE
Compensation’ FIRMEFT A
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets B IR B s e o 2 A REZHRHE L A3
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its F10RRBEK 2R BERABIMHEL
Associate or Joint Venture* ZRIFBRMEITR  FE
IFRS 16 Leases' B IR B s e o 2 A e
F165
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® B IR B s e o 2 A RSP
EATH
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material? BReENEIRNE ZEZUNTE
and IAS 8 Rert R
B
BRI
Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or =] GTEIEET R E A
Settlement' F19RMBETA
Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates Eils il REERFIREE R AR
and Joint Ventures' F28RMERT A R
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Bl s R e PR EEN T REE
Treatments' ZEEFR
Annual Improvements Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, ZF-RfFZE B A% B 75 R 5 2 B 2635
2015-2017 Cycle IAS 12 and IAS 23 ZE—+F B % B 75 i o 2
EF R Y E15R - ER 25 ER
F1259 kBB 2 £
FE23HMB AT
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 g RZZ—NF—A Bz EREZFEH
January 2019 £
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 RIZZZTF—A— Bz ERB2FEH
January 2020 £
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 8 RZZZ—F—A— Bz EREZFEH
January 2021 £
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available 4 18] % /8 7 o il A2 2 B AR ME A] A B AN

for adoption
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The
amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed
to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable
of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The amendments have also narrowed the definition
of outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired
process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.

31 December 2018
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31 December 2018
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in 1AS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or
loss resulting from the transaction is recognised
in the investor’'s profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed
by the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of
a broader review of accounting for associates and joint
ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard
includes two elective recognition exemptions for
lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term
leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments
(i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the
right to use the underlying asset during the lease term
(i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset
is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the
right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in IAS 40, or relates to a class of property,
plant and equipment to which the revaluation model
is applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced
for the lease payments. Lessees will be required to
separately recognise the interest expense on the lease
liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-
use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure
the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under
IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in IAS 17
and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make
more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17. Lessees
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective 2.3 B 78 it AR A B 0 B R B 7%
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International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach.
The Group will adopt IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019.
The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions
in IFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial
adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at 1 January 2019 and will not restate
the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply
the new requirements to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying IAS 17 and measure the
lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The
right-of-use asset will be measured at the amount
of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the
lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before the date of initial application. The
Group plans to use the exemptions allowed by the
standard on lease contracts whose lease terms end
within 12 months as of the date of initial application.
During 2018, the Group has performed a detailed
assessment on the impact of adoption of IFRS 16.
The Group has estimated that right-of-use assets of
RMB15,166,000 and lease liabilities of RMB14,886,000
will be recognised at 1 January 2019 with a
corresponding adjustments to the opening balance of
retained earnings.
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material if
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of IFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or
joint venture to which the equity method is applied
and does not include long-term interests that in
substance form part of the net investment in the
associate or joint venture, to which the equity method
has not been applied. Therefore, an entity applies
IFRS 9, rather than IAS 28, including the impairment
requirements under IFRS 9, in accounting for such
long-term interests. IAS 28 is then applied to the net
investment, which includes the long-term interests, only
in the context of recognising losses of an associate or
joint venture and impairment of the net investment in
the associate or joint venture. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments on 1 January 2019 and will
assess its business model for such long-term interests
based on the facts and circumstances that exist on 1
January 2019 using the transitional requirements in the
amendments. The Group also intends to apply the relief
from restating comparative information for prior periods
upon adoption of the amendments.
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2.3 Issued but not yet Effective 2.3 B 78 it AR A B 0 B R B 7%
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International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

IFRIC 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12
(often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies
outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity
considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination
of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (i) how an
entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts
and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the
use of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of application as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January
2019. The interpretation is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE «

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

24FE
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Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments,
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
and certain available-for-sale investments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BITSR#&MIET | ‘

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets FEeMEERE
When an indication of impairment exists, or when AP REBRLIRRE AR EERETE

annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, financial assets and deferred tax
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BITSR#&MIET | ‘

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or
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31 December 2018
—N\F+ZA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

U

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 8 — 10 years
Office equipment 3 -5 years
Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
Tooling and equipment 3 -5 years
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant
and machinery under construction or installation and
testing. It is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction or installation and testing and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation and
testing. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BIF5#aRMizE ‘

2.4 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives ranging from 20 to 48 years.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance
with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change
in use.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises the land
costs, construction costs, capitalised borrowing costs
and other cost directly attributed to such properties
during the period of construction.

Y
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Properties under development
(continued)

Properties under development are initially classified as
non-current assets and transferred to current assets
under the category of properties held for sale when
the construction of the relevant properties commences
and the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete within the
normal operating cycle.

Completed properties held for sale
Completed properties held for sale are stated at

the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined by an apportionment of the total land and

BRTPYE (&)
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buildings costs attributable to unsold properties. Net TR MERERESZERMAGHE
realisable value is estimated by the directors based on

the prevailing market prices, on an individual property

basis.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) BEEE (BERM)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition as cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Computer software

Computer software of the Group is amortised on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship of the Group is amortised on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.

Trademark

Trademark of the Group is amortised on the straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of 8 years.

Licence

Licence of the Group is amortised on the straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of 10 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as incurred.

31 December 2018

—F-N\&t+ZA=+—H

QAT EESTTHRBE (&)

BREE (BEKRMD) (&)

BRI
AR IR BB FERM 3t A IR0
EEE eSS R

BPH

AR B B E L E SRR 10O T
RS

BiE

AEBENEIEABE AN ESFRET A2
FHREH

WA

RE B R IRABARED E10F eVl at Al 8
FHINEH

HHFE R 5] 3 AR

BT A G R ELR SRR

BLEBRRMERAIA | —F\FFH

R
VM\V

@m

I TR

151



Notes to the Financial Statements &R EKIEE

31 December 2018
—N\F+ZA=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant AXTESTHERBE (&
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Research and development costs (continued)

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding five years, commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases, net of any
incentives received from the lessor, are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BIF5#aRMizE ‘

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Operating leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under IFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue

recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)” below.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under IFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018) (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018

RENRHMEMEE (BTN
F— A — B E R R B B 35 )
HEAEIFREANHBE) (&)

4G TR R it 2 (#E)

RETRMEERBHRASIRAEEZD)
FRARMEEPEETOBRNGTE TEL
RSN A RARERASNE (MR
ZFQK*UEJ ) E‘,‘jfﬁﬁﬁlbi °

AEEEESHEENFEHRAEHEEA
TREENEERDREN N - EHEAK
REREREEGHANKBENRERE
HESREE AMEM-

EREETABEREENSREERNZ
8 BAEEAGBENHEEEN B
FERR - IL & 5 A\ I5 B R AR R T35 AR Bl =X
BOENERBARNZACREE



2.4 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under IFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost
if both of the following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows.

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under IFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling.

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value
change recognised in other comprehensive income is
recycled to the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE «

2.4 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under IFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under IFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, as described
above, debt instruments may be designated at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under IFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

This category includes derivative instruments
and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under IAS 39 applicable before
1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under IAS 39 applicable before
1 January 2018) (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurerment

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BIF5#aRMizE ‘

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under IAS 39 applicable before
1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39
are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under IAS 39 applicable before
1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in
this category are those which are intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss. Interest and dividends earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable

before 1 January 2018)” below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under IAS 39 applicable before
1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to the statement of
profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference between
the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded
in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant AXTESTHERBE (&
Accounting Policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets RIBAEMEE (B=F—N\F
(policies under IFRS 9 applicable from —A—HEBRANBERTERSE
1 January 2018 and policies under IAS ZRAFGRENHER-ZE—N\F
39 applicable before 1 January 2018) —A—BRABANERETE

BIZ5393R 8 T BUR)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a SRMEE (WER —BeREEN—IH
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial SRS REEN—HD)E NIERT
assets) is derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s 15 TR (Bl B RSB 2456 B SRR
consolidated statement of financial position) when: FAPMBR)
e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset e BEEWERESREMNENEER: K

have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive e AEBEEEEBEAERDBREREN
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an R ERBE—IE [ ZHRER
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full B EEEREREAT HAEES
without material delay to a third party under a umgi%ﬂ‘f%""fﬁ MAEE @D 8
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the EEEMBAED BB KRB (o)l
Group has transferred substantially all the risks o (REE ﬁ%ﬁ’]%@ﬁ*ﬁ 7Rk K Bl
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has W EEEEEENEGE-

neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive EAKEREEA —BAEKRRERE
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass- WM E T BN L AN R E g
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, BELREBZEEFAENRR KB HIAKE
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of BE - R EEENREBZEENBRI D
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained [ B\ B N2 [O1 % - I AR EE SR A% B B V12 M By - AR
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor CEEEERZEREEE URHEZEEW
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues EEMBERAR - RZBEAT  ANEE TR
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the ARG CDEEEEMABEE IR R
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group AEBERBOENRBRBOELESE -

also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets
(policies under IFRS 9 applicable from
1 January 2018 and policies under IAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January
2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January
2018) (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are one year past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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2.4 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January
2018) (continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which
credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that are
not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but
that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January
2018) (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset or
a group of financial assets have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies
under IAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss
— is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for
sale are not reversed through the statement of profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost.
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2.4 Summary of Significant 2AXTESTHERME ()
Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS cREes(B=E—-N\NE—H—H

9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and #EIE A A I‘i‘%,\ﬁ%ﬁ%‘—"%ﬁﬂﬁgsﬁ

IAS 39 applicable before 1 January EHIRER-_F—N\F—H—H

2018) Z B E P Y B R & 5t 2 AU S8 395%
HTIBR)

Initial recognition and measurement G BER R GTE

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, = TTBA%MAEEu/uﬁﬂ)ﬁi”*ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, BEFABR EMAE ERLEEXE

loans and borrowings or payables as appropriate. 58 (WEmA) -

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value FiEermBEVBEANEBERR mMIE

and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, ERREEAREMNFIE BIFIBREEEG

net of directly attributable transaction costs. RSN

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills AEENSRAERREE S ENFKIERERN

payables, other payables and accruals, and interest- FE - HinE RIB LB E A KT ERIT

bearing bank borrowings. BE-

Subsequent measurement ’RETE

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities CRAERESBECBEETENT:

depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings ENREE

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank pEt 2% s ERITEERERAEERF

borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised EEIRE SN AT BRI 2B IE

cost, using the effective interest rate method unless BAARKAGE - EBEREERUARE

the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which iﬁ BB AR A BER  WaE REENE

case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are R AR

recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS
9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
IAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Loans and borrowings (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
(policies under IFRS 9 applicable from
1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

PAFTEESTTHRBE (&)

Accounting Policies (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments
(policies under IFRS 9 applicable from
1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments (policies
under IFRS 9 applicable from 1 January
2018 and IAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such
as forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are recognised directly in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis. The costs of raw materials comprise
the purchasing costs of the materials and other costs
incurred in bringing the materials to their present
locations and conditions. The costs of work in progress
and finished goods comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of manufacturing
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.
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Accounting Policies (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the
sale of certain industrial products for general repairs of
defects occurring during the warranty period. Provisions
for these assurance-type warranties granted by the
Group are recognised based on sales volume and
past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
government grant account and is released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1
January 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group a significant financial benefit
for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For
a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised goods
or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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2.4 Summary of Significant 2AXTESTHERME (£)
Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 WEBR(B=ZE—N\F—HA—H

January 2018) (continued) HER) (&)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) EREE#HN (&)

(@ Sale of industrial products @ HEILXEm
Revenue from the sale of industrial products is HE THEEMNKENEEE G EEE
recognised at the point in time when control of the EEPREER —RARXMNIEEM
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on =

delivery of the industrial products.

(b)  Sale of properties b) WEWE
Revenue from the sales of properties is HEVEMK SN EREREE
recognised at the point in time when control of the MR -

ownership is transferred to the buyer.

Revenue from other sources H i R AT 7 48
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis TSGR R R b R EETF R A FHRIERR o

over the lease terms.

Other income H A

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using FlEW IR ERT RN E R AR LGSR T
the effective interest method by applying the rate that BT AR R Fa AT A (58 FA 4 HA HA R ok B i B
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts M (@A) WA R S IR E M EE
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a AREDFER IR HER -

shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before
1 January 2018)

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received,
excluding other sales taxes or duties. The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognised:

@

©)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred, the title has
been passed to the buyer and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold.

Sale of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the properties sold.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before
1 January 2018) (continued)

(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

(d)  Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion
basis over the lease terms.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1
January 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods
or services to a customer for which the Group has
received a consideration (or an amount of consideration
that is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
the consideration before the Group transfers goods
or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract.
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Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of the reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE

2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as

URHBEROTR (A

5 A R A A BT  BIRRRE
PAEESH B B SR (I {A) (R R TR 03X T 22
MR - AR HERR - E R AR E S HE
1 B2 HI MR IR R B IR I AR R RO (e 22
By AT AR THEZEAE EE A KR

WL BEEE AR RIS EHZ
5D o SR - AT B AT - R BUR B IR

A E TR AR HARITERE I 2 BE

additional share dilution in the computation of earnings JE Rl [ IR A REHNAR 10 5 o
per share.

Other employee benefits H b {2 5 & F
Pension schemes RUk2it 2

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”’) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB. In prior
years, the Company’s functional currency was RMB.
As at 1 July 2018, the Directors had re-evaluated
the economic environment of the Company and
determined that the functional currency of the Company
has been changed from RMB to USD given its major
funding and financing activities were raised increasingly
in USD. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries and associates are currencies other than
the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independent of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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3.

—N\F+ZR=+—H

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Judgements (continued)
Tax

Determining income tax provisions requires the Group
to make judgements on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions in accordance with
prevailing tax regulations and practices and makes tax
provisions accordingly.

The Group’s determination as to whether to recognize
deferred tax liability for withholding taxes from the
distribution of dividends from the subsidiaries in the
PRC according to the relevant tax jurisdictions is
subject to judgement on the timing of distribution of
dividends. The Directors had assessed whether it is
probable for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to distribute
dividends out of their profits earned after 1 January
2008. For details, refer to note 32 to the financial
statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial years, are described
below.
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Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2018
was RMB10,636,000 (2017: RMB8,699,000). Further
details are given in note 17 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).

31 December 2018
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3.

—N\F+ZR=+—H

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
(continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 22 to the
financial statements.
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Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations, competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles or unforeseeable change in legal
enforcement rights in future. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

31 December 2018
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3.

—N\F+ZR=+—H

Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Useful lives of intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related amortisation charges for its intangible assets.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful life of intangible assets of similar
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations. Management reassesses the
useful lives at each reporting date.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of an inventory is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of a similar nature which could
change significantly as a result of competitor actions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each
reporting date. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the amount of inventories provision recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss was
RMB2,460,000 (2017: RMB3,957,000) (note 6).
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Significant Accounting
Judgements and Estimates
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The amount of unrecognised tax losses as
at 31 December 2018 was RMB83,127,000 (2017:
RMB75,857,000). Further details are included in note
32 to the financial statements.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with
the accounting policy for research and development
costs in note 2.4 to the financial statements.
Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires
management to make assumptions regarding the
expected future cash generation of the assets,
discount rates to be applied and the expected period
of benefits. At 31 December 2018, the best estimate
of the carrying amount of capitalised development
costs was RMB488,696,000 (2017: RMB361,968,000).
Further details are included in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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Operating Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture,
development and sale of lead-acid batteries and other
related items.

International Financial Reporting Standard 8 Operating
Segments requires operating segments to be identified
on the basis of internal reports about components
of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM”) in order to
allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance. The information reported to the executive
directors of the Company, who is the Group’s CODM
for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of performance, does not contain profit or loss
information of each product line and the executive
directors reviewed the gross profit of the Group as a
whole reported under IFRSs. Therefore, the operation
of the Group constitutes one reportable segment.
Accordingly, no segment information is presented.

No segment assets and liabilities and related other
segment information were presented as no such
discrete financial information is provided to the CODM.

Information about products

An analysis of revenue by products is as follows:

4.

/

AEBETERERE HAEMBEERKES
AN B Ab AR R 5 o

BRI B s o o R R SESSR AR & 0 BB AR E BAR IR
AEBEEBM AR HREIREEDE B
FAANHREREIBELARARE ([TBRER
RE|)ERERN U EERT D8 EFHE
DERR - ARRAIANTES (AIAEEEER
RERRE ) EMARDEE R MHERER
BRI T EREEMGNIERER RITES
EHRBEBEEVBRELEN 2R AKEE
BEM-FEih AEBEERFE—ERN2HD
B AR 2D BB FY o

W4 2515 A B J B EA R AARRE R 5
AR REBEEEEREERERNRA
BB HER -

Em&EH

REmS DR DT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AREFTT

Lead-acid batteries INERE T 8,069,088 7,661,343
Recycled lead products [B] e 38 EE 1,419,052 1,754,834
Others HAth 56,278 49,267
9,544,418 9,465,444

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018



@

Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE
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4. Operating Segment Information 4. B& DI ER (&
(continued)
Geographical information i EE R
Revenue from external customers (@) KEIEFEF Kz
2018 2017
—B-N\F —
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
PRC H 6,170,748 6,389,915
European Union (g 1,087,103 902,930
USA ES 960,332 895,555
Other Asian countries/areas H T MNER, &= 796,309 887,497
Other countries HA B s 529,926 389,547
9,544,418 9,465,444

©®)

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

bt BB T ER T PR AT o

Non-current assets b) FEBEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEF T
PRC o] 2,859,909 2,709,583
Other countries/areas HMER, R 227,239 158,604
3,087,148 2,868,187

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes
financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

LIRS EEERIERZETEEN
fEDHT BT ERSBTAMELER

REE-
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4.

Operating Segment Information
(continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from each major customer, including a group
of entities which are known to be under common
control with that customer, which accounted for 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017, is set out below:

REDEER (&)

FRIEEFNESR

hAEEEE T \ER-T—t+tF+=
A=+—HBItFEWRZEN10%TA L RES
FTEEF (BRE—HEETZE L LR

HEER) B EETI T

2018 2017

—E-N\fF —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARET T

Customer A BFEH 1,033,825 1,269,150
Customer B 2R 342,935 1,099,791
1,376,760 2,368,941

Except for the aforesaid, there is no single external
customer from which the revenue accounted for 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue.

Revenue, Other Income and
Gains

B EXATaiE SN W E M E — MR R P

s AR EWET10%3 A Lo

s~ AW K W=

An analysis of revenue is as follows: W :
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®ETF T
Revenue from contracts with customers B FE & #Iz 9,544,418 -
Sale of goods HEBM - 9,465,444
9,544,418 9,465,444
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31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

5. Revenue, Other Income and 5. W HAWA K W
Gains (continued) (#&
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEWE
()  Disaggregated revenue information ) Wz EHHS
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE_ZT—-N\F+ZA=+—HLF
=
Total
it
RMB’000
ARETT
Type of goods BYER
Sale of industrial products HETH¥ER 9,488,140
Others HAh 56,278
9,544,418
Timing of revenue recognition Wiy 2 e 2 By P
Goods transferred at a point in time RERREHEEEY 9,544,418
The following table shows the amounts of revenue T%ﬁlm_' RBEBRIEFFAEHNEBER
recognised in the current reporting period that REM G HBER WSS
were included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the reporting period:
2018
—E-N\F
RMB’000
AR® T
Revenue recognised that was included in st ARSIV & N B BN BR K E
contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period:
Sale of goods HEEY 133,257
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

5. Revenue, Other Income and 5.

Gains (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

(i) Performance obligations

i & ~ HABUA K Yz

(%)

(i)

Information about the Group’s performance

obligations is summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation for sale of industrial
products is satisfied upon delivery of the industrial

products and payment is generally

due within

60 to 90 days from delivery, except for new
customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The performance obligation for others
is satisfied when control of the ownership of

properties is transferred to the buyer.

EFakE (&)

FAAKEBERHNETZERS MM
T

HEEY

HETEXEMWBENEEIRRNIE
7 B K S OB B R R A AR FT60
HEQAAZH M EFBEFTE
BRI Hib B HORER Y
ENHRARNZEGRER TETRZE
B o

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREET T
Other income and gains E A R ez
Bank interest income RITHEHA 12,034 13,374
Government grants* I8 4 B 66,610 24,096
Dividend income from available- AHHEREREKA
for-sale investments - 1,301
Sale of scrap materials SHE RER 5,552 6,685
Foreign exchange gains, net HNEE B H s - SRR - 37,121
Rental income HE WA 2,350 4,765
Gain on bargain purchase ELE e - 880
Fair value gains, net: AABEWE  F5E:
Derivative financial instruments PTHESMITA - 1,166
Equity investments at fair value NABEEHFT ABEN
through profit or loss EEMRE 43 >
Structured bank deposits EBMERITER 866 -
Others" Hr 30,871 4,643
118,326 94,031
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5. Revenue, Other Income and
Gains (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(i)

Perforrance obligations (continued)

Sale of goods (continued)

The government grants represent various
cash payments and subsidies provided by the
local government authorities to the Group as
encouragement for its investment and technological
innovation. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to these subsidies.

Others include an insurance claim received from
the insurance company for losses in inventories
and property, plant and equipment in relation to the
fire of an assembly plant of the Group in Malaysia
in December 2017, the amount of which was
RMB23,339,000 during the year.

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

5. Yadh - Rl A R

EFENWE (&)

(i) ERIEME (&
HEEY (&)

: BT H B T4 3 77 BUR 8P P94 T AN S
B RERSFORRME  UEEERE
R sitn g - SRR Bz S R e R
ERK G R AR IR

" WAEE At T —t&F+=
AREECNEROATN—ERKE
R NERFE AR - BB KR
BAME KRR A RNREIZE SR
AR 23,339,000t ©
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6.

—N\F+ZR=+—H

Profit Before Tax 6. BigizA
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after SEMB AR D&M (FEA) AT
charging/(crediting): HER®RBH:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt &E AR® TR AR®ET T
Cost of inventories sold FTERFERKA 7,286,798 7,219,119
Employee benefit expense BERMAX
(including directors’ (BEEZHe
remuneration (note 8)): (FfI5ES) ) -
Wages and salaries TERF& 758,701 731,043
Equity-settled share option AR EE R
expenses I RER 5,011 4,643
Pension scheme contributions RIREET MK 74,856 63,283
838,568 798,969
Amortisation of other intangible H b\ & B
assets except for deferred (EIERBERASBRIN)
development costs 18 20,483 15,040
Research and development costs: 2 fi AN :
Deferred development costs I SE B B P AN 4 S
amortised* 18 82,847 73,809
Current year expenditure FANAL 111,025 143,084
193,872 216,893
Auditor’'s remuneration ZH AN & 2,700 2,600
Derivative financial instruments: PTHESRMTA:
Unrealised loss REREE - 207
Realised loss/(gain) BEEBREE (k) 145 (1,373)
Fair value loss/(gain) from derivative ~ $TA£&R T AR R EE
financial instruments, net* &, (M) B 145 (1,166)
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Profit Before Tax (continued)

. Bl

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

Dm A (&)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR¥T T ARBF T
Equity investments at fair value NABEEHT AERZN
through profit or loss: %*’IE&ﬁ
Unrealised (gain)/loss KREH (M=) BB (43) 1,050
Fair value gain from structured HERURITFERAA
bank deposits AEEKE 27 (866) -
Depreciation of property, WE -BEREETE
plant and equipment 13 285,062 218,888
Depreciation of investment properties 1% & M E 14 219 1,321
Amortisation of prepaid land lease ~ F& 1t + 3th FH & FIE #4 £
payments 16 3,862 3,656
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) & 5 & W 318
of trade receivables BB, ( /BZTE%Y% ) 22 3,266 (7,713)
Impairment of inventories* FERE" 2,460 3,957
Loss on disposal of items of property, & &M%  ME M
plant and equipment, net* XEIEEB R EE FE 831 611
Loss on remeasurement of the EFFTELAN —HEEE
previously held interest in an RAFEERANER
associate - 2,064
Foreign exchange loss/(gain), net*  SNEFE 3% &8, (Yzt) -
SRR 28,001 (37,121)
Minimum lease payments under LEHE TR
operating leases wIEHEEFRIA 13,590 9,717
Insurance claim received from the LR MIBRE YRR A F]
insurance company for loss on IR IBEE K NB R
a fire incident/loss on a fire incident (23,339) 28,153
* The amortisation of deferred development costs and * ERERE NS R EFEREFAGZEER

impairment of inventories are included in “Cost of sales” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Net fair value loss from derivative financial instruments, net
loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment
and net foreign exchange loss are included in “Other
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

RIHERA] F o

MTESRTAXNABEBEFR BEME -
5= K& fﬁlﬁﬁ B S 185 B I SN S 1R R
SPAmEEAR [HMfAX]dh-
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7. Finance Costs

7. BEIF& RN

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: KA T
2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Interest on bank borrowings IRITEEFE 157,117 114,274
Interest arising from discounted bills BEIREEEENFE 45,239 37,514
202,356 151,788

8. Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

8. EEM=

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

BiE FHHEE - FERQAEFIZE383(1)(@)
o) ORMERAR (BBEEEFZER) R
Dl E 2 FANEEME T :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREEFTT

Fees we 630 728
Other emoluments: H A B %

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & 2 BE R B WEF| 1,828 1,862

Equity-settled share option expenses NEREENERERS 185 269

Pension scheme contributions RIREFFEIHR 82 86

2,095 2,217

2,725 2,945
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8. Directors’ Remuneration 8. EEME (&
(continueqd)
(@) Independent non-executive () BAFHITES
directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive FBMFFRTEEX N ZBEWT

directors were as follows:

Salaries,
allowances  Performance-  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
¥e BER DEREEN Bhe
ik BEVEA  EREHTL BRERX AR ]

RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  AR%TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARET:R

2018 “E-N\%

Mr. Lau Chi Kit Elt ks 210 - - 39 - 249

Mr. Liu Yangsheng EDE 210 - - 39 - 249

Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan BMELA 210 - - 39 - 249
630 - - 17 - 747

2017 “E-tF

Mr. Lau Chi Kit BB GREE 201 - - 87 - 288

Mr. Gong Fangxiong* EhEEt 125 - - - - 125

Mr. Liu Yangsheng BGERE 201 - - 87 - 288

Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan ENMERE 201 - - 87 - 288
728 - - 261 - 989

There were no other emoluments payable to the ERWERAB T EHITES A EM

independent non-executive directors during the e (—FE—+F |E) o

year (2017: Nil).

* Dr. Gong Fangxiong resigned as an independent * EEEELR - E—+EXA+TANE

non-executive director of the Company on 16 June BARATIBYIERITES-

2017.
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31 December 2018
- N\F+ZA=+—H

8. Directors’ Remuneration 8. EEME (&
(continued)
(b) Executive directors and a non- (b) BITESRIHITES
executive director
Salaries,
allowances  Performance-  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
¥e 2ER NEREEN Bfkg
He BUEN BRAHTL  BREEX HE 3 g

RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  AR%TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

2018 —E-N\%
Executive directors: HIES:
Mr. Dong Li Y - 830 - - 79 909
Ms. Zhao Huan* HEL T - 511 - - 2 513
Ms. Yin Haiyan® makat - 333 - 68 1 402
- 1,674 - 68 82 1,824
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky"  Philip Armstrong
NozneskyZZ " - 154 - - - 154
- 1,828 - 68 82 1,978
2017 “E—+F
Executive directors: BIES:
Mr. Dong Li 5%k - 830 - - 78 908
Ms. Zhao Huan* HEL L - 836 - 8 8 852
- 1,666 - 8 86 1,760
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky"  Philip Armstrong
Nozneskyt 4" - 19 - - - 196
- 1,862 - 8 86 1,956
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8. Directors’ Remuneration 8. EXEME (&
(continued)
. - L= /= ==
(b) Executive directors and a non- b) BITEERFUTES (A)
executive director (continued)
* Ms. Zhao Huan resigned as an executive director of * EERZTRZZT—N\F/\ANHEITE
the Company on 6 August 2018. RAFITES -
# Ms. Yin Haiyan was appointed as an executive # MEgRaZtR=—=— ) \FtA=+H
director of the Company on 30 July 2018. Ms. Yin BEZAERRDRNITES HBRL T
Haiyan is also the chief executive of the Company. MBRAT ZTHEH
" Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky passed away on 22 " Philip Armstrong Noznesky %t £ =&
September 2018. —N\FNAZ+ =Bt
There was no arrangement under which a director FAMBERNEHESTREXRE
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration WMEEAMENZEH (ZT—EF:
during the year (2017: Nil). m|) o

9. Five Highest Paid Employees 9. AZEZeFHMES

The five highest paid employees during the year FRNAEEaFMEEY BFE—%R (=

included one (2017: two) director, details of whose T—tF WMB)ESF EHFWNFBEHER L

remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the XHiFE8 cF A HpE (ZFE—+kF: =

remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2017: BIES 2R FTHEE DT B
three) non-director, highest paid employees are as ™

follows:

2018 2017

—E-NEF T+ F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & * 288 & B W48 Fl 3,679 2,747
Equity-settled share option expenses At E AR RS 601 927
Pension scheme contributions IR FT &I 3K 34 33

4,314 3,707
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

9.

10.

Five Highest Paid Employees
(continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

hEmeHMNES (&)

B THEEZIEEN T HHES
AT

Number of employees

EEAE
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—tF
Nil to RMB1,000,000 ARBZTE
AR #1,000,0007T 2 1
RMB1,000,000 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,000,0007C &
AR #2.000,0007T 2 2
4 3

Income Tax

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax
in this jurisdiction.

The subsidiaries, Honour Label, Peak Year, Shieldon,
and Catherine Holdings, which were incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands are not subject to income tax
as these subsidiaries do not have a place of business
(other than a registered office only) or carry out any
business in the British Virgin Islands.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018
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10.Income Tax (continued)

Leoch Battery Corp., incorporated in the United States,
is subject to corporate income tax in the United States.
The applicable federal corporate income tax rate is
21% (2017: in the range of 15% to 39%) on taxable
income.

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is based
on the statutory rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of the
assessable profits of subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong, i.e., Leoch Power Supply and Leoch International
Sales. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made by Leoch Battery Company and Big Help as they
did not carry on any business in Hong Kong or had no
assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong
during the year.

The Singapore authority approved Leoch Battery Pte.’s
application for the Global Trader Programme on 24 May
2014. The provision for Leoch Battery Pte.’'s current
income tax is based on the tax rate of 10% (2017:
10%).

The provision for PRC current income tax is based on
the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits of
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC as determined
in accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax
Law which was approved and became effective on 1
January 2008, except for certain subsidiaries of the
Group in the PRC which are taxed at preferential rates.

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

10. 15 %% (&

Leoch Battery Corp.Jy A EB M A - 8
REBBNEEMSH -HERT KT
T OEANEBCEMSHERA21% (ZF
—EF N F15%ZE39%) °

BEAMEGB IR BB MK LA B
Na HETERIMETEHBEEHENE
LR A AT E16.5% (=T —+
F:16.5% ) 5T 1R # 45 ° FA A Leoch Battery
Company X Big Helpilf £ 75 & B # T A 3
% SR AFEE RN BN EBE LS REIUE
A ERTUEF] - AW BB B RSB
e

MMEERR-_ZT—OFRA-TImAH
JE Leoch Battery Pte. 58 2B E H AT E1R
EA75 ° Leoch Battery Pte BNERAT/S #1 JiL #1
E10% (ZZF—HF :10% ) sHZ B -

BRAEENPENETHERREREE
BHN PEBHIS R B IR ET B X
FIsBE (R—TTNF—A—BEIER
AR $2 7K S B e B RO BT B8 1% D B0 FE AR TR
i F PA26% A FE L R EHE
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

10.Income Tax (continued)

Jiangsu Leoch, Anhui Leoch Power and Anhui Uplus
were designated as high-tech enterprises by the PRC
tax authorities and were entitled to a preferential tax

rate of 15% for the year 2018.

Taihe Dahua, which engages in qualified recycling
businesses, is entitled to a 10% deduction of revenue
for manufacturing qualified products with main qualified

raw materials.

The major components of income tax charge for the

year are as follows:

10. FT15 %% (

15% °

V=1

=]

RZZB-N\F IH#EL REETERK
RRANENHBR DB ETEREE B
RRRIFHREER ZEREMEHES

AMBFAEREAEROUYER Al 25K
GEREIECERRMHEERERER
Pris U asm10% °

FRMEHAXNEIZERIEIMAT

2018 2017

—E-N\fF —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBFTT

Current — PRC BOEARNIE — R 18,069 18,036
Current — Hong Kong BHAR 18 — & (3,881) 5,248
Current — Singapore BIHAT I8 — ¥ N3 7,571 7,202
Current — USA BIEARITE — £ B 2,139 3,884
Deferred tax EERIE (8,052) 982
Total tax charge for the year FARHIES KRR 15,846 35,352
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10.Income Tax (continued)

10.

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to
profit before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions
in which the majority of the companies of the Group are

Pt (&

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

BASEAF D AREMAERZEER
A TE 11 R 51 B 80 E AR B RS M B P S
BAXBREREN R ENRAR Y

domiciled to the tax expense at effective tax rate is as R
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR®TR % ARETT %
Profit before tax 74 A& A 142,986 306,832
Tax at the applicable tax & EAT R E K
rates 1A 42,705 29.9 86,092 281
Tax concession for certain 75 T i B A &) #Y
subsidiaries HiFER (27,763) (19.5) (46,827) (15.3)
Additional deductible FEHNATHUR
research and MR
development expenses (6,463) (4.5) (8,059) 2.6)
Income not subject to tax 7B R R W et - - (9,459) (3.1)
Expenses not deductible N AT 17 B 2
for tax 1,971 14 4,649 1.5
Tax losses not recognised 7&K FE AT 18 E5 18 8,225 5.8 11,509 38
Tax losses utilised from A ATH 2
previous periods RIAE 18 (2,829) (2.0) (2,558) 0.8)
Tax charge at the Group’s 27N B B
effective rate STERMRIERY 15,846 11.1 35,352 11.5
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31 December 2018

11

12.

—N\F+ZR=+—H

.Dividends 1.1 E
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBF T
Final — 2.0 HK cents (2017: nil) RE— = AR2.0781L
per share (ZE2—+tF: %) 23,164 -

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Earnings Per Share Attributable
to Ordinary Equity Holders of
the Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,357,431,128
(2017: 1,355,932,999) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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BERERABENSEDRE AR T REDR
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1,355,032,0000% ) A EEHH

BERESANSE R AR T RERR

BARMEFENGEN RELEAE - FHEMAN

ﬂt%ﬁﬁﬁbﬂ%?ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ?‘ﬁ%ﬁﬁx%&
B (BAEE8REXEZNAAERR)

B nilo ﬂﬁ&%%%@%ﬁ#&ﬁ
83350 A BB (8 BT R0 H B MR e 10
EFHH



Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

12.Earnings Per Share Attributable  12. ’D\E%EEVT—IﬁAEﬁ'fﬁ
to Ordinary Equity Holders of BRER (&)

the Parent (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share BRERREE RN IRE T IBIETE
are based on:
2018 2017
—E-NEF T+ F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT
Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to ordinary equity ARTESREARK
holders of the parent, used in BERN 2 B RF]
the basic and diluted earnings TEERFAEA
per share calculations FEAG & 106,418 242,885
Number of shares
grig g
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+F
Shares idvi)
Weighted average number of AR ESRERZT 2
ordinary shares in issue during FABEITLBER
the year used in the basic earnings IntE 98
per share calculation 1,357,431,128 1,355,932,999
Effect of dilution — weighted average BagrZ LAk
number of ordinary shares: hnwEFH §5( :
Share options i I 1,160,164 6,579,244

1,358,591,292 1,362,512,243
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

13.Property, Plant and Equipment  13. Y% - B = KR

Plant and Office Motor Toolingand  Construction
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
| &3 HERERE BAERME RE IARRE ERIE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETR ARETTR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR

31 December 2018 ZB-N\f+ZB=1-H
Cost: KA
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—tE+-A=+-H

1 January 2018 k=Z-NE-f-H 872,153 1,840,236 31,703 43,359 222,879 214,849 3,225,179
Additions RE 16,920 223,827 10,640 2,016 13,788 29,035 296,226
Transfer from investment BRAREWE (Wi14)

properties (note 14) 26,130 - - - - - 26,130
Acquisttion rom a subsidiary A-HBAANE

note 36) (Ff£36) - - 164 224 474 - 862
Transfers &% 27,246 108,754 - - - (136,000) -
Disposals RE (662) (25,997) (597) (694) (2,543) - (30,493)
Exchange realignment ERAE 954 (1,911) 77 113 69 50 (648)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-/\F+ZA=+-8 942,741 2,144,909 41,987 45,018 234,667 107,934 3,517,256
Accumulated depreciation and 23t TE RIEE:

impairment:
At 31 December 2017 and RZZ—tF+-A=+-BR

1 January 2018 “£-\§-f-H (199,660) (745,414) (25,692) (27,532) (179,135) (1,569) (1,179,002)
Depreciation provided FRTERRE

during the year (63,041) (198,394) (4,403) (4,630) (14,594) - (285,062)
Transfer from investment BRARENE (W14)

properties (note 14) (756) - - - - - (756)
Acquistion rom a subsidiary -FHBRANE

(note 36) (Fi5E36) - - (44) (87) (88) = (169)
Disposals RE 49 5,932 151 589 1,490 - 8,211
Exchange realignment ERHE (229) 1,074 (1) (107) (64) - 659
At 31 December 2018 RZE-/\F+-A=+-H (263,631) (936,802) (30,009) (31,717) (192,391) (1,569) (1,456,119)
Net carrying amount; REFE:
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+-A=1+-B 679,110 1,208,107 11,978 13,301 42,276 106,365 2,061,137
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13.Property, Plant and Equipment

31 December 2018

—NE+=-A=+—H

13. 9% W= K skt (&)

(continued)
Plant and Office Motor Tooling and Construction
Buidings machinery equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
BF B R 2 iNE "E TARZHE ERIR Bzt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREFT
31 December 2017 “F-t5+ZA=1-H
Cost: KA
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-RETZA=+-8
1 January 2017 RZE—t§-A-H 753,217 1,673,863 29,965 32,827 198,640 253,292 2,841,804
Additions HE 41,387 156,244 2,382 11,534 25,437 77,259 314,243
Transfer to investment BRERANE (WiH4)
properties (note 14) - - - - - (14,380) (14,380)
Acquisition from a subsidiary R—RNB AR - 106,015 - - - - 106,015
Transfers B 83,000 18,322 - - - (101,322) -
Disposals EE 2:337) (12427) (599 (041) (920) - (17,224)
Exchange realignment ERAE (3,114) (1,781) 45) (61) (278) - (5,279)
At 31 December 2017 “Z—tF+ZA=1-H 872,153 1,840,236 31,703 43,359 222,879 214,849 3,225,179
Accumulated depreciatonand Rt 7E RifE:
impairment:
At 31 December 2016 and E +=A E =
1 January 2017 T—+E-f (165,013) (593,710) (22527) 24,073 (157,235) (1,569) (964,127)
Depreciation provided 3 W Tﬁ% B
during the year (35,730) (152,982) (3:334) (4.207) (22,615) - (218,888)
Acquisition from a subsidiary m—FHB A RE - (4,085) = - - - (4,085)
Disposals RE 94 4,899 161 756 671 - 6,581
Exchange realignment B A8 989 444 8 12 44 - 1,497
At 31 December 2017 W-Z—t&+-p=+-8 (199,660) (745,414) (25,692) (27,532) (179,135) (1,569) (1,179,002
Net carrying amount; REFE:
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+&+-A=1+-8 672,493 1,094,822 6,011 15,827 43,744 213,280 2,046,177

At 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s
buildings and machinery with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB672,268,000 (2017:

RZZE—NF+-_A=+—8 A£EHE
R E LA R #672,268,0007T (ZE—+
F: ANREET47,778,00070 ) 2 & THEF KL

RMB747,778,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details of
pledged assets, please refer to note 38 to the financial
statements.

ROEMEAREEER —RBITREZ
R DEMEEFFH2HMBEHRERME
38 °
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

14.Investment Properties

14. IR E Y

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR®TF T
Cost: PR
At 1 January Kn—H—H 51,193 33,013
Transferred (to)/from property, EE(2) /8UE - BER
plant and equipment (note 13) B (M93E13) (26,130) 14,380
Transferred (to)/from prepaid land lease % (%) ‘BN LtHHE
payments (note 16) RIA (FizE16) (9,194) 3,800
At 31 December Rt+—_RA=+—H 15,869 51,193
Accumulated depreciation: ZEIE:
At 1 January m—HA—H (2,801) (1,350)
Depreciation provided during the year R #T & B & (219) (1,321)
Transferred to property, EEEYE  RE R
plant and equipment (note 13) (MF3E13) 756 -
Transferred to/(from) prepaid EEE (g)EMLHHEE
land lease payments (note 16) RIA (HizE16) 634 (130)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (1,630) (2,801)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt A=+—HMEAEE 14,239 48,392

The Group’s investment properties consist of two
industrial properties in Mainland China which were
subsequently measured using the cost model.
The Directors have determined that the investment
properties consist of one class of assets, i.e., industrial
properties, based on the nature, characteristics and risk
of each property. The Group’s investment properties
were revalued on 31 December 2018 based on the
valuation by management. Management has reviewed
the valuation assumptions and valuation results once
a year when the valuation is performed for annual
financial reporting.
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14.Investment Properties 14.

(continued)

The investment properties are leased to a related
company wholly owned by Mr. Dong Li and a third
party under operating leases, further summary details
of which are included in note 39 to the financial

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

REWZE (&
ZEREVEERERASEHALES £

EEERANBERRIRE=) HE—F
FHIFM R E N M S RAM 39 -

statements.
Fair value hierarchy NAREBEEER
The following table illustrates the fair value TREIAEBREMEN LA ABETE
measurement hierarchy of the Group's investment &
properties:
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2018 using
R-B-NE+ZA=+-RRREBEFERAER
Quoted
prices Significant  Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ERME  EAUERRE BEAFIUER
HwE wARE WAHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(%1E) (%2[E) (%£3[E) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®BTR AR®BTR AR®BTxR
Industrial properties TEME - - 30,200 30,200
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2017 using
RZE—+tF+A=+—BRAEEBEFEMRER
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BRI BEAAEE BANTER
WwE AR WA BIR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E1E) (%2E) (5E3fE) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTT ARETT ARETT AR®TR
Industrial properties TEME - - 71,550 71,550
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

14.

Investment Properties
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil).

The fair values of the investment properties are
determined using the comparison method by making
references to comparable sale evidence as available
in the relevant market. Comparable properties of
similar size, character and location are analysed and
selected for each investment property in order to arrive

14. 1REV)ZE (4&)

RREERER (&)

FRN E-—REE_FzEzRABER
EWEEE  TERASBLE=R(=F
—LFE)

BREMELAREBEIDZSREBMS LA #
LB HERE ERLEBEEE - REXK
RABEZAFHE SREVEHEER
PURE 53 R B R Al B L B RETH
e R BEFEREMISEMEEZ LA
o

at a fair comparison of their fair values. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the market unit
sale rate.

15.Properties Under Development

15. R Y%

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR AR®ETF T

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BHREE 40,869 40,869

Additions nNE 38,595 24,379
Transfer to completed properties ERERESEEEKYME

held for sale (21,601) (24,379)

Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HKNEEA 57,863 40,869
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—E-NF+=-A=+—H

16.Prepaid Land Lease Payments  16.78{4 L ith A E 7 1H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Cost: )i N
At 1 January Kn—H—H 178,660 139,867
Transfer from/(to) investment R (R)REME
properties (note 14) (MF5E14) 9,194 (3,800)
Additions NE 22,934 32,993
Acquisition of a subsidiary UK B B8 A A - 9,600
At 31 December W+—A=+—8H 210,788 178,660
Accumulated amortisation: E-Sig -
At 1 January n—H—H (19,899) (16,373)
Transfer (from)/to investment (B) /=R EME
properties (note 14) (MF3E14) (634) 130
Recognised during the year RERNER (3,862) (3,656)
At 31 December W+=—B=+—~ (24,395) (19,899)
Impairment: AR
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BE+=ZA=+—8 (54) (54)
Carrying amount: ARMEE :
At 31 December R+=—R=+—H 186,339 158,707
Less: Current portion included B BIATE OB - KA e UL
in prepayments, other FIBRHMEER
receivables and other assets BNHAER > (B 7E24)
(note 24) (4,350) (3,888)
Non-current portion FEBNEAER 3 181,989 154,819
At 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s RZE-NF+ZA=+—H K&EE
prepaid land lease payments with a net carrying FEREFEL A ARKS0,297,0007T (=
amount of approximately RMB50,297,000 (2017: —+4F : AR %50,004,0007T) B FE S L
RMB50,094,000) were pledged to secure general HEREDHTERREBER —RKRIRT
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details of MECER FACEREEZHE B2
pledged assets, please refer to note 38 to the financial B8 B 75 R 2R P 738 o

statements.
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

17.Goodwill 17. &
RMB’000
ARBFT
Cost and net carrying amount: FXAS K BRTEI A
At 1 January 2017 RN-_ZE—+F—H—H 8,660
Acquisition of a subsidiary U RE B B A A 39
At 31 December 2017 WR_ZE—+F+-_A=+—8 8,699
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\EFE—HF—H 8,699
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) Uk BB BT B A 7 (B 5E36) 1,937
At 31 December 2018 R—E-—N\F+=-_HA=+—H 10,636
Impairment testing of goodwiill EERENR

EBEHAHUBNEEESREFARS
BB (R EEBR)) (ERE N -

Goodwill acquired through business combinations
is allocated to the respective cash-generating units
(“CGUs”) for impairment testing.

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to SEERESELSBM HEBEREBEN T :
CGUs as follows:

2018 2017

—B-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR®EF T

Accupower Accupower 8,660 8,660
Taihe Dahua ARG K ZE 39 39
DBSL (note 36) DBSL (F$5E36) 1,937 -
Total st 10,636 8,699
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17.Goodwill (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill
(continued)

The recoverable amounts of the above CGUs have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior
management.

The key assumptions adopted on the growth rate and
discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations are
based on management’s best estimates. The growth
rate of 3% is determined by considering both internal
and external factors relating to the CGUs. The discount
rates applied to the cash flow projections are 15% for
Accupower, 18% for Taihe Dahua and 11% for DBSL.

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount of goodwill is based would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed its
recoverable amount.

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

17 T—%;ﬁ (/115

BmERERNS (F)

BeEEEUMAIKRO B DREBERESR
EFRRAREREESNFE  MERER
ERADASREEEH ENDFHRIHK
BEREE-

EAEAEEMRANERERITEX
MEBRIDEREEBHOREME 3%
WIERENCERERGELEAMEBY

A EB R NS 2= 1R B TE © Accupower » K A
FARE RDBSLIRE mE AR FTERAITE
KSR E15% 18%%11% °

EEERS ﬁﬁTHﬁEi%EFﬂZETFZEE
R IREMEIEE “EEHHENR
ﬁ@hﬁﬁ‘]ﬂ&@ﬁ%ﬁC’
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

18.0ther Intangible Assets 18. Hith &=
Deferred
Computer  development Customer
software costs relationship Licence Trademark Total
i1
ElRH GEJES RFBE R BE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETL  ARETR

31 December 2018; ZE-\ETZA=T-B:
Cost at 1 January 2018, RZE-\F—A—-AHNE:

net of accumulated amortisation B ETEH 3,865 361,968 3917 97,313 17,152 484,215
Addiions FE 3414 200,575 - - 4,589 217,578
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36)  YeBEM B2 &l (Hi536) 132 - 16,246 - - 16,378
Amortisation provided during the year £ i 5 (3,118) (82,847) (2,776) (10,813) (3,776) (103,330)
Exchange realignment ERAZ - - 602 - - 602
At 31 December 2018 WZE-N\E+-A=1+-H 4,293 488,696 17,989 86,500 17,965 615,443
At 31 December 2018: RZZ-\+ZA=1+—-A:

Cost B 14,500 766,441 21,436 108,126 26,079 936,582

Accumulated amortisation RirEH (10,207) (277,745) (3,447) (21,626) (8,114) (321,139)

Net carrying amount EHFE 4,293 488,696 17,989 86,500 17,965 615,443
31 December 2017 ZE—tETZA=+-H
At 1 January 2017: RZE—tE-f-H:

Cost KA 9,704 378,210 4,588 - 21,488 413990

Accumulated amortisation ESE (5,928) (121,089) (224) = (1,719) (128,960)

Net carrying amount FEFE 3776 257,121 4,364 - 19,769 285,030
Cost at 1 January 2017, RZE—+5—A—BHNA

net of accumulated amortisation illi-Sg 3 3,776 257,121 4,364 - 19,769 285,030
Additions NE 1,250 178,656 - - 2 179,908
Acquisttion of a subsidliary WERB AT - - - 108,126 - 108,126
Amortisation provided during the year £ i 5 (1,161) (73,809) (447) (10,813) (2,619) (88,849)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ-+F+-A=+-H 3,865 361,968 3917 97,313 17,152 484,215
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+F+ZA=+-Bk

at 1 January 2018: RZE-\E-A-H

Cost KA 10,954 556,866 4,588 108,126 21,490 702,024

Accumulated amortisation &g (7,089) (194,898) (671) (10,813) 4,338) (217,809)

Net carrying amount FEFE 3,865 361,968 3917 97,313 17,152 484,215
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31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

19. IBEERANEBEZE AR

19.Equity Investments Designated

at Fair Value Through Other 2 E WS EEMERE
Comprehensive Income/ AEEERE
Available-for-Sale Investments
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®EF T
Equity investments designated at BERANBEZ
fair value through other T AE M 2 E SR
comprehensive income EmERE
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value 3 F gz 1R & - R AR EE 137,148 -
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE
Unlisted equity investment, at cost JE E R E - AR - 9,748
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value 3 E M IEIRE R AREE - 122,828
- 132,576
The above equity investments were irrevocably HRAEERRAZSREBRBIERE
designated at fair value through other comprehensive JktﬂE’lE&ﬁTTTﬁiﬁﬁiﬂ?a BAREE
income as the Group considers these investments to FTAE M 2T W o

be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the gross REBEZZT
loss in respect of the Group’s equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive

—NFt+ZA=1T—HLEFE"

BRASEREME2HARaERNIEER
ARABEEFHAEMBEEKRENESN

income recognised in other comprehensive income KEM BB R R AKK19,659,0007T ©
amounted to RMB19,659,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the gross REBE-ZZ—tHF+-A=+—HLFE"
gain in respect of the Group’s available-for-sale EHAREBEREMEE W RERN A HE

YRS

investments recognised in other comprehensive income SR E W= BT A A RKES,703,0007T

amounted to RMB3,703,000.
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31 December 2018

—T-N\F+=ZAR=+—H

. A4

20.Inventories 20. 78
2018 2017
—B-NE Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBF T
Raw materials R 632,446 445,494
Work in progress TR 795,069 1,008,957
Finished goods 4R mm 535,451 417,834
1,962,966 1,872,285

As at 31 December 2018, inventories with the amount Wi sEeFTHE R _FE—NF+ = A
of RMB2,460,000 (2017: RMB3,957,000) were written =+—H 28/ ARK2460,0007T (=F
down to their net realisable value as disclosed in note —+F: AR¥3,957,0007T) 217 & 2 MUK
6. EHAEEFE

21.Completed Properties Held for  21.#FEFEEE A=

Sale
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
Completed properties held for sale BIERFEE BN 15,856 44,205
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22.

Notes to the Financial Statements BITSR#&MIET | ‘

Completed Properties Held for
Sale (continued)

In 2014, Jiangsu Siting, a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an arrangement (the “Arrangement”) with
a constructor (the “Constructor”), an independent
third party, to develop a residential property project
for, among others, staff quarters (the “Project”).
The Constructor is responsible for the management
and funding of the Project and sale of the properties
after they are completed. There are certain profit
sharing arrangements between Jiangsu Siting and
the Constructor in accordance with the Arrangement,
including that Jiangsu Siting will retain certain units of
the properties. The performance of the Constructor
under the Arrangement will be guaranteed by an
independent third party.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of
the properties under development and the completed
properties held for sale under the Project were
RMB57,863,000 (note 15) and RMB15,856,000,
respectively.

Trade Receivables

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

2. EFFESECERYE (&

R-ZF—FE ARFMBRRIIHIEE
H-pasdn ((2E£E]) (—2BLE=
TR — AL (R BER-BEE
MEER BREETEREIRES ([ZR
Bl ZEBAEZHEANEENERE A
KINTA B SER IR IHE WS - RIRZHE - I TR
BERZERZHECITVE TEMNDHR
B BRIGEESRES TYREEM R
BRH RERNBORE —RBUE=T
tEHFELR ©

KRB/ \F+_A=+—H %HEEBET
MBEETERBESFECEXNDENRE
&5 5l B A R #57,863,0007T (K zE15)
K A B #15,856,0007T ©

22. B G EWWFRIE

2018 2017

—E-N\fF —E—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREF T

Trade receivables 2 5 eI GRIA 2,450,675 2,343,791
Less: Impairment provision OB (26,021) (30,353)
2,424,654 2,313,438
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QN

227



Notes to the Financial Statements &R EKIEE

31 December 2018
—N\F+ZA=+—H

22. B 5 RUNFIR (4F)

22.Trade Receivables (continued)

228

The Group grants different credit periods to its
customers. Credit periods for individual customers are
considered on a case-by-case basis. Certain customers
are required to make partial payments before or upon
delivery. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and closely monitors them
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Trade receivables
of RMB233,914,000 (2017: RMB261,715,000) were
under short term credit insurance and RMB63,713,000
(2017: RMB71,912,000) were under letters of credit.
In addition, the Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group pledged certain
trade receivables amounting to RMB31,592,000
(2017: RMB61,467,000) to banks with recourse in
exchange for cash (note 38). The proceeds from
pledging the trade receivables of RMB20,759,000
(2017: RMB37,279,000 were accounted for as
collateralised bank advances until the trade receivables
were collected or the Group made good of any losses
incurred by the banks. The details of the transfer of
factored trade receivables are included in note 45 to the
financial statements.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018
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MEERZE BT -HTEPARIZMAI
RNREL AR NEBZ KEHRE
BB W RIE SRR W) 8
muzﬁﬁﬁ AREEERR s REEE

THEMBHARTNEH -5 RN
IEEP AR #233,914,0007T (_EE +F: A
E#261,715,0007T ) 7] B %2 BA{= ARk - ™
AR#63,713,000T (ZE—+F: ARK
71,912,0007T) RIFTBEAFE o I REE
$Eﬁ£4&5vt.u$%ﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁ1£m£ﬁﬁEﬁ%’ﬁ’xﬁ
iEERAEE - B HRUKEBTEE -

R-ZE—NF+_A=+—8 K&EERA
RITHIRE THEERENE ZEKNIE

&8 A AREE31,592,000T (& —+
F: AR¥61,467,0007T) @ A B EUIR &
(KMI3E38) - IF & Z FE WG IEFT 1S RIE A
K #20,759,000t (ZE—tF: AR¥
37,279,0007T) HIMEB EIRIRITER B
EZEE HEWGRIERE K E 5 A & B R AR
TEENEREEAL BHEEREES

JE W FRIE 2 5F IR E T P B 75 4 3% P 5345 ©
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Y
31 December 2018 ‘
—E-N\FE+=-_A=1+—8H

R (%)

NER-_F—tF+-_A=1t—H

22. 8 5 FE IR FRIE

R-E—

Q
\—7

22.Trade Receivables (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31

December 2018 and 2017 based on the invoice date, ZBSEWNGRIEEREER (MR EERE)
net of loss allowance, is as follows: RIBRER D HTEAT ¢

2018 2017

ZE-N\FE T tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARET T

Within 3 months 31E AR 1,735,538 1,813,243

3 to 6 months 3Z61E A 403,444 302,226

6 to 12 months 62 121E A 214,842 141,573

1 to 2 years 1224 57,500 53,181

Over 2 years 2F A b 13,330 3,215

2,424,654 2,313,438

BRI ERBBRREENEBHTI M

Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

trade receivables are as follows: ™
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBFTT
At 1 January R—H—H 30,353 38,066
Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 PRAN B B B 75 ¥ o5 AE A
FR T E 1,686 -
At 1 January (restated) ﬁA— A—A (&g&75)) 32,039 38,066
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) 5 RWEIBRE, CRERRD)
of trade receivables (note 6) (MIzE6) 3,266 (7,713)
Amount written off as uncollectible OB A B] Uk =] A SR8 (9,284) -
At 31 December Rt+t-A=+—H 26,021 30,353
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

22. B 5 RUNFIR (4F)

22.Trade Receivables (continued)

Impairment under IFRS 9 for the year
ended 31 December 2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage
by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance).
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the

BRI R EERFEIRETEHE
—EBE-NFE+=-A=+—HLHF
B8R E

REHRE B MARMBFEREETRED
i EtERMEEER - BEXRHERE
RAEARUBBEEANZ AT D aETT
o (B E - EmBER - TP ERK
AR RERBREMEERRTZANRE
#E) MBHe B #EE - Lt ERREX
MEER  BBRERNREBHRIENE
BB F IR & R R (R 1 FE0R
MEERAEERH - —RKRMNE  BZREK
g A E —F EEARTEHTHAIT

reporting date about past events, current conditions LA 85 o
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally,

trade receivables are written off if past due for more

than one year and are not subject to enforcement

activity.

TR AKEERBBREAENE S
FENREM EERBREH -

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a
provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—-NE+=ZA=+—H

Current Past due Total
B8 B Bt
Customers Customers
with credit Ordinary with credit Ordinary
enhancement customers  enhancement customers
FERAN FERAH
EF BEEF EF EEEF
Expected credit loss rate EHEEEEX 0.02% 0.68% 0.36% 100.00% 1.06%
Gross carrying amount EmeE
(RMB’000) (AREFT) 1,971,630 385,276 71,083 22,686 2,450,675
Expected credit losses EHEESE
(RMB'000) (AEEFT) 463 2,619 253 22,686 26,021
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22.Trade Receivables (continued)

Impairment under IAS 39 for the year
ended 31 December 2017

Included in the above provision for impairment of
trade receivables, which was measured based on
incurred credit losses under IAS 39, as at 31 December
2017, was a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of RMB30,353,000 with a carrying amount
before provision of RMB30,353,000.

The individually impaired trade receivables as at 31
December 2017 related to customers that were in
financial difficulties.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as at 31
December 2017 that were not individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired under IAS 39 is
as follows:

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

22. B 5 RINFR (48

EIR & 5 A 3058 THE =
2—LFE+-A=t-ALFE
ZHiE

RIB—tF+-A=+—H FALLE
HENGIRRFER R (RBER e E]S
BFIE T 2 EELEEEENE) R ER
ERER B 5 R WK IE A R #30,353,0007T
AHERBME - XML BHERT R ARE(E R A
R 30,353,0007T °

R-ZE—t+E+_A=+—BE3RE
Eo RN BEERVRNETFEM -

RZE—+F+_A=+—BHUEARBER
B2 & 5 % BI| 5305 4% VB 51| 2k £ B B (B 7Y
B 5 RWFTIENRR T

2017
—E—tF
RMB’000
AR®BFT

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired

BEEARIRE

REHTARE

2,257,042
56,396

2,313,438

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers that
have not had a history of default recently.

AR 780 B TR AR R (B O 8 5k TR B % 22 S ST
BHRBNEPER-

BLEBRRMERAIA | —F\FFH

231



Notes to the Financial Statements &R EKIEE

31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

22.Trade Receivables (continued)  22. B 5 EWFIE (&

232

Impairment under IAS 39 for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good
payment track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors were of the opinion that no
provision for impairment under IAS 39 was necessary
in respect of these balances as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality of the customers and
the balances were still considered fully recoverable.

23.Bills Receivables/Debt

Investments at Fair Value
Through Other Comprehensive
Income

The balance as at 31 December 2018 represents bills
receivables held by the Group which was measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income, since
the bills receivables were held within the business
model whose objective was achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets,
and the contractual cash flows were solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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23.Bills Receivables/Debt

Investments at Fair Value
Through Other Comprehensive
Income (continued)

The ageing analysis of bills receivables presented based
on issue date at 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017 is as follows:

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

23. BRWEE D R EBEZE5

AHMEERENEHRIRE

(&

RZE-NF+_A=+—"BRZZE—+
F+_A=-+—HRBETHEHENZEK
ZRERR M

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AR®ET T

Within 3 months =EARN 44,126 48,833
3 to 6 months =E=XEA 97,210 103,538
6 to 12 months ~NETZ@A 23,289 60,788
164,625 213,159

The net loss on changes in the fair value of the debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income amounting to RMB2,768,000 was recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the year.

FNAABEEH T AEMEZEKED
BERENANBEEZHEEITEAARE
2,768,000 TR 4R A T E SR P ER
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

24.Prepayments, Other Receivables 24. 78478« EEWFIE K&

s&

and Other Assets Hib&EE
2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARMET T
Prepayments TR FRIR 139,671 130,365
Deposits and other receivables 5l R E A e W FRIE 35,233 32,926
Loans to employees MEBEHHER 7,422 7,130
Interest receivables FEWF B - 114

Current portion of prepaid land lease AR L EFIE R R EIE 5

payments (note 16) (MfsE16) 4,350 3,888
186,676 174,423

None of the above assets is either past due or
impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default. The Group estimated the
expected credit loss rate is minimal.

25.Derivative Financial Instruments

it EEW BB ESORIE - Ll SR BT
F) & B B BT B R KO RO AR Y B R IR
BB -AEBEGAAREEBERXER-

5. PTEEMIA

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
&g &8 BE =N
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®BTR ARETT ARETR
Forward currency contracts = B ¥ A4 - - 4,418 -

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018



25.Derivative Financial Instruments

Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE

25.
(continued)

Forward currency contracts

The Group has entered into various forward currency
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures.
These forward currency contracts are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. The net loss on
changes in the fair value of the forward currency
contracts amounting to RMB145,000 (2017: net gain
RMB1,166,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year.

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

1/]- QE ﬁ Hﬁ I == (/115

BZHERERN
AEEE L EZMERPEBENEREINE
B - 2 FiR Hﬂémmﬁ}ﬁ&/ﬁﬁm@ﬁ
ABHTE-FR RPEBSONARE
BEEBHMNEEFEAARK145,0007T (=
T—+F: mFEAR,166,000T) -
EREREEBRRANER

26.Equity Investment at Fair Value 26. A R EEZ BT ABZHE
Through Profit or Loss mHERE

2018 2017

—E-N\E  —T—t%

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBTT

Listed equity investments, at fair value ~ _EEZMERE A REBE 12,588 12,545

The above equity investments at 31 December 2018 R - N\F+ZA=F+—HzZ#E=

were classified as held for trading and were, upon MBS B ABIERER MRV ERIE

initial recognition, designated by the Group as financial MASEEEIEANBEEZEHT ABRZ

assets at fair value through profit or loss. TRIEE-

235

BLEBRRMERAIA | —F\FFH



Notes to the Financial Statements &R EKIEE

31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

27.Structured Bank Deposits 27. B MRITER
2018 2017
—F-N\E ZTL£F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Structured bank deposits, in licensed ~— B A EFERIT 2

banks in Mainland China: BRI
With floating rate, at fair value REBMNEL
BRAREBEFE 109,866 -
The structured bank deposits have terms of one year EREERITFEREBH—F  WR SRR
and are classified at initial recognition as fair value DERAABEEHTABR - FN &HB
through profit or loss. The net gain on changes in the HRITERNAAEBEEHREFEAR
fair value of the structured bank deposits amounting #866,000TT 4R G HEm KT P HER ©

to RMB866,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year.

236 Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE

28.Cash and Bank Balances and

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

2&E$&ﬁﬁﬁﬁuﬁi%ﬁ

Time Deposits GHN
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBFTT
Cash and bank balances B & MIRITHE R 425,311 401,042
Time deposits 7E Bi7F 3% 452,216 540,116
877,527 941,158
Less: Pledged for interest-bearing B EBET B RITIE B IF
bank borrowings (104,561) (179,899)
Pledged for bills payable Bt ER R IRE T (303,714) (260,099)
Pledged for letters of credit Bt A E T (43,941) (100,118)
(452,216) (540,116)
Cash and cash equivalents HeRASEED 425,311 401,042
Denominated in RMB AAREEE 706,693 755,673
Denominated in US$ AZETTEHE 134,619 155,742
Denominated in HK$ LA TTEHE 19,511 19,201
Denominated in Indian Rupee LAENE E L ETHE 11,482 3,207
Denominated in Malaysian Dollar INERATSH
(“‘MYR’) (IBRAEDSTH])GHE 1,597 4,146
Denominated in Singapore Dollar LAFT 3T ([#im])atE
(‘SGS") 1,209 618
Denominated in Euro (‘EUR’) LART ([®T])5tE 1,149 66
Denominated in Australian Dollar LORIT (BT ])EHE
(‘AUS”) 901 2,417
Denominated in Sri Lankan Rupee LETE B RELETE 366 88
877,527 941,158
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

28.Cash and Bank Balances and 28. W& RIBITEEBRU KR ERTZ

. . . =+ g
Time Deposits (continued) M (45
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, ARBTEFERLBREINE AW - RIBEF
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Bl SINE B GG M 45T - EE RN EEIER
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, EAEBESERBRERITHEAREL
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, HVEINEE AETTINE S 75 o

the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based FRIITHBRSEEARITEFRNENF
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits BB EBRIFB - WHIE BT R 2 E R A
are made for varying periods of between one day —BEZE=HAAE RIFLEE2ERES
and three months depending on the immediate cash ERME & BIREBHTERFRERFE -
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the RIT 4S8R I IR TF BT RO HA AR R AR 8%
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank BEZERIFHRIT

balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

29.Trade and Bills Payables 20. B S ENFRIEREMESE
2018 2017
AN —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARKETTT

Trade payables B SR 980,460 803,985
Bills payable e EE 1,021,248 861,262
2,001,708 1,665,247
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29.Trade and Bills Payables

(continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

29.

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

BEZRNRERENEE
(%)

RBEHR - EFRANFRIBRENRELRE
SRMHRESITIT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AR®EF T

Within 3 months 31E A K 937,623 702,362
3 to 6 months 3Z61# A 390,884 364,800
6 to 12 months 62121 A 632,798 582,439
1 to 2 years 1224 36,028 12,266
2 to 3 years 2E3F 1,483 898
Over 3 years B A3E 2,892 2,482
2,001,708 1,665,247

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on 90-day terms. All the bills
payable have maturity dates within 365 days. As
at 31 December 2018, bills payable amounting to
RMB432,967,000 (2017: RMB745,450,000) were
issued on intercompany sales transactions within the
Group and these bills were discounted to banks for
short term financing.

As at 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s bills
payable were secured by the pledge of certain of the
Group’s time deposits amounting to RMB303,714,000
(2017: RMB260,099,000) (note 38).

B EMNFREBEATEE  B—MAMNOA
WA B EEYN3658 A EIH -
RZZE—NF+_A=+—HB KANEEHR
SEARRIMETHHERSBRITEREA
AR#432,967,0007C (ZF—tF: AR
745,450,0007T) B ERTRR - BZESREEL
WPRITERHARE -

R-ZE—N\FE+-_A=+—HB KA&EH
ETRENZEBEUAEBESEAARE
303,714,000 (ZZE—+tF: AR
260,099,0007T ) 8 & T & Hi 17 5K B & 3R 1E
R (M5E38) ©
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

30.0ther Payables and Accruals 0. HttENRIEREFTEM

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

P £ ARBTRET AR®BTRT

Provision for social insurance and  #+ & 1R & K iR K48 Tl B 45

retirement benefits 159,011 141,570
Receipt in advance TE WK - 133,257
Contract liabilities BHEE (@) 178,188 -
Accrued expenses FEET S 99,534 90,041
Accrued payroll JEFtTE 105,592 53,027
Payables for purchase of items of ~EBE W% - HE &

property, plant and equipment RAEIE B B R IR 24,312 17,677
Provision for product warranties EmRiE2BE 13,010 13,239
Tax payables other than current e R IB

income tax liabilities (BNERFT IS B ERR M) 135,305 161,632
Payables to non-controlling JE 1T 1R AR IR R 2 RIE

shareholders 41 43,418 76,238
Others Hity (o) 18,998 19,856

777,368 706,537
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30.0ther Payables and Accruals
(continued)

Notes:

(@)

Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and
1 January 2018 are as follows:

31 December 2018

- A\Ft+-_A=+—H

30. EL A {4 50 I A3 22

(#&

GHE

@ AER-_Z-NF+_A=T-HR=ZF
—NF-RA-RAZAKNAGEFBNT:

31 December 1 January
2018 2018
= s —ET-NF
t=A=+-8 —~A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
Short-term advances received B 5 2 B 50
from customers
Sale of goods HEERW 178,188 133,257

Contract liabilities are short-term advances received
to deliver industrial products. The increase in contract
liabilities in 2018 was mainly due to the increase in short-
term advances received from customers in relation to sale
of goods at the end of the year

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

ERNABRARINIXERE K ZEHE
Ko B N\FEHNABEMDEEHRNF
REHEE M WE P B B 2508 AR

Bo

b) EAMENFIRETNG R B8 EE &K -
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

31.Interest-Bearing Bank 1.5t ERITHEE

242

Borrowings
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
—E-N\§+t-A=1+-H “Z—+tFtZA=1+-H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BEAIZ%) 38  AR%®TR  BERAE®) 38 ARETR
Current k]
Interest-bearing bank borrowings, ~ §f BR1TEE BHA 1.50 to 7.53 2019 150107.53 2018
secured 1.5027.53 ZE-hE 1,077,598 150£7.53 —Z-N\E 1,175,362
Collateralised bank advances, BEARTREN BEA 2,00 t0 2.40 2019 20010 2.40 2018
secured 2002240 C—E-hE 20,759 2.00%2.40 “Z-0\F 37,279
Interest-bearing bank HERAER HER 2.56 t0 8.32 2019 287105.22 2018
borrowings, guaranteed 2562832 “EB-NE 665,727 2872522  ZE-)\E 405,401
Current portion of long term bank R ER/TE LS - BER 2019 on demand
borrowings, guaranteed LBBOR+250 =—E-hf 407217 LBOR+250  REX[EE 1,286,511
2,171,301 2,904,553
Non-current I
Interest-bearing bank borrowings, it RITEE KR 2020-2028 2019-2028
secured 150t0753 Z—E-EEZE 15010 7.53 “T-NEZR
150£753 —E)\E 34,113 150%7.53 “E-0\F 81,338
Interest-bearing bank borrowings, it RITEE  AER 2020 2019
quaranteed LIBOR+250 —ZE-%f& 678,694 4.89 “Z-hE 28,000
712,807 109,338
2,884,108 3,013,891
Denominated in RMB IAREEE 1,063,699 1,038,680
Denominated in US$ METEHE 1,218,810 1,438,764
Denominated in HK$ B TLEHE 556,440 471,434
Denominated in SG$ PAETLEHE 15,502 14,135
Denominated in MYR IERAELEAE 24,043 30,815
Denominated in AUD JBTTEHE - 20,063
Denominated in GBP JAEEEHE 5,614 =
2,884,108 3,013,891
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31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

. /= i1 =
31.Interest-Bearing Bank B1.5TRIRITHEE (&)
Borrowings (continued)
Analysed into: DT
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+ F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF R ARBFTT
Bank loans and advances repayable: AEENRITERREK:
On demand BEX - 1,286,511
Within one year —F R 2,171,301 1,618,042
In the second year F_fF 699,650 71,687
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-FEEFRF
BREEREMF 5,944 28,371
Beyond five years hF% 7,213 9,280
2,884,108 3,013,891
The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by the REFEMRITEE N Tl E e EIRIEER
following pledge or guarantees: o

()  pledge of the Group’s assets with a total value of
RMB858,718,000 (2017: RMB1,039,238,000) for
the bank borrowings as disclosed in note 38.

(i)  cross guarantees executed by companies within

the Group.

M

BRRITEEUREEREBEARKE
858,718,0007T ( =&
1,039,238,0007T ) #) & = {E H #) & 7
(FAKIE38IE ) °

—tEFARE

AREBERNRBIRFTHHEEER-
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31 December 2018
- N\F+ZA=+—H

31.Interest-Bearing Bank 31.5TEMWITEE (&)

244

Borrowings (continued)

The Group entered into a three-year term loan facility
agreement amounting to US$200,000,000 on 8 May
2017 (the “Facility Agreement”) with certain financial
institutions (the “Lenders”).

Under the Facility Agreement, there are specific
performance obligations on Mr. Dong Li, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, to not cease to own,
directly or indirectly, at least 51% of the beneficial
interest in the Company, carrying at least 51% of the
voting right, free from any security. Further, Mr. Dong Li
shall not cease to have management control over the
Company or cease to be the Chairman of the board of
directors of the Company. At the date of approval of
these audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018, such obligations have
been complied with.

Five of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries,
namely Catherine Holdings, Leoch Power Supply,
Leoch Battery Company, Leoch Battery Pte. and Leoch
International Sales, were parties who act as guarantors
to guarantee punctual performance of the Group'’s
obligations under the Facility Agreement.

As at 31 December 2018, the outstanding term loan
balance under the Facility Agreement amounted to
US$160,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,085,911,000),
of which RMB407,217,000 and RMB678,694,000
are repayable within one year and in the second year,
respectively. The term loan bears interest at LIBOR +
2.5% per annum.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018

AEBR - ZE—+tHFRANHEET S
g ([HMEA ) E13 4 %8/5200,000,0003
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BEREHZ BREROERMT BESFL
E(RRRIERRER) MERIEHEE (BE#E
HEE) A RAELSI%N B EZE (2
DE1%HFRIARE) (RHEREIR) o fhoh -
EFRRETERIEEEARRRINE EZEH
B TEERRANESEEF - NIEZ
EHE-_ZT—\F+-_A=Z+—BHILHFE
REZAEMEHRERBE BEEEEEE
ST o

KRR AMEZEWE QA - BlCatherine
Holdings ¥ = % Jf * Leoch Battery
Company * Leoch Battery Pte. & 3% 4 Bl iR &
HAERA  BRASEERFBITRE WS
EHTHEE:

R-Z2—N\E+-A=+—0 e&H=zEHE
T # AR E R TE BB ;A5 #8 4160,000,0003
7T (8 M AR ¥1,085,911,0007T) * E &
AR #407,217,0007T & A K #678,694,000
TARR—FARMENEE - EHERE
FEI5|IBOR+2.5%51 &
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32.Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax
during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

32. IR FEF IH

assets and liabilities

Change in fair

R IREE

31 December 2018
—ET-N\F+=ZAR=+—H

FRRERAEERBENESERWT

Depreciation value of debt
and Equipment  investments
Provision for impairment invested in at fair value
impairment of property, subsidiaries  through other Unpaid  Provision for Deferred
of trade plant and with revalued ~ comprehensive Unused payrolland  impairment of Unrealised  government
receivables equipment Tax losses amounts income tax credit accruals inventories profit grants Total
MRERD
n% BER SEEERN  HARH2E
EARMRE  REFER RENMELE UENEBRE ABR  ANIER
HERRE HE RAEE hR%E HLAEESE REES EiHER HEAERE FEREN  BERREE &it
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
AB#FT AB#FT AREFR AREFR AREFR ARETT ARBTR ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBFT
(Gross deferred tax assets at RZE-tE-A-Af
1 January 2017 ERREAELE 7,12 5583 21,263 4207 - 1,338 2,646 1,773 9017 1,742 54715
Defored tax credited(charged) o~ FAEFA/ (114 8)
the statement of profit or loss BAERNMERLHE
during the year (1,987) (1,286) (4,195 (7112) - (1,338) 2588 475 (529) 1,107 (6827)
(Gross deferred tax assets at RZF-+5+2A
31 December 2017 and =+-AR-E-N\E
1 January 2018 —A-BMELHRE
AELE 5189 4297 17,068 3515 - - 5284 2248 8488 2849 48,888
Efect of adoption of IFRS 9 AR B EER
F0%H2PE 2 - - - - - - - - - I
Deferred tax credited(charged) o~ MEFA/ (114 8)
the statement of proft or loss EaRNELHE
during the year (1,504) (1,190) 1,988 (712) - - 554 418 1,269 2,176 299
Deferred tax credited to ERFAEEMZ NG
other comprehensive income HERRE
during the year = = = = 692 - - - - - 692
(Gross deferred tax assefs at RZE-NE+ZA
31 Decemoer 2018 =+ -RHELHE
BEOE 4107 3107 19,056 2803 692 - 5788 2,666 9757 502 53,001
BrEBEMERAR | —T— \FER

1
[ N
N\
XA
@
iy 'ék‘“
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

32.Deferred Tax (continued) 32 IEIERIIE (42)

246

Deferred tax liabilities EEHERE
Change in fair
value of equity
investments
designated
at fair value
through other
comprehensive Fair value
income/  Change infair  adjustments
Capitalised available- value of arising from
interest for-sale structured  acquisition of
expense investments bank deposits  subsidiaries Others Total
ek
AEEED
EpN-{
2EKREN Wi
BRERE/ R WELRNEE
BEALY THEERE  RAERN  ZAAEE
HEEX WAREERE AAEEED Eil Eft &zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Gross deferred tax iabities at W =F—+F—F— R4
1 January 2017 ELHEEELR 9,125 16,272 - 5,238 813 31448
Acquisition of a subsidiary WENBAR - - - 27,005 - 27,025
Deferred tax credited to the FRFABREN
statement of profit or loss ELHE
during the year (1,384) - - (3,407) (54) (4,845)
Deferred tax charged to ENARERMEENE
other comprehensive income  ETETTHE
during the year - 926 - - - 926
Gross deferred tax liabiites &t~ W =E—+F+-f
31 December 2017 and Z+-BARZE-N\E
1 January 2018 —A-BOEERE
BEEE 7,741 17,198 - 28,85 759 54,554
Acquisttion of a subsiclary WERBAF (Hz36)
(note 36) - - - 3,087 - 3,087
Deferred tax credited to the ERFABRENELRE
statement of profit or loss
during the year (1,299) - 130 (3,716) (168) (5,063)
Deferred tax charged to other ~~ ERABEE 2 AN
comprehensive income HELEHE
during the year - (4,915 - - - (4,915
Exchange realignment B A% - - - 8 - 8
Gross defered tax liabiites at ~ R=E—NEF+=f
31 December 2018 =t-REEHA
afLE 6,442 12,283 130 28,235 501 47,681
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32.Deferred Tax (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China
of RMB83,127,000 (2017: RMB75,857,000) that will
expire in five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2018, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
Directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future and therefore, no deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised as at 31 December 2018 and
2017. As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB703,624,000 (2017:
RMB579,883,000).

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

2EFERE (48)

AEEBRFRAMEERBBEEBAR
83,127,000 (ZE—+F: AR
75,857,0007T) " s X IE Al A F N AR E
RRERT R - ARZEEE I BHEEE
—BRE BB ARIFES I Bt
RIEEIEEE - R BT ANAIgL A ER
7ot a5 ¥ AT 48 B A 0 TR e 1R R o

RIBHBEDRMABHE KRR BRI
SMEREBERRANIBEREET KR E AR
10% BRI - AR ER —FETN\EF—H
—HRAERERAR_ZZENE—-HA—H
FEE LR E A o i o B A 3 SN B E B
AUERER BRI RIS HE - RlE A EIEEINR
Ko AREKEME  BATERE5%310%
Rt - ANEE B B R B B A PR L
BRRYNR_ZTN\F—-A—-BEMRSE
A T P 53 T AL S B A FRFO A

RZZE-NF+_A=+—8 FEHLE
BEFEANMA OB RRNRELAR
B (ZBBMTEINT) FE S B TB B RERRIE
MB-ZBEZRA ZESMBRAREARAEK
PIRABEDEREF AR =_E—N\FE=
T—+F+ - A=+ AX R ERIEL
MEAE R /\F+=—A=+—8"
A R B P b B BB R R D% A 5 B T I 4
FUBRECEREEEN TR EZHETE
A HH B ARYT03,624,000T (T —+
& AR#579,883,0007T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements &R EKIEE

33.Share Capital 33. A<
Shares &)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Authorised: EE
10,000,000,000 (31 December 2017: 10,000,000,000( =& —+%F
10,000,000,000) ordinary shares of +-A=+—8:
HK$0.1 each (HK$'000) 10,000,000,000) i & E &
0.1BTTHEBER (TET) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRER:
1,357,521,666 (2017: 1,357,271,666) 1,357,521,666/% ( ZZ —+ 5 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 1,357,271,666/% ) I HEE
(HK$'000) Q1B TRIELER (FAT) 135,752 135,727
Equivalent to RMB’000 HERAR®TT 116,213 116,192
A summary of movements in the Company’s share NANTIREASE R T -
capital is as follows:
Number of
shares in Share
issue capital
28T
BB [N
Notes RMB’000
L AREFTT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+tF—H—H 1,358,349,666 115,846
Exercise of share options IT{ERE AR (i) 3,922,000 346
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tF+=A=+—H 1,357,271,666 116,192
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+F+=-_A=+—H
1 January 2018 r=ZE-NF—H—H 1,357,271,666 116,192
Exercise of share options 1T I e (i) 250,000 21
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+_A=+—8H 1,357,521,666 116,213
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33.Share Capital (continued)

Shares (continued)

U)

(i)

The subscription rights attaching to 3,922,000
share options were exercised at subscription
prices ranging from HK$0.20 to HK$1.40 per
share, resulting in the issue of 3,922,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of RMB3,032,000. An amount
of RMB2,652,000 was transferred from the share
option reserve to the share premium account
upon the exercise of the share options.

The subscription rights attaching to 250,000
share options were exercised at subscription
prices ranging from HK$0.80 to HK$0.90 per
share, resulting in the issue of 250,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of RMB168,000. An amount
of RMB163,000 was transferred from the share
option reserve to the share premium account
upon the exercise of the share options.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and
the share options issued under the schemes are
included in note 34 to the financial statements.

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

33. AN (48
B (4)

M

(i)

3,922,00017 E IR BEBEMI M RE D
%R T R%0.20/8 L 21,408 T R EE B
1716 - BB E5173,922,0000% & i% H 1E
0108 LRI + RIS MBRIR©
KB B AR ¥3,032,0007T ° i ik 1 #
171 1% - AR ¥2,652,0007T BN & B KL
EREERERORERA-

250,00017 H# A% 7 BE M &9 52 B 7 2 4%
FR%0.80% 7T £0.90/8 TR RBETT
{8 + B B3 17250,0000% & #% E {E0.10
BILHRD  ANBRAIHNBR SR
B A AR#168,0007T - B HEEITE
% AR#163,0007T 81 & BB I
ERERMOEERA-

B

ARBBIRESE RIRBZAE BT ZE
P 7 FF B EU B 75 SRR P E34
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

34.Share Option Schemes 34. FER T El

250

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a pre-IPO share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible persons who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Eligible persons of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme include the Company’s directors
and other employees of the Group. The Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme became effective on 1 June 2010 and
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is available to the
directors and employees (whether full time or part time)
of any member of the Group.

The maximum number of the shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be 60,000,000 shares
representing approximately 4.5% of the total issued
share capital of the Company immediately after the
completion of the global offering, taking no account of
the exercise of the over-allotment option.
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31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

34.Share Option Schemes 34.FERFERTE (&)
(continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BARAAHRENERESTE
(continued) (#&)
The subscription price in respect of each share under BARAREENEREEIETEREMD
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is determined by the VREETHESSREANBEEET  UH
board of directors at its discretion and set out in the REBELHHERN  BENELRRMODHE
relevant offer letters provided that it should not be less B

than the nominal value of the shares.

After 28 October 2010, no further options will be RZZE—FTF+HA=Z+/\B#E T2BHEE
offered or granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option BAAREENERETEZEIREE
Scheme but in other respects the provisions of the I EM SR E BB R AR ER B ERT
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force S8 5 H A 5 E AR A B B R FE
and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to FA - LABKAE I 2 AT #% T B9 rT B AR i D AT 77
the exercise of any options granted prior thereto or FRARE & X AFEE R ERER S 8K
otherwise as may be required in accordance with the XHREMBTIE MR_2TE—ZTF+H
provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, and ZTHN\BEZ AT BB ARRE - A RIR R
options which are granted on or before 28 October LW RITIRREE T ATTE-

2010 may continue to be exercisable in accordance
with their terms of issue.

Any exercise of an option granted under the Pre-IPO TEREEAARBERERESRDY
Share Option Scheme is subject to conditions as may B B IR RE DA TR HH B AR A9 2 40 1 14 P 71| B
be specified in the offer letter in respect of the grant of G RAE

options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to BIEY B TR A AT AZHIR
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. BHRBRREAG LRE-
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

. [ | i o —d
34.Share Option Schemes 4. IRESTEl (&)
(continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BARAAHRENERESTS
(continued) (#&)
The following share options were outstanding under the REABRAREERBRERSIIE T
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year: RITER BT -
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
R INHEF
TEE BEREHE IR  EREHE
HK$ HK$
per share ’000 per share '000
BRET 45 FRRAT )
At 1 January m—A—H 1.50 17,508 1.41 20,531
Exercised during the year FARITE 0.80 (200) 0.85 (2,953)
Forfeited during the year FRE 1.80 (3,055) 2.00 (70)
At 31 December RTZA=+—8 1.44 14,253 1.50 17,508
The weighted average closing price of the Company’s FA-ARRIRONRERERETEBSRZ
shares at the dates on which the options were InEFHWTEAEERI.0E T (ZT—+
exercised during the year was HK$1.03 per share F:ZR1.838BT) °

(2017: HK$1.83 per share).
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34.Share Option Schemes

(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

34.

Movements in the Company’s share options under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the year are as

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

BIRERTE (&)

BRAABENBRES

FA - ANRFRE R ARG EE R BRER S
HTHEREZEFHINT

follows:
Number of share options
BREHE
Name or category of $8%28Y At1 January Exercised Forfeited At 31 December Date of grant  Exercise period Exercise price
participant #EHER 2018 duringtheyear  during the year 2018 of share options  of share options of share options
RZB-NE RZE-NF
-A-8 QTR EmRK tZAST-B BRERERY  BREGCES BREGRE
HKS per share
v
Directors iz
Ms. Zhao Huan BELT 1,500,000 - (1,500,000) - 1June 2010 1June 201210 1400
“T-TF 1 Jung 2022
~-B ZE-Z%5A-RE
“ECZERR-B
Ms Yin Hai Yan i3 e 150,000 - - 150,000 1June 2010 1June 201210 1.200
“I-%F 1June 2022
~E-B  ZE-ZERR-BHE
“TCZERR-B
Mr. Phiip Amstrong Noznesky*  Philip Amnsirong Noznesky b4 * 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 1 June 2010 1 June 2012 o 2000
“T-%F 1June 2022
~A-B ZE-Z%5A-HE
—F2255R-H
3,150,000 - 1,500,000) 1,650,000
Other employees EfbEERH 14,358,000 (200,000) (1,555,000) 12,608,000 1 June 2010 1 June 2012 to 0.200-2.000
in aggregate —3-%f 1June 2022
~E-B ZE-ZERR-BE
ZRIZERA-B
17,508,000 (200,000) (3,055,000) 14,253,000

*

Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky’s

inherited by his descendants.

share options are

* Philip Armstrong Noznesky %t 4= 5 2 i 4 F

&
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34.Share Option Schemes 4. WERRFERTE (&)
(continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BARAAHRENERESTS
(continued) (#&)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the Pre-IPO RZFE-N\FT+ZA=+T—BEKRTEN
Share Options outstanding at 31 December 2018 are BRAFEEABRENITEERITER

7

as follows: m

Exercise price

Number of options per share Exercise period
BRESE BRITEE TEH
50,750 HK$0.200 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

0.2007% 7T T ZHFARNA—RAEZZTZ=FXA
50,750 HK$0.200 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

0.200/8 7T —E-=FXA—HBE-ZE-__F,A—H
50,750 HK$0.200 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

0.200/8 7T —E-NFEANA—BE-_E-_—_F/,A—H
50,750 HK$0.200 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

0.2007% 7T —T-RFEANA—HEZT-__F,A—H
20,000 HK$0.400 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

0.4007% 7T T —FXRAHEZT__FA—
20,000 HK$0.400 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

0.4007 7T —FEXRA—B&E-ZE-__F,XA—H
20,000 HK$0.400 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

0.4007% 7T —E-MFEANA—BEZT_FA—H
20,000 HK$0.400 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

0.4007 7T —E—RFERNA—HEZZ-__FXA
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34.Share Option Schemes 34.FEMIFERTE (&)
(continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BRALAHERERNERES
(continued) (#&)

Exercise price

Number of options per share Exercise period
BRERE BRITEE 1TEH
42,500 HK$0.600 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

0.600/% 7T —E-—HFXNA—BEZE-_F,XA—H
42,500 HK$0.600 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

0.600/% 7T —E-=FXNA—BEZZE-—_F,XA—H
42,500 HK$0.600 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

0.6007% 7T —E--NMEANA—BEZZE-_F,XA—H
42,500 HK$0.600 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

0.6007% 7T —E—ARFRNA—HEZZE-__F/XA—H
50,000 HK$0.800 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

0.800/ 7T —E-——HEXNA—BEZZE-—_F,XA—H
58,000 HK$0.800 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

0.800/%& 7T —E-=FXNA—BEZZE-—_F,XA—H
125,000 HK$0.800 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

0.8007% 7T —E-—WNEXNA—HEZZE_-__F/XA—H
125,000 HK$0.800 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

0.8007% 7T —E—ARFRNA—HEZZE-__F/XA—H
425,000 HK$1.000 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.00078 7T —E-—HFXNA—BEZZE-—_F,XA—H
657,000 HK$1.000 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

1.0008 7T —E—=FXNA—BEZZE-_—_F,XA—H
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34.Share Option Schemes 4. B ERTE (&)
(continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BRALAHERENERESS
(continued) (#&)

Exercise price

Number of options per share Exercise period
BREZE BRITEE 17125
725,000 HK$1.000 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

1.00075 7T —E-NMERNA—BEZE-__F,XA—H
725,000 HK$1.000 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

1.000/5 7T —E-RFEANA—HEZZE-__F,XA—H
300,000 HK$1.200 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.2007% 7T —E-—FRNA—HEZE-Z_F,XH
300,000 HK$1.200 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

1.20078 7T —E—=HEXNA—BEZE-__F,XA—H
425,000 HK$1.200 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

1.2007% 7T —E-NENA—HBEZET-__FA—H
425,000 HK$1.200 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

1.200/8 7T —E-—RFEANA—HBE-ZE-__F,A—H
325,000 HK$1.400 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.4007% 70 —E——FXRA—HEZZT-_—_F/,XA—H
425,000 HK$1.400 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

1.4007% 7T, —E-=FEXA—HE-ZE-_—_F8—
425,000 HK$1.400 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

1.40078 7T —E-NMERNA—BEZE-__F,XA—H
425,000 HK$1.400 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

1.400/8 7T —E-RFEANA—HE-ZE-__F,XA—H
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34.Share Option Schemes 34.FEMIFERTE (&)
(continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme BRALAHERERNERES
(continued) (#&)

Exercise price

Number of options per share Exercise period
BRERE BRITEE 1TEH
455,000 HK$1.600 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.60078 7T —E-—HFXNA—BEZE-_F,XA—H
455,000 HK$1.600 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

1.60078 7T —E-=FXNA—BEZZE-—_F,XA—H
455,000 HK$1.600 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

1.600/8 7T —E--NMEANA—BEZZE-_F,XA—H
455,000 HK$1.600 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

1.600/% 7T —E—ARFRNA—HEZZE-__F/XA—H
525,000 HK$1.800 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.80078 7T —E-——HEXNA—BEZZE-—_F,XA—H
525,000 HK$1.800 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

1.80078 7T —E-=FXNA—BEZZE-—_F,XA—H
525,000 HK$1.800 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

1.800/% 7T —E-—WNEXNA—HEZZE_-__F/XA—H
525,000 HK$1.800 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

1.800/8 7T —E—ARFRNA—HEZZE-__F/XA—H
985,000 HK$2.000 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

2.000/% 7T —E-—HFXNA—BEZZE-—_F,XA—H
985,000 HK$2.000 1 June 2013 to 1 June 2022

2.000/% 7T —E—=FXNA—BEZZE-_—_F,XA—H
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34.Share Option Schemes 4. B EFTE (&)

(continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme RAFERERBREST S
(continued) (#&)

Exercise price
Number of options per share Exercise period
BREHE BRITEE 1715
985,000 HK$2.000 1 June 2014 to 1 June 2022

2.000/% 7T —E-NFEAA—HEZZTEZ-_F,A—H
985,000 HK$2.000 1 June 2015 to 1 June 2022

2.0007% 7T —E-RAFAA—HEZZE-_—_F,XA—H
14,253,000
The 200,000 share options exercised during the year F R77{£200,00017 5 A # 8 £3£17200,000
resulted in the issue of 200,000 ordinary shares of the AR AN B AR K 7 SR 420,000/ 7T (48
Company and additional share capital of HK$20,000 g1 AR®17,0007T) & i 19 4 B 140,000
(equivalent to RMB17,000) and share premium of BT (FHE RN AR®114,0007T) ©
HK$140,000 (equivalent to RMB114,000).
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had RAREIRR AR REFRITEE XA
outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options for the subscription BERBRE TREBERXARABSAIER
of 14,253,000 shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option REETEI78 14,253,000/ B 15 - FBE R AR
Scheme, which represented approximately 1.0% of the AN E BB BEITRALNI.0% - REBEAR
issued share capital of the Company as at that date. AMREERAEE 2ETERTEEXR
The exercise in full of the outstanding Pre-IPO Share N E R B RE S BB E1T714,253,000
Options would, under the present capital structure AR AR R A RESN @ AR AR 1 - DA R BB ANAR AR
of the Company, result in the issue of 14,253,000 1,425,000/ 7t (8 5 A R #1,249,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and 70) M %17 3% (819,132,000 7t (FMEER A
additional share capital of HK$1,425,000 (equivalent to K #16,763,0007T) (HBRMBEBEETHX
RMB1,249,000) and share premium of HK$19,132,000 A o
(equivalent to RMB16,763,000), before related issuance
expenses
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34.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 13,253,000 share options
outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
which represented approximately 1.0% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) which was approved
and adopted by the written resolutions of all the
shareholders of the Company passed on 14 October
2010 (as amended at the Annual General Meeting of
the Company held on 18 May 2018) for the purpose
of providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons
for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of, the Group and for such other
purposes as the board of directors may approve from
time to time. Eligible persons of the Scheme include
any director or employee (whether full time or part time),
consultant or advisor of the Group who, in the sole
discretion of the board of directors, has contributed to
or will contribute to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme is available to the directors
and employees (whether full time or part time) of any
member of the Group.

Y
31 December 2018 ‘
—E-N\FE+=-_A=1+—8H

4. BRERTE (F)

mf

PN ESE T B

-
o
~

RS EHRELE B ARRIREAR
NI E R R ARE R 8115 13,253,00017 i
RITERNBEAE HERNE A ARRIEETT
Betn 2 #91.0% °

BB T &

AR ET-ABRES ([BRES
B BERARMBERRR_-_ZFT—ZTF+
ATORBBNERER (RARAR =
Z-N\FRATNBETHRRBFAS
HERDHERTS  §ERSAEEFEL
BRI TS NIRAAEENEZAER
ATREERNEE AEFETEIAE
MEMBH FAENEEBALERESS
ERARECHABEAERBELEROA
SEEMESFNER (TwmERESRE)
BRREAA -

BRI RE T AREERAKE AR
MESENER (TwmEBSERR) -
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34.Share Option Schemes 34. W FESTE (42)

260

(continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting and certain disclosure and reporting
requirements.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes, must not, in
aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting and certain
disclosure and reporting requirements.

The subscription price of share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii)
the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company. A consideration of
RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of the offer of an
option or options.
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34.Share Option Schemes

(continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

The Share Option Scheme became effective on
16 November 2010, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme by
shareholders by resolution at a general meeting.

Any exercise of an option granted under the Share
Option Scheme is subject to conditions as may be
specified in the offer letter in respect of the grant of
options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme during the year:

34.

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

BrEstd (&)

B ETE (&

BRESAEIN-_ZF-FTF+ A+ BE
M BR HITREHBAE RIS # B BRI
REBEERBRRNBEBERT S AL+
FRFERR-

TTER IR BB A IR D BB IATT
B ) B4 P DI B 2 IR R 2 o

BT B T8 AMEAERN AZARK
BRRBERAE ERE-

AT REABRES8IR T a0 R1TERE
Pt -

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—+tF

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options

mEFH IEFH
T8 BREHE 1B BREHA

HK$ HKS
per share '000 per share '000
ShiER T4 BRET T
At 1 January w—A—H 1.29 29,174 1.04 17,910
Granted during the year FARH - - 1.60 12,850
Exercised during the year FRNTE 0.90 (50) 0.95 (969)
Lapsed during the year FRKMK 0.90 (3,610) - -
Forfeited during the year FRRIK 1.49 (2,150) 1.02 617)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 1.33 23,364 1.29 29,174
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34.Share Option Schemes 34. W FERTE (&

(continued)

BRERTE (&

Share Option Scheme (continued)

FRAA TR A TR EZ 2

Movements in the Company’s share options under the

Share Option Scheme during the year are as follows: (N
Number of share options
EREYE
At Exercised Lapsed Forfeited At Exercise
1 January during during during 31 December  Date of grant Exercise period price of
2018 the year the year the year 2018 of share options of share options share options
Nameorcategory ~ $8%#48  RZF-NE RZE-NE
of participant E5l -B-B ERffE EREH FREN  TZA=t-8B  ERERLAS BRETES BRETEE
HKS per share
BRiET
Directors Bz
Mr. Cao Yidong Alan ~ ETRIE %4 300,000 - - - 300,000 22 November 2016 1 December 2017 to 1,020
ZE-RET-BTTZR 21 November 2026
“5-t51-h-RZ
ZEIRET-AZT-R
Mr. Liu Yangsheng kS 300,000 - - - 300,000 22 November 2016 1 December 2017 10 1020
ST-RET-AZTZE 21 November 2026
“F-t5t-h-RZ
ZEAEt-Rzt-B
M, Lau Chi Kit Bl 300,000 = g = 300000 22 November 2016 1 December 2017 fo 1020
—EB-E+-A-1ZR 21 November 2026
“3-t£4-A-H%
“FIET-A-t-R
Ms. Yin Haiyan e e 150,000 - - - 150,000 22 November 2016 1 December 2017 to 1.020
kS el ey = 21 November 2026
ZZ-t£+-R-RE
ZBIRET-RzT-R
Ms. Yin Haiyan iy o 150,000 - - - 150,000 4 December 2017 16 December 2018 to 1442
“E-tE+ZANA 3 December 2027
Z3-\FtZB1/AZE
ZRo+ETZRZR
Ms. Zhao Huan BEnt 300,000 - - (300,000) - 4 December 2017 16 December 2018 to 1442
“E-tE+-RmA 3 December 2027
“E-\EtZB{/AZ
ZZ-+E+-RZR
1,500,000 5 5 (300,000) 1,200,000
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34.Share Option Schemes

(continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

31 December 2018

B ETE (&)

- A\Ft+-_A=+—H

34. 8B rEntEl (&)

Number of share options
g
At Exercised Lapsed Forfeited M Exercise
1 January during during during 31 December  Date of grant Exercise period price of
2018 the year the year the year 2018 of share options of share options share options
Name o category ~ S$R&HE  RZF-NF . R=B-NE ) )
of participant £5l -A-A ERfR EREN FREM TZASt-A  BRERLAE BREGES BREGRE
HKS per share
BRET
Other employeesin ~ HftESAH 3,660,000 (50,000) (3,610,000 - - 20 November 2013 1 December 2014 o 0.900
aggregate “E-Z+-ACtH 19 November 2018
Z2-RETZR-EE
ZE-\ET-ATHE
1,300,000 - - (600,000) 700,000 21 July 2014 20 August 2015 to 1.860
“E-RELACT-A 20 July 2019
“I-RE\fZTRE
“T-NELAZTR
2,254,000 - - - 2,254000 1 Api 2015 1 May 2016 to 1018
“2-n§mA-A 31 March 2020
—Z-RELA-HE
Z523E=A=1-B
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 26 November 2015 1 December 2016 to 0810
“F-15t-A=1rA 25 November 2020
“E-RETCR-RE
ZRCRET-ACTIA
6,710,000 - - (250,000) 6,460,000 22 November 2016 1 December 2017 to 1,020
Z3-RET-AzTIR 21 November 2026
“E-t51-R-RZ
ZERET-AIT-H
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 16 May 2017 1 June 2018 to 1.822
ZE-tERATAR 15 May 2027
“I-\ExA-BE
ZEZtFRATAR
4,500,000 - - (700,000) 3800000 25 May 2017 1 June 2018t 1.760
“I-tFRAZTEA 24 May 2027
“2-\§78-R%
ZRCEERACTEA
6,250,000 - - (300,000) 5950000 4 December 2017 16 December 2018 to 1442
S 3 December 2027
—E-N\F+-ATRAZ
S o
27,674,000 (50,000 (3,610,000) (1,850,000) 22,164,000
29,174,000 (50,000 (3,610,000) (2,150,000) 23,364,000
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31 December 2018
—N\F+ZA=+—H

34.Share Option Schemes 4. WERRFERTE (&)
(continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued) EhRfEstEl (&)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share RZE-—NEF+ZA=T—HHRTED
options outstanding at 31 December 2018 are as B TTEE RITHEEMT -
follows:

Exercise price

Number of options per share Exercise period
BREZE BRITEE T
1,500,000 HK$0.810 1 December 2016 to 25 November 2020

0.81078 7T T E—RNFE+-A—RE-_Z-_ZF+—A=-+HAH
2,254,000 HK$1.018 1 May 2016 to 31 March 2020

1.018% 7T —E-RNERA—HEZZE-EF=H=1—H
7,360,000 HK$1.020 1 December 2017 to 21 November 2026

1.020/8 7T —E—+tF+-Af—HE-_ZEZ-_AFt+—A=-+—H
700,000 HK$1.860 20 August 2015 to 20 July 2019

1.860/5 7T —E-—TRFENA-t+HE-_ZT—hAFE+tA=-+H
1,500,000 HK$1.822 1 June 2018 to 15 May 2027

1.82275 7T —N\E~NA—B&-_Z-_+FHA+AH
3,800,000 HK$1.760 1 June 2018 to 24 May 2027

1.76078 7T - N\ERNA—BEZE-_t+tFHRA=-+WH
6,250,000 HK$1.442 16 December 2018 to 3 December 2027

1,442 7T —E-N\FE+-_A+ANBE-ET-_t+FE+-H=H
23,364,000

264 Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE

34.Share Option Schemes

(continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

The 50,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 50,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$5,000
(equivalent to RMB4,000) and share premium of
HK$40,000 (equivalent to RMB33,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
outstanding share options for the subscription of
23,364,000 shares under the Share Option Scheme,
which represented approximately 1.7% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at that date. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 23,364,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital
of HK$2,336,000 (equivalent to RMB2,047,000) and
share premium of HK$28,668,000 (equivalent to
RMB25,119,000), before related issuance expenses.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 22,414,000 share options
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 1.7% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

4. BRERTE (F)

BRERTE (&)

F A B 171£50,00017 i B A B {5 851750,000
A& R R &) AR A 0 - & 88 SR 285,000
BT (HE R AR4,0007T) &I 1G5 i E
40,0007 7T (1HE R A R#33,0007T) °

RS EIR - NARHEA RITERERAE - 7]
R B AR R 2018 T23,364,0008% I 15 - 48
ERARFREBNEEITRAL1.7% -
RIEARRRIRBIRAZEE  2EITHERIT
1 BE A% 1 & S B35 1723,364,0000 AN A &) 58
GRS 15 - LA B2 BB AN AR AK2,336,000/%

7T (FERN AR#2,047,0007T ) M%7 5% (B
28,668,000/% 7T (1HE 1 A K #25,119,000
7T) (FBRABEAEITRZAT) o

RZEMHBRREMBE BIEERE
2 ARAFEB22,414,00000 K175 58
PR HERARTRE BB BEITRALY
1.7% °

BLEBRRMERAIA | —F\FFH

265



Notes to the Financial Statements &R EKIEE

31 December 2018
- N\F+ZA=+—H

35. fii fm

35.Reserves

266

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the capital
contributions by Mr. Dong Li, a director and controlling
shareholder of the Company, to the subsidiaries directly
held by Mr. Dong Li before the group reorganisation on
8 June 2010.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to allocate 10%
of their profit after tax to the reserve fund until this
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
PRC subsidiaries. Subject to certain restrictions set out
in the Company Law of the PRC, part of the reserve
fund may be converted to increase paid-up capital/
issued capital of the PRC subsidiaries, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less

AEERFEBEFENFESELE
BHERNEMBRRNGAEREHRTD

25

BOHEE

AEBERNEHREBEARAEFTRITBK
REFREN_ZE-TFXAN\BEEE
ARABREERFANNBLRRIEE -

N

RIEFRBEARNE  AEE/H T EKNEAEAE
BHEBEFOHREBEFI0%BEAEEATES
BEEZREENFMEARRNS0% AL - £
Bl A RLERTAAME TREZER T - #9/EE
ANTED A] T AE IR DS i BB 8 A R4
RER/BEITRA MERERNMER TR
HEHRATEREME AH25% o & B B
NAMATEBER_E—\EFER_T—+F
+TZA=+—A2 5/ ARKR%139,194,000

than 25% of the registered capital. The reserve fund of 7t & A K #133,805,0007T °
the PRC subsidiaries amounted to RMB139,194,000

and RMB133,805,000 as at 31 December 2018 and

2017, respectively.

Exchange fluctuation reserve PE 5 OR BN 1B

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of companies outside the
PRC. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.4.

BN RBFERENERREFRRAIIA
BB TS TR T B AR FOBE 5, = 58 - sX R IR E
R4 S TR R IR o

Share option reserve ERERE
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and BBARRMIERER 8 MR8 1THY
the share options issued under the schemes are BRERS SR SRR M4 -

included in note 34 to the financial statements.
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35.Reserves (continued)

36.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the fair value
differences arising from the revaluation for the
equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income and debt investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve

The available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
as at 31 December 2017 comprises the fair value
differences arising from the revaluation for the available-
for-sale investments.

Acquisition of a Subsidiary

DBSL

On 22 December 2017, Leoch International Holding,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an agreement with an independent third party to
incorporate a company called BS 003 Limited in the
United Kingdom, the name of which was changed
to LDBS on 24 January 2018. The independent third
party transferred its 100% equity interest in DBS
Energy Limited (the name of which was changed to
DBSL on 18 January 2018) in exchange for a 40%
equity interest in LDBS. Leoch International Holding
subscribed for 60% of the equity interest in LDBS
at a cash consideration of US$847,000 (equivalent
to RMB5,458,000) together with a waiver of trade
receivables due from DBSL of US$1,988,000
(equivalent to RMB12,805,000). DBSL is a trading
company which imports and sells batteries under the
Leoch brand name in the United Kingdom. As a result
of the above transactions, Leoch International Holding
obtained control over DBSL, which then became a
subsidiary of the Company on 16 January 2018.

35.

36.

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

e (A&
DA EEEE

N

N

ARBEREHREERETRANEE
BEEARLMEm K S ERIERE RiE
ERAAEBEESTAHLBEZEAREMNE
BREN A BEZREAMN -

pullls

AHHEREEMGRE

R-E—tF+-_A=1t—HAHLER
BEMRFEHREEATTHEERENQ
REEEBEHEMN -

s B3 Ff /S 2t ]
DBSL

R-B—+F+-A-+=-8 AQFNHZE
& Ff$ /@ 2 7] Leoch International Holding£2 %
SNEZHE M NERBE MK —
4 A&BS 003 Limited (FZ A8 —Z— N\
F-HZTHEBERARLDBS)W QA%
L% = 58 E E HDBS Energy Limited
(ZREIR=ZE—N\F—AT/N\BEZA
DBSL ) #1100% %1 - LA ERLDBSEI40%%
# o Leoch International Holding A8 & X8
847,0005 7T (#8E i A K #5,458,0007T )
K % fEYs DBSLE 5 fE Ya 5178 1,988,0005
7T (FEER AR12,805,0007T ) REELDBS
HI60% M5 - DBSL 7 —ETE S B LA Leochan

MEDORIEEEMNE S RE] - HRET
i 22 5 - Leoch International HoldingEX 45

HDBSLAVIE I - BRI —F —
738 DBSLEX AR R FIHE A

NE—H
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

36. Acquisition of a Subsidiary 36. WIENEB A TE (&)
(continued)
DBSL (continued) DBSL (#&)
The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling REBEEEAFEERERIZLLFIELE
interests in DBSL at the non-controlling interests’ SLAI &5l % & B k5T 2 DBSLAY FE1Z AR 1
proportionate share of DBSL’s identifiable net assets. o
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of DBSLAWEEHE 2 AR EERBEAAR
DBSL as at the date of acquisition were as follows: BEOT:
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
A Uk B R R RR
ZAREE
Notes RMB$’000
B 5 AR®EF T
Property, plant and equipment WE B REE 13 693
Customer relationship EPBE 18 16,246
Other intangible assets Hibmp & E 18 132
Inventories FE 4,549
Trade receivables Z 5 fE W RIA 13,180
Prepayments, other receivables and TR FRIE - B fE R IE &
other assets Efh&EE 722
Cash and cash equivalents HeRASEED 171
Trade and bills payables B RNRENENERE (23,411)
Other payables and accruals HiEANRIEREGTEA (249)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 32 (3,087)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRARBETEN
AEAFEERE 8,946
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR HE 2 (3,579)
5,368
Goodwill on acquisition W EERNEE 17 1,937
7,305
Satisfied by: ATAE R AT -
Fair value of 40% equity interest in LDBS ~ LDBS 40% A& #EH A A B E 7,305

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

36. Acquisition of a Subsidiary 36. WIENEB AR (&)
(continued)
DBSL (continued) DBSL (#&)
An analysis of the cash flows for the year ended 31 HE-_T—N\F+A=1+—HLFE B
December 2018 in respect of the acquisition of a BURERBARNRERESTUT :

subsidiary is as follows:

RMB$’000
ARETTT
Cash consideration RENRE -
Cash and bank balances acquired ERERE RIRITHEH 171
Net inflow of cash and cash FFARERSMBRERENEER
equivalents included in cash flows ReEEBYMRA TR
from investing activities 171
Since the acquisition, DBSL contributed RMB65,219,000 BEeAWERZ Bz —/\F+=A4
to the Group’s turnover and caused a net loss of —+—HIFE DBSLAKREBLEES
RMB2,803,000 to the consolidated profit for the year B AR #65,219,0007T & B4R 4 Ja F B BLF
ended 31 December 2018. &5 18 A K #2,803,0007T °
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

37.Notes to the Consolidated SRERERBRMEE
Statement of Cash Flows
Changes in liabilities arising from METHEE2EEEH
financing activities
2018 —E-NfF
Bank and
other loans
RITR
HhE ™
RMB’000
AR¥T T
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—H—H 3,013,891
Changes from financing cash flows BERGREE (211,099)
Foreign exchange movement SNEE & B 81,316
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\F+-_A=+—H 2,884,108
2017 —ET—tF
Bank and
other loans
RITRHEMERK
RMB’000
ARBETT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+tF—H—H 1,763,477
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREZE 1,286,584
Foreign exchange movement HINE & (48,243
Increase arising from acquisition of subsidiaries U EE R & 2 B Fr 51 hn 12,073
At 31 December 2017 R-ZZE—tF+=-A=+—H 3,013,891
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31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

38.Pledge of Assets 38. EE K I
Prepaid Property,
land lease plant and Pledged Trade
payments equipment deposits receivables Total
AL n¥ BE E5EK
HENE k#fE  BEAEX 8 st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT ARBTr  ARETRT ARBTx
(note 16) (note 13) (note 28) (note 22)

(H5E16) (HEE13) (Hf5Es) (Hi22)

31 December 2018 “Z-N\E
t=A=t-8
Interest-bearing bank FERITEE
borrowings (note 31) (BiE31) 50,297 672,268 104,561 31,592 858,718
Bils payables (note 29) BN R (Ki729) - - 303,714 - 303,714
lssue of letters of credit & H{EME - - 43,94 = 43,941
50,297 672,268 452,216 31,592 1,206,373
31 December 2017 “E—+fF
t-A=t-H
Interest-bearing bank FERITEE
borrowings (note 31) (BiEE31) 50,094 747,778 179,899 61,467 1,039,238
Bils payables (note 29)  FERRHE (K729 - - 260,099 - 260,099
Issue of letters of credit ~ #H{EAE = - 100,118 - 100,118
50,004 747778 540,116 61,467 1,399,455
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31 December 2018
—N\F+ZA=+—H

39.0perating Lease Arrangements 9.K=HELH
(@) As lessor (@) FEAEHBEA
The Group leases its staff quarters and office AEBREBELKEHELHLEAETRE
premises under operating lease arrangements, ERMAEYE  CEFOBRN T
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from FETF -MH—MATAERBP A
one to seventeen years. The terms of the leases REBE2 LETATIREE K B
generally also require the tenants to pay security HEEHFE-

deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total RZE-NF+A=+—H &&

future minimum lease receivables under non- EREBEEEAPET AT HELSE

cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling HMER T HBEIHNRRKERE
due as follows: JEW R IBRERIAT -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Within one year —FR 3,535 1,161

In the second to fifth years, F_EFERFT BIEEEMF
inclusive 4,941 2,220
After five years AF% 11,960 3,774
20,436 7,155
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39.0perating Lease Arrangements
(continued)

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties
from its related companies (note 41(c)) and
independent third parties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three
years.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

O0.KEHERH (&)

(b) ERAEBEA

AEERBEEHELHMEBER
Al (MiEE41(0) MBY E=TTHAET
WAEYE--YEHEE KR H
NFAEBF -

R-ZZE-\F+-_A=+—H KK
BRE A B EEHER T HE
FHWARKEHENRBREOT :

2018 2017
—E-_\&E -—T+%
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Within one year —F R 6,313 4,847

In the second to fifth years, F_EERF BIEEEMF
inclusive 10,484 995
16,797 5,842
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

40.Commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 39(b) above, the Group had the following capital

40. 7 EE

commitments at the end of the reporting period:

B = XM EE39(b) B0 4%
WS AR REBHF AT E AR

HEAGEIN R

2018 2017
—E2-NF T+ F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AR TR ARBFTT
Contracted, but not provided for: EHENEESZT-F
Land and buildings T RIEF 1,340 17,727
Construction of a property BEYE [0} 393,044 442 174
Plant and machinery B i 814 2,827
Capital contribution for investments ~ A[{t HERE KT E
in available-for-sale investments - 39,034
Capital contribution for investments 5§ E & A SLEEE 85t
in equity investments designated AE b 2 T I a5 i
at fair value through other R ERFE
comprehensive income 15,932 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary gty lNE - 18,524
411,130 520,286

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Financial Statements BI&EREHIEE

40.Commitments (continued)

Note:

0

On 26 July 2017, Shenzhen Leoch Battery Technology
Co., Ltd., Leoch Battery Shenzhen Corp., and Shenzhen
Lihang Battery Technology Co., Ltd., subsidiaries of the
Company, collectively entered into a construction contract
with Shenzhen Shekou Costal Realty Company Limited,
a company in the PRC principally engaged in property
development, in relation to the construction of a property
at a consideration capped at RMB516,000,000. The
property is located at the development site situated at
Tower E, Taizhi Bay Commercial Plaza, Shekou Gangwan
Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC, with an
estimated floor area of approximately 6,141.30 square
meters. The property will be for commercial use and,
upon acquisition by the Group, is expected to be used as
the principal office of the Group. Based on the currently
estimated floor area of the property upon its completion,
the consideration is RMB491,304,000. It was originally
agreed that the property shall be delivered to the Group
on or before 30 August 2018. However, due to delay in
the construction of the property, completion did not take
place as scheduled and the Group has withheld payment
for the consideration. The parties have been negotiating
for an alternative payment schedule while at the same
time looking at various different options with regards to
the property including but not limited to the possible
disposal of the property to a third party. Up to the date
hereof, no agreement has been reached by the parties. As
at 31 December 2018, Shenzhen Leoch Battery had paid
RMB98,260,000 of the consideration.

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

40. 754 (78 )

R-ZT—tFELA-+ A FIELRE
BEMERAR  FYBELEMRMERA
BIRARYNMERBEMER AR (ARAZ
MEAR)XRERIMIEGSEEEEFRA
Bl (—ERTPREEBNEMERE 2 AR
VEEAH NABBEEE-EYME REL
R & A R#516,000,0007T < s ) ZE M A E
YR L E e DR RE R FEERES
ERE 2 B RES - hEMEEE ALY £6,141.30
K ZMERBERERR  MBEHRA
SEWBEEEREARNEEZEEMNEE -
BEREF AT 2 ZMERNE TR 2 EEEE
T8 B A ARE491,304,0000T - HB 2
R E  ZMEENR - N\ENA=1H
RKZARNFAREE R AR ETE
B MARPRTIRASECNARER
I8 - AT B S IMNO R BE - B RIES
SREAVENZTEIRNRE REES
RARAIRERE= A HENE -HEALER
B TR MARER T RE R —N\F
+ZA=+—H FELREREXANS
B A AR #98,260,0007T 2 (& °
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

M BEAEAETRS

(a) BARZSUBIHRR MM F AR
Z AEEEBEEATEFRBEIN

41.Related Party Transactions

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the

following material transactions with related parties TEERS:
during the year:
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®T T ARBTTT
Purchases of raw materials [FE D FBE FE##
from related companies (i)
Related companies wholly ETRNAEREHREN
owned by Mr. Dong Li EZpE/NG! 8,356 30,591
Purchases of facilities from B BFE D 7B ERHE
related companies (i)
Related companies wholly ETEREREHRW
owned by Mr. Dong Li 2 pENE| - 27,541
Sales of products to HEEATHEEER
related companies (i)
Related companies wholly ETNAEREHEN
owned by Mr. Dong Li EpE/NG! 101,687 84,261
Leases of office premises BEmEREARME
from two related companies EHNAEWE ()
Related companies wholly EThREZEHEEW
owned by Mr. Dong Li EpENE] 657 657
Related company wholly owned 2 2= 4 4 Y AC (8
by Mr. Dong Li’s spouse 2ERENBEENT] 2,389 2,542
3,046 3,199
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31 December 2018 ‘
—E-N\FE+=-_A=1+—8H

41.Related Party Transactions MNBEATRES (&)
(continueqd)
(@) (continued) (@) (#4&)
2018 2017
—B-NE T tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

P AR¥TR ARETT

Leases of office premises to [EFE A 7

related companies HERQIEYE ()
Related companies wholly EXEAEREHBEN
owned by Mr. Dong Li EpENG! 1,029 1,029
Interest expense to HEEAL
related parties THREMAX 41 (o) (i)
Non-controlling shareholders P A Al 2 FEIERR AR R
of a subsidiary 1,740 1,678
Note: B 5
()  The purchases of raw materials, purchases of () HEEQAETEMBEEE R
facilities, sales of products and lease of office 5. iuuiﬁ’%&ﬂ#’“*%¥$ﬁhﬁffﬁﬁ
premises with the related companies were made HRAZENBRRYAEEME TiE
according to prices mutually agreed between RABLE=FRHESIEBIE=T
the two parties on terms not less favourable to (Ea )RR IETETT -
the Group than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties.
The related party transactions in respect of the LR EERME BERE HE
purchases of raw materials, purchases of facilities, EmREERAZEMENEEALR
sales of products and lease of office premises SIMERK LR E T UAZ E &R A
above also constitute connected transactions or ERXHUBEBER S -

continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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31 December 2018
—N\F+ZA=+—H

41.Related Party Transactions MBEABEALIRES (&
(continued)
(b) Outstanding balances with related (b) EHBIEAN LT REESER:
parties:
Due from related parties Due to related parties
FEWEEALRE FETBEE A LR
2018 2017 2018 2017

—g-\F -FTLF —®¥-\F —FLF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

iz AR¥TR AR®BTrT AR®TR ARKTx
Current: BNHR :
Non-controlling M8 AR
shareholders of FEE AR AR
a subsidiary 0] - - 43,418 76,238
Related companies ~ EZF %4
wholly owned by 2EBRED
Mr. Dong Li EapE NG (i 55,117 29,210 13,915 15,708
55,117 29,210 57,333 91,946
Notes: B 5E
[0} As at 31 December 2018, a loan amounting to 0] RZZE—NF+=-—_A=+—H8" XK E
RMB40,000,000 from the non-controlling shareholders —ERB AR ZEERBRRZER
of a subsidiary was unsecured, bore interest rate R #40,000,0007T A& EHH - Bzi*' =
at 4.35% per annum and had no fixed terms of 4.35%5T B REE EE KA -
repayment.
(i)  As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all balances iy HR=ZFE—NEFR=-_ZFT—+tF+=A
with the related companies wholly owned by Mr. =+—H FBEHEFLEZERSR
Dong Li were trade in nature, unsecured, interest- E’\]Eﬁ@’&ﬂm‘ﬁiﬁ?% VB SIHE - K
free and had no fixed terms of repayment. 5B RERE FERE -
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41.Related Party Transactions
(continued)

(c) Commitments with related

companies

In September 2010, the Group entered into an
agreement with a term ended on 31 August 2012
with Shenzhen Marshell Power Supply Co., Ltd.,
a company which is wholly owned by Mr. Dong
Li, in relation to the leases of two office premises.
The Group extended the term of this agreement
to 23 December 2021. The lease expenses to
be paid to Shenzhen Marshell Power Supply
Co., Ltd. will be RMB897,000, RMB897,000 and
RMB878,000 for the years of 2019, 2020 and
2021, respectively.

In August 2008, the Group entered into an
agreement with a term ended on 31 December
2012 with Eastern International LLC, a
company which is wholly owned by Mr. Dong
Li’'s spouse, in relation to the leases of office
premises. The Group extended the term of this
agreement to 31 December 2021. The lease
expenses to be paid to Eastern International
LLC will be RMB4,110,000, RMB4,233,000 and
RMB4,360,000 for the years of 2019, 2020 and
2021, respectively.

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

M BEALRS (&

(c) EERAE R T A

RZZT—TFNA AEEERIIT
BraReEREMAR AR (BEFL
A2 EBEBNAR)RHEERERAQ
EYEITVHBEE T ——F )\ A
=t+t—HARLEOHZE AREE %
EEHE S —F+_A=+=
H ZZ—NF ZFTZTFR=T
Z—F XA TR IS PR AR B
ERAFINEERZ KA AARKE
897,0007T * A R #897,0007T & A R
#878,0007T °

RZZTZTNF N\ R KEE HEastern
International LLC (FREZ A MRS
EERENARHEERAETME
FIVAE—_T——F+_fF=+—
BRIEOHEZ ARECBZHEE
iz - —F+_A=1+—
HR-_ZB-—NF —_T_ZFFK=
T — —4F F I FEastern International
LLCHEERZ# DA AARKE
4,110,0007T + AR #4,233,0007T & A
R #4,360,0007T °
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31 December 2018
—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

41.Related Party Transactions MBEAEIRS (B
(continued)
(d) Compensation of key management d XEEFEEEAENME:
personnel of the Group:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Basic salaries and other benefits EXFGe REAMET 6,507 6,416
Equity-settled share option expenses LAME a5 45 & & B A% £ 59 2 722 1,194
Pension scheme contributions BRIRE 2R 119 119

7,348 7,729
Further details of directors’ emoluments are EREEME 2 BRNTIEHREMN
included in note 8 to the financial statements. 8 o
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42 .Financial Instruments By

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

2. BBER N EMTE

SRS MIARBREHRNEEENT -

2018 —E-N\#F
Financial assets EWMEE
Financial
assets at
fair value Financial assets
through at fair value through
profit or other comprehensive
loss income
AAEE
BETA
BEN AREBEEZETA
SREE Htt2EUENEBEE
Financial
assets at
Held for Debt Equity amortised
trading investments investments cost Total
REBHE AR
TEZ
BEEE BERE HRERE LREE @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR®TR AR®TR AR%T:R
Equity investments designated ~ #EERAABEEZE)
at fair value through other ATABRMOERME
comprehensive income "E - - 137,148 - 137,148
Debt investments at ARBEEHHA
fair value through other Hi 2 EK R
comprehensive income BHRE - 164,625 - = 164,625
Trade receivables BHREKTE - - - 2424654 2,424,654
Financial assets included ATABRRIE Hit
in prepayments, other FEWFRIE R E A
receivables and other assets BENSREE - - - 42,655 42,655
Equity investments at fair value AR EBEE B A
through profit or loss BaRiERERE 12,588 - - - 12,588
Structured bank deposits BEEMRITER 109,866 - - - 109,866
Pledged deposits EEBER - - - 452,216 452,216
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB EED - - - 425,311 425,311
122,454 164,625 137,148 3,344,836 3,769,063
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42 .Financial Instruments by

Notes to the Financial Statements &R EKIEE

2. ZBR N EMT A

Category (continued) (#&
2018 —E-N\EF
Financial liabilities o= S= N
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
RN
RAGTEH
tRaE
RMB’000
ARET T
Trade and bills payables B o RNFIENENEE 2,001,708
Financial liabilities included in STAHEMENRIBERETER
other payables and accruals TEAE 86,728
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FERITEE 2,884,108
4,972,544
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31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

42 .Financial Instruments by 2. BRI ER I A
Category (continued) (#&)
2017 —T—+F
Financial assets TREE
Financial
assets at
fair value Available-
through Loans and for-sale
profit or loss receivables  financial assets Total
AhEEE
AR ERk AEHE
TREE A TREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARET:

Available-for-sale investments At ERE - = 132,576 132,576
Trade receivables B 5 NGB - 2,313,438 - 2,313,438
Bills receivables eSS - 213,159 - 213,159
Financial assets included BUNEGE ST
in prepayments, other FEW AR E 1
receivables and other assets BENEREE - 40,170 - 40,170
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 &g T & 4,418 - - 4,418
Financial assets at fair value AREEEEFA
through profit or loss BRNeREE 12,545 - - 12,545
Pledged deposits BIIFER = 540,116 - 540,116
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReSEEY - 401,042 - 401,042
16,963 3,507,925 132,576 3,657,464

BLEBRRMERAIA | —F\FFH 283



Notes to the Financial Statements &R EKIEE

\Wav, v .
XX

31 December 2018
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42 .Financial Instruments by 2. BRIV ERmIA
Category (continued) (#&)
2017 —T—+F
Financial liabilities TRAaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
1R
ARG EH
eHAR
RMB’000
ARBFTT
Trade and bills payables B 5 RN IR ENERE 1,665,247
Financial liabilities included in AR MENREREGFERNERHAR
other payables and accruals 118,771
Interest-bearing bank borrowings TERITIEE 3,013,891
4,792,909
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43.Fair Value and Fair Value

Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, structured
bank deposits, trade receivables, debt investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income,
trade and bills payables, financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets
and financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

A3.EMIEAARBERAAE

EEH

AEEeBTANEEERAREERE
RAEEMET-

EEEDHEREMESEFEY EERE
FBRBURITER BEHEWHIA B

e FR - AR EBEESF ALMEZEKE
MEBIRE BHRNFTANMENRE &t
ATEMFOR - EfRWFAR EMEEN S
BB E - ANMGT ARACENRIR KRB A
MERBENALEE BEREERS
TEARZRSETABRHME-

AEBBPBEEEENRENFIATT
EEBMTEARRBEFENHREIIERF -/
BREEZRAEARMBELRERZEER
HeMNEREAH WHBMALTERMTA
BENZHEN YEEHEMANIZR
A ZEEH ARV EEH UL - TX
RESBFMANBATHEFEY R
EEEREMERETH R -
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31 December 2018
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43.Fair Value and Fair Value

Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings approximate to their
amortised costs which have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2018 was assessed to
be insignificant.
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43.Fair Value and Fair Value

Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments (continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices. The fair values of unlisted
equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income, which were previously
classified as available-for-sale equity investments,
have been estimated using the asset-based approach.
The assets of the unlisted company include cash
and cash equivalents, short-term principal-protected
investment and investments in portfolio companies.
Management has assessed that the fair values of
cash and cash equivalents, the short-term principal-
protected investment and the liabilities approximate to
their carrying amounts with consideration of the nature
and the short-term maturities of these instruments.
The fair value of the investments in portfolio companies
is estimated using different valuation methodologies
according to the nature of individual investments, such
as the trading price of listed shares, price of recent
investments, market multiples and the discounted cash
flow method.

The fair values of debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income, which are bills
receivables, have been estimated using a discounted
cash flow valuation model based on the interest rate
yield curve.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which
represent wealth management products issued by
banks in Mainland China. The Group has estimated
the fair value of these unlisted investments by using a
discounted cash flow valuation model based on the
market interest rates of instruments with similar terms
and risks.

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

3. EMTEIRBERIARE

BEER (&

EHREERENARBEDERERT
SERAE - BERAEEZESF AEM
PERSEHIF ETRESERE (SRR
AAHHERRERE)NAAEBEERE
RSO EERMETEE - IF LT ARE
F@%ﬁ%&ﬁAEFW\E%%$&§&
HearrRRE EREECHEREZEEES
FW‘L%%$&§&ﬁLm@ﬁ{ﬁ #)
EZETAMEREREHANZIHNERR
B -RAEEARNRENAEBEREES
BRENEERBTIRNMGEEDAGE 8%
WP ZER IR ENER T
SRENRSRETREL

ARNEEEFTARMEZERENEHK
é(ﬂﬁ%mfﬂm@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%#ﬂ
W kiR RERENRHERALE

AEBIREF EHRE AR B A RTTEH
TTEEME M - AEBEERAER AB AL
FRERABRN TANTSNENRERE
FHREEBEAEEZSRLHRENAT
BlE-
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31 December 2018
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43.Fair Value and Fair Value 3. TRMITERNREBEERAAE
Hierarchy of Financial BEF (&
Instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy AAREBEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value TEREIAEESRmTIANAAEBETE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial JZ 4% -
instruments:
Assets measured at fair value BRABlEHENEE

Fair value measurement using

AREEFEFMAEBR
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EXTERE EATABE

& BT 5 R BARE BARE
(1/8) (%2/8) (53[E) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT ARETT ARERTR

2018 —E-N\E
Equity investments designated 1§ E iR A 7t BEE
at fair value through other ARG EEKE
comprehensive income RER S E - - 137,148 137,148

Debt investments at fair value ~ A BEZ S A
through other comprehensive -4 2 IRz A

income BBERE - 164,625 - 164,625
Structured bank deposits ERMERTER - 109,866 - 109,866
Financial assets at fair value /’Mﬁ (EE-EISUN

through profit or loss BReMEE 12,588 - - 12,588

12,588 274,491 137,148 424,227
2017 —E—+F
Available-for-sale investments AT ERE - - 122,828 122,828
Derivative financial instruments 1)?&%@1,5: — 4,418 » 4,418
Financial assets at fair value LF EEZHHA
through profit or loss Ta T EREE 12,545 - - 12,545
12,545 4,418 122,828 139,791
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31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

43.Fair Value and Fair Value 3. TMTERNAREBERAAE
Hierarchy of Financial BEF (&
Instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AREEER (&)
Assets measured at fair value (continueqd) A EEFEREE (&)
The movements in fair value measurements within Level FRNEIEAABEFEZHOT:
3 during the year are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Equity investments designated ETEAAEBEEDT AELAM

at fair value through other EEREMERERE,

comprehensive income/ AHEHERE

available-for-sale investments

— unlisted: —3E L

At 1 January “—B—A 122,828 117,029

Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 BR 40 B8 R B s e 5 22 R

FOR T E 9,748 -

At 1 January (restated) R—A—B (&&5) 132,576 117,029
Total (losses)/gains recognised in EREMEEKEERZ

other comprehensive income (B8) =4 (19,659) 3,703
Additions NE 23,431 2,500
Exchange realignment bE i A 800 (404)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H 137,148 122,828
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FN ANEBEFERERESE —BRANEZ
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no ZhoABELEEE RepEEREMAR
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets HEEBAREHE="ER (T —+t5F:
and financial liabilities (2017: Nil). 7)o
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31 December 2018
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44 .Financial Risk Management 44. TEIERERE B W RBUER

290

Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings,
and cash and pledged deposits. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out
in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term
debt obligations with floating rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and the
Group’s equity.
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31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

44 .Financial Risk Management 44, TRIEREIE B W RBUR
Objectives and Policies (&
(continued)
Interest rate risk (continued) FEmbs (&)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity”
EEEm/ BADRF M,
OR4) #i/ CR) (RD)
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBT T

2018 —E-N\F

RMB AR 50 (34) -
RMB AR (50) 34 -
SG$ T 50 (70) -
SG$ I3 T (50) 70 -
us$ ETT 50 (3,393) -
us$ = (50) 3,393 -
MYR BRALLT 50 (67) -
MYR BRARSE (50) 67 -
2017 T —tF

RMB AR 50 (380) -
RVB AR (50) 380 -
SG$ Frong o 50 (71) -
SG$ N T (50) 71 -
US$ =TT 50 - -
us$ =TT (50) - -
MYR BRAGLE 50 (96) -
MYR BRAELSEH- (50) 96 -

Excluding retained profits * eI RE %A
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44 .Financial Risk Management 44. TEiERERE B W RBUER

292

Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. The Group operates in Hong Kong, the
United States, Singapore, Malaysia and Mainland
China. For companies in Mainland China, their principal
activities are transacted in RMB. For other companies
outside of Mainland China, their principal activities are
transacted in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Approximately 35% (2017: 33%) of the
Group’s sales were denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the operating units
making the sales, whilst approximately 62% (2017:
69%) of costs were denominated in the units’ functional
currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities) and the Group’s equity.
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44 Financial Risk Management

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

44, TRiEARREREE N REEK

Objectives and Policies (&)
(continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SN B ()
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate before tax
= BLADRR
E3R () #m/ (CRD)
% RMB’000
% AREF T
2018 —E—-N\FE
If RMB weakens against US$ MAREHETRE 5 (39,742)
If RMB strengthens against US$ MARE S ETHE (5) 39,742
If RMB weakens against HK$ W AREHABITLIEE 5 (18,838)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ MAREEABTHE () 18,838
2017 —T—+F
If RMB weakens against US$ M AR HETEE 5 (79,850)
If RMB strengthens against US$ M AR HETLAE (5) 79,850
If RMB weakens against HK$ M AREHABTRE 5 (22,391)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ M ARE R ABTHE (5) 22,391
Credit risk EERE

Management has made a detailed analysis of the
credit risk of difference customers and divided the
customers into two classes, i.e, type A customers,
which have good credit ratings or have coverage by
letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance and
type B customers, which are the other diversified
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis, and therefore, the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

EEECDHIRTFPHNEERRETTFAR
oI WK EPEI D RMER - BARER (5
AARRTXEEARIEMEERRY
AHRE) RBEEF (AMZT/LER)
RRARBENBER A RIZEERET
RHNEP WAL BBEEZERRF Ut
S REBEFBEERBWAARIIER - it
AREEEERERIL NEX -
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31 December 2018
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44 .Financial Risk Management 44, TRLERREE B N REBUER
Objectives and Policies (&
(continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERK (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 REF-NFZHA=1—HZEXEEHO
December 2018 RFREES IR
The table below shows the credit quality and the TRETR_ZE—N\F+ZA=1+—HE
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s REAEEEEBRR(TZEERBAMREE
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due £ BRIEE BAERZ KA SRS S BN A B
information unless other information is available without HtnER TR GHNEEERER&EKREE
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification [B Bt O R S ORFE B 4R o

as at 31 December 2018.

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs

1218 A 7
FEF#R 2HEBEEER

Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach

F1RR F2RR FIWR  WBLAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%®TR ARBTR AR®TR AR%®TR

Trade receivables* B MR - - - 2424654 2,424,654
Financial assets included ATABRRIE i
in prepayments, other FE W FRIE R E A
receivables and other assets BERNSRHEE 42,655 - - - 42,655
Pledged deposits [REERCES S 452,216 - - - 452,216
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREZED 425,311 = = = 425,311
920,182 - - 2,424,654 3,344,836
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the * MAEBEAGC T ZETREFENES
simplified approach for impairment, information based on FEUGRIEM & - ER B E BN E R M
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 22. 205 R
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44 Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and bank balances and pledged
deposits, deposits and other receivables, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in
economic, industry or geographic factors similarly
affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit
exposure is significant in relation to the Group’s total
credit exposure. The Group had certain concentrations
of credit risk as 15% and 20% of the Group’s trade
receivables were due from the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers, respectively. Sales
to the five largest customers accounted for 32% of the
Group’s total sales for the year ended 31 December
2017.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements.

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

44. sREREE B WREE

(4&

EER (&)
R-E—F+ZA=+—HZZA @G

AEBEEMEMEE (BRERE RIRITHE
g AR EERER ]S MEMRYRIR)
MEERRIREXZHTHELY  KARER
BESNELTANKREE-

EHARSHF R ZBLEE T30
BREZRFE MazARnEERRENEE
EREERRYEEXN BRETEER
B o EIZRER E15% [ 20%H) & 5 EU IR D
FIREAEBNZEATFPRARES K&
BEAESTETEERR BE-_F—t
FT-A=+—RLEE REAEFFEHL
S N R E 3 B B 32% ©

AEE S E S REGRELENEER R M
O &9 810 BUE 0 B 7% Rk I 223 5%
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44 cRiEAREREE N REEK

44 Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings. In addition, banking facilities have
been put in place for contingency purposes.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as

(#&

MRENE < E b

AEEKBAEPERSE TS T
EemEBRAR -t TAZEES P‘?}?&IEE@
TRUEE (N8 S EYRIE) HEIHI B LA
KEEBHNEARESRE -

AEENENEARITER  #HAKEE
SHEEEMEIR I FE - ths RNEE
TERRITRENENBE -

AEEN TR B ENIEIONIRE HRERS
BNROFT

follows:
Less than 1to5
On demand 1 year years Total
RERE DPME 1285% Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
2018 —E-N\F§
Interest-bearing bank FERITEE
borrowings - 2,180,868 790,711 2,971,579
Trade and bills payables BIRNFIER
AN - 2,001,708 - 2,001,708
Other payables and accruals ~ H#ER AR
st ER - 86,728 - 86,728
- 4,269,304 790,711 5,060,015
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31 December 2018
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44 .Financial Risk Management 44, TRLERERE B W RBUR
Objectives and Policies (#&
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRR (&)

Less than 1t05
On demand 1 year years Total
R ERE LR 1556 85
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT AR®TRT  AR®TR
2017 —E—+F
Interest-bearing bank FERITEE
borrowings 1,286,511 1,639,818 136,464 3,062,793
Trade and bills payables BIRENTIER
AN - 1,665,247 - 1,665,247
Other payables and accruals ~ H s ER AR
st ER - 113,771 - 113,771
1,286,511 3,418,836 136,464 4,841,811
Capital management EXEE

AEBERNEENTIZARRERASE
R EEFRARERFRENEARLL
RXFBEHER  URBBRRNEBRRAESR

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and a healthy capital ratio in order to

support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. = ©

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

AEBRBEEEARESDEIRELERRE
KAEH A% - REE ARSI T AR
B RRREBEARBITHRED L #
FARBEARB - B2 T \FE_F
—tFtT-A=+—HILFER BEER
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44 .Financial Risk Management 44, TRLERREE B N REBUER
Objectives and Policies (&
(continued)
Capital management (continued) EXREE (&)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which REENEEBBLRETER  ZLER
is interest-bearing bank borrowings divided by total FFERITEERNUBREE -WMEHRNEE
assets. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting BELEEMT:

periods were as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FrEIRITEE 2,884,108 3,013,891
Total assets BE®E 9,032,055 8,625,282
Gearing ratio BEARBELE 32% 35%
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45.Transfers of Financial Assets

Transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety

As part of its normal business, the Group entered
into a trade receivable factoring arrangement (the
“Factoring Arrangement”) and transferred certain
trade receivables to banks. The Group is exposed to
default risks of the trade debtors after the transfer.
Subsequent to the transfer, the Group did not retain
any rights on the use of the trade receivables, including
the sale, transfer or pledge of the trade receivables to
any other third parties. The original carrying value of
the trade receivables transferred under the Factoring
Arrangement that have not been settled as at 31
December 2018 amounted to RMB31,592,000
(2017: RMB61,467,000). The carrying amount of
the assets that the Group continued to recognise as
at 31 December 2018 was RMB31,592,000 (2017:
RMB61,467,000) and that of the associated liabilities
as at 31 December 2018 was RMB20,759,000
(2017: RMB37,279,000), which were recognised as
collateralised bank advances, secured (note 31).

Financial assets that are derecognised
in their entirety

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017, the Group factored trade receivables to
a bank on a non-recourse basis for cash. In the
opinion of the Directors, the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards associated with the
factored trade receivables. Accordingly, the Group
derecognised the full carrying amount of the trade
receivables factored. The carrying amount of the trade
receivables derecognised as at 31 December 2018 was
RMB35,048,000 (2017: RMB21,091,000).

31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

A5. BEESRIEE

ARERLLBANCERER
'E

EREREBN - AKBEETVE
SERFEBEBRELH ([ZREZH])
BETEZRIBFBEERZTRIT-AEE
AN EREBEHEHFANBEORR - R
ETERE AEEVYEREFRESE
WHE (BiEmEmEMRE=FHEE - L
EOEHRE SRR TR EF
—E-N\E+=-_A=+—8" ﬂ?‘dﬁ;%%ﬁ
THEZMEREENE S EBFIENR
BREE A A R#31,502,0000t (Z T —+
F: AR¥61,467,0007T) o X T — )\ 4F
TZ A=+ B ANEEEEER E*_)%“F
RIBRME{E A AR%31,592,0007T (=& —
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Ft+-A=T—BMHASENREER
AR#20,759,000L (ZZE—+F: AR
37,279,0007T) * W R A F R EFL
HYERITEFK (FfIEE31) ©

EEMRULBERNEHEE

REBEEZZT-—NFERZZE—+tF+=A
=t+—HALFE- $El&#£%5&ﬁ—
MIRITRIZE BRUGRIENERE S -EF
RE AEEEBRIEE S ERFENEKX
o RBe & B 3REEE - Bt - AR E LT
RIRIEE ZEWHIAE . 2 REE 2 &1
BRNESRRFENR -_Z—\F+=A
=+—HZERHEERAKS35,048,0007T
—Z—+F: AR¥21,091,0007T) °
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—ZE-)N\F+ZA=+—H

46.Statement of Financial Position  46.78 A & Z B #& ARk R &/
of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of BREARRRBERR 2T BRRAKZE
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BHOT
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRRZRE 2,498,768 2,802,633
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Cash and cash equivalents HeMASEED 396 242
Equity investments at fair value through A7 BEZ T AEBZZ

profit or loss R MERE 12,588 12,545
Total current assets MENEERE 12,984 12,787
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEE
Other payables and accruals HEh BN RIBREREA 2,541 2,055
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFRRITEE 407,217 1,315,768
Total current liabilities mENBERE 409,758 1,317,823
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAEETFE (396,774) (1,305,036)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EERAERABEE

CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,101,994 1,497,597
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITEE 678,694 -
Net assets BEFE 1,423,300 1,497,597
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITRA 116,213 116,192
Reserves (note) fE (fIaE) 1,307,087 1,381,405
Total equity M AR 1,423,300 1,497,597
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31 December 2018
—E-NF+=-A=+—H

46.Statement of Financial Position 46.7K AT Z Bk AR (&
of the Company (continued)

Note: B 5T
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KA ZEERENT
Share Share Exchange
premium Shareholders’ option fluctuation Accumulated
account  contribution reserve reserve losses Total
ERRE
R 5 E R RREE BRERE & Eny 1| m@st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARBETT ARETT ARETRL

At 1 January 2017 WZZ—+F
—A—H 1,207,864 337,830 27,901 - (26,719) 1,546,876
Loss and total comprehensive A4 [E E518 1z
loss for the year 2HEBELESE - - - - (108,197) (108,197)
Exercise of share options B 5,338 - (2,652) - - 2,686
Final 2016 dividend paid BNZE-RF
KBRS (64,608) - - - - (64,603)
Equity-settled share option ~ MIEZEER
arrangements R R b - - 4,643 - - 4,643

At 31 December 2017 and ~ RZE—+%F

1 January 2018 +=-A=+—-H
EZE-N\F
—H—H 1,148,599 337,830 29,892 - (134,916) 1,381,405
Loss and total comprehensive 7N E 1 K
loss for the year 2HEELESE - - - - (130,766) (130,766)
Exercise of share options TiE iR 310 = (163) = = 147
Exchange differences on MERINEBE
translation of foreign EHEE
operations - - - 51,290 - 51,290
Equity-settled share option ~ MIEZRLEEM
arrangements BRERH - - 5,011 - - 5,011
At 31 December 2018 RZT—\F
+-A=1+—8 1,148,909 337,830 34,740 51,290 (265,682) 1,307,087
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46.Statement of Financial Position 46.7K QAR Z B iR Az (&
of the Company (continued)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of ERERERECREMARITEMERE
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, WAREBE BHEFERVBREANT24
as further explained in the accounting policy for share- BEURD AERNN RO TR #
based payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. —SHRE - ZeRTEBREREETERE
The amount will either be transferred to share premium EEERMN R ERNIEHR BERERE MR
account when the related options are exercised, or be B REEF -
transferred to retained profits should the related options
expire.

47.Approval of the Financial A7 LB B R R Ak
Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised REMBREER _TE—NLF=RA=+=
for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2019. HEEESQHEWRET -
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LEHHRE B

B EE TG EZY BRERNAEENBER
EFREENEENEE BENMIFEREST
ZHYWT

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements is set out below:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-RA=t-HLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F —E—tF —E-RF “T-A1F —E-mF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
RESULTS ES |
REVENUE €+ 9,544,418 9,465,444 6,262,870 4,330,893 4,248 351
Cost of sales HEMA (8,489,396) (8,302,904) (5,237,286) (3,561,184 (3,531,691)
Gross profit £7 1,055,022 1,162,540 1,025,584 769,709 716,660
Other income and gains E A RS 118,326 94,031 65,752 70,567 75,644
Seling and distrioution expenses ~ HEE R #HFH % (408,667) (367,199) (296,682) (216,466) (202,255)
Administrative expenses IBRY (269,719) (260,742) (224,567) (216,802) (220,072)
Research and development costs ~ HFE & (111,025) (143,084) (101,865) (84,859) (154,430)
Reversal of impairment losses due IR ZEEERLEEM
to suspension of REMAEEE
Zhaoqing Leoch - = - - 58,809
(Impairment losses)/reversal of SREE (REFR)/
impairment on financial assets RERE (3,266) 7,713 (21,910) (1,247) (1,625)
Other expenses HipH > (35,329) (34,639) (53,914) (74,321) (48,468)
Finance costs AR (202,356) (151,788) (108,931) (104,673 (108,505)
Share of profitand loss of a joint e —FIAEMNER
venture and an associate BENBREN K
Ei - - (2,931) (7,352) (3,894)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BALRA 142,986 306,832 280,536 134,556 111,864
Income tax expense MERAY (15,846) (35,352) (48,749) (28,251) (30,073)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEERF 127,140 271,480 231,787 106,305 81,791
Profit for the year ITALTEEREE
attrioutable to: A
Owners of the parent BRAHAA 106,418 242,885 241,898 106,579 81,791
Non-controling interests IR 20,722 28,595 (10,111) (274) -
127,140 271,480 231,787 106,305 81,791
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Assets, Liabilities and EE -BENRFERER
Non-Controlling Interests

Y

As at 31 December

Rt=A=t-A
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZB-N\E “BtF “ENF “Z-I1F —Z-mE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

TOTAL ASSETS EE4E 9,032,055 8,625,282 6,873,302 5,733,508 5,260,686
TOTAL LIABILITIES BE4E (5,858,151) (5,578,594 (4,115,379) (3,287,926 (2,930,010)
NON-CONTROLLING R

INTERESTS (196,977) (170,078) (60,041) (5,994) -

2,976,927 2,876,610 2,697,888 2,439,588 2,330,676
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